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COMPANY'S PROFILE

2 7 & 97

The Group is a leading wind power and pitch control system
solution provider in the PRC and was successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 20 October
2020. The Group has established a mature business network
around the new energy power industry in North, East and
South China, laying the foundations for the new energy
business worldwide. The Group has newly established Jiangsu
Nature Hongyuan New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., Datang
Gucang Duolun New Energy Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Nature Zhenyuan
Energy Storage Technology Co., Ltd. and Nature Intellectual
Energy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., with pitch control systems, service
of sale of electricity, energy storage systems and EMS as their
core businesses respectively.

We primarily engage in R&D, integration, manufacturing and
sale of high-voltage pitch control systems for wind turbines. We
also offer customised integration services of major components
of pitch control systems. We are the first in the industry to
adopt and promote the high-voltage integrated pitch system,
and we achieve intelligent wind power high-voltage pitch
control through utilising digital optimisation and integration
technology for our software and hardware system. At present,
we possess 2 automated production lines and 6 test benches
with product types covering sophisticated models for 2-=7 MW
series. We have successfully established stable and in-depth
cooperative relationship with quality wind power manufacturers
such as Envision Energy, Zhejiang Windey, CRRC Group, Sany
Renewable Energy, and Sinovel.
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Energy storage is one of our Group’s core businesses.
Leveraged on Nature Smart Energy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. as a
platform, our energy storage business takes advantage of
advanced technologies such as energy storage, cloud platform,
Internet of Things, big data and artificial intelligence, to devote
ourselves to the provision of overall solutions for, and the
product R&D and integration of integrated energy projects such
as wind power storage, photovoltaic energy storage, thermal
power storage, and cooling and heating power-based smart
micro-grids. The module pack located in the
13,000-square-meter modern factory located in Wuxi, which is
a clean factory in constant temperature and humidity to ensure
stable performance of the battery assembly process and quality.
The Company has production and testing capabilities for
modules, Pack, container integration, EMS control system and
the entire energy storage system. Currently, the Company has
signed cooperation agreements with CCCC Industrial
Investment Holding Limited, Guoneng Longyuan Electrical Co.,
Ltd. and BatteroTech Co., Ltd for comprehensive and in-depth
cooperation in energy storage business development, energy
storage system supply, and cooperative
development.

line is

research and

The Group will continue to focus on the integrated services for
the new energy power industry, and has been dedicated to
providing customers with continuous, high-quality products and
services that cover the two core business sectors of wind power
and energy storage. Green energy is the mission of the new
era, the cornerstone of building an environmentally friendly
society, and the only way to achieve carbon neutrality.
Together, we can create a brighter future!
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Corporate Information
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 75 i =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

RMB’000

AR T T

Revenue A

Gross (loss)/profit (E18)EF

Gross (loss)/profit margin (E8B) EF =

Loss attributable to shareholders RRELEE

Loss per share (RMB) FhikEE
(AR®TT)

BEZE+_-_A=+—BHL=EE

148,280
(8,968)
(6%)
(34,733)

(0.139)

Percentage

2023 change
—E-= 2HHEOL
284,075 (48%)
26,945 (133%)

9% (15%)
(10,144) 242%
(0.041) 239%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

8Z+_-_A=+—HLEE

Percentage
RMB’000 pLipZ:! 2023 change
AR T T —E-E —E-= 2EEIL
Cash and cash equivalents and HeRBEEEY
pledged deposits AR iRER 58,202 75,921 (23%)
Total liabilities BE 176,135 256,785 (31%)
Net liabilities (total liabilities minus  JF & (42 EH I
cash and cash equivalents and ERBEEZEY
pledged deposits REEREFR 117,933 180,864 (35%)
Total equity Ry R 222,204 261,554 (15%)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRHBES

Dear Shareholders,

Since its listing, the Company has been committed to the
common development of the Company and the society,
integrating environmental protection, fulfilling social
responsibilities and strengthening corporate governance into the
Company’s operation and management. In terms of the
protection of shareholders’ rights and interests, the Company
strictly complies with the requirements of the Company Law,
the Securities Law and the relevant laws and regulations of the
Stock Exchange. Adhering to the development concept of
standardized operation and continuous improvement of
governance structure, the Company fully protects the legitimate
rights and interests of shareholders.

Over the past year, the new energy industry in which the
Group operates has seen intense competition and a decline in
the Company’s results. We are well aware of the distress this
has caused to our shareholders and would like to express our
deepest apologies to all of you.

The rapid development of the new energy industry in recent
years has attracted numerous enterprises to enter the industry,
resulting in increasingly fierce competition
Although the Company has been committed to technological
research and development and has been actively expanding
new customers, the market share of the Company’s products
has been squeezed by the downturn in the market and
uncontrolled competition, resulting in a decrease in sales
revenue as a result of a decline in sales prices.

in the market.
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Chairman'’s Statement

TFEHES

In 2025, the Group will continue to enhance the quality and
efficiency of its services in the new energy power generation as
well as the operation and maintenance business to consolidate
its existing market share. In the field of pitch control systems,
the Group will increase its investment in research and
development to enhance the performance and reliability of its
products, maintain its leading position in the domestic market
and gradually expand into the international market. We will
vigorously develop the energy storage business, strengthen
team building and technology research and development, and
improve the energy storage products and systems. Developing
energy storage customers in depth, we will establish a stable
supply chain for the energy storage industry, and promote the
energy storage business as a new profit growth point for the
Company. We will
opportunities with outstanding enterprises in the industry to
realise resource sharing and complementary advantages.

actively seek strategic co-operation

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and partners for their strong support to
the Company, and to the directors, management team and all
employees of the Company for their hard work and efforts in
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B I8 B 5T AR B 5 AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a wind power and pitch control system solution
provider in China. We engage in the research and
development, integration, manufacturing and sales of pitch
control systems,
operation and maintenance business. In 2024, energy storage
was positioned as one of the Company’'s core businesses,
providing smart energy goods and services in wind power,
photovoltaic and thermal power.

wind power generation and wind farm

PITCH CONTROL SYSTEM RELATED
INTEGRATION, MANUFACTURE AND SALES

We develop, manufacture and sell (1) customised pitch control
systems and (2) customised core components of pitch control
systems, such as pitch drive controllers, and motors, according
to the requirements of our customers and generate revenue
from product sales and integration charges. The customers of
the pitch control systems have grown from Envision Energy at
the beginning to the current quality wind turbine
manufacturers such as Zhejiang Windey,
Energy, CRRC Group, and Shanghai
customers of the core components include Guoneng I&C.

Sany Renewable

Sinovel Electric. The

In 2024, the Group delivered a total of 494 sets of pitch
control system products, a decrease of 73% compared with the
delivery volume in 2023,
covered different models ranging from 2 MW to 9 MW.

and the delivered product types

WIND POWER GENERATION

We commenced our wind power generation business in 2015
by operating our Duolun Wind Farm in Inner Mongolia. Our
Duolun Wind Farm is installed with 13 wind turbines with a
total installed capacity of 19.5MW, where we admit electricity
generated to the local power grid and sell electricity generated
to the local power grid company. We collect on-grid tariff from
the local power grid company based on the meter readings on
a monthly basis.

In 2024, the annual utilisation hours of the Duolun Wind Farm
were 2,407 hours, and the annual total wind power generated
and admitted to the power grid was 46.47 million kWh.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B A R AT

WIND FARM OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
We offer post market operation and maintenance services to
our customers, which include (1) general operation and
maintenance service for wind farms; (2) upgrade and
modification works for pitch control systems; and (3) supply of
consumables. We charge service fees and cost of the sales of
consumables through providing such services to customers.

ENERGY STORAGE

With energy storage as one of its core businesses, the Group
provides customers with energy storage products and solutions,
energy storage modules, pack and system equipment, EMS,
intelligent energy cloud platform and integrated energy
simulation and calculation platform.

In 2024, the Group took energy storage integration as a
breakthrough point, improved the core team, and landed 2
projects, recognized by customers for
integrated products; The self-developed “1P104S Pack Project”
is progressing smoothly.

order which were

OUTLOOK OF THE GROUP

In 2025, the Group will continue to focus on the field of new
energy power, explore the international market and search for
new growth points on the basis of stabilizing the domestic
market. In the energy storage business, we will prudently invest
resources in the research and development of energy storage
products and systems, extensively establish supply chain
resources in the energy storage industry, form complementary
advantages, and develop energy storage as the core business of
the group as soon as possible.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

In 2024, the Group adhered to the wind power generation and
operation and maintenance business, and actively explored the
market development of the energy storage industry.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REVENUE

The Group’s total revenue for 2024 amounted to approximately
RMB148.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB135.8 million or 47.8% from 2023, mainly due to the
decrease in the number of slurry transformers delivered in 2024
and the decrease in operation and maintenance business,
resulting in a decrease in overall business revenue.

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s
revenue for the reporting period:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEE A R AT
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135.8E B LM 2478% T EHRA T -1
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As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
BE-_ToNF EEImk el
+TZA=+—H [ kal=
RMB1,000 RMB1,000
ARBTR AREET T

Sales of pitch control systems and related % 2% 4% i X %t & 46 B8 30 4
components R $H & 53,669 217,569
Wind power sales R EHE 15,568 17,471

Wind farm operation and maintenance 3| B %8 M TS

business 10,357 19,921
Energy storage business GEEY 68,686 29,114
Total FOK 148,280 284,075

The revenue of the pitch control systems business in 2024
amounted to approximately RMB53.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB163.9 million or approximately
75% from 2023, mainly due to the decrease in orders for pitch
control systems undertaken and delivered.

The revenue of the wind power generation business in 2024
amounted to approximately RMB15.6 million, representing a
decrease of RMB2 million or approximately 11% from 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B A R AT

The revenue of wind farm operation and maintenance business
in 2024 amounted to approximately RMB10 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB10 million or
approximately 48% from 2023. The decrease was mainly due to
the decline in the profit of the Group’s maintenance business
and the withdrawal of the operation and maintenance
department.

The revenue of the energy storage business in 2024 amounted
to approximately RMB68.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB40 million or approximately 136% from
2023, achieving significant growth. This is mainly due to the
recognition of the energy storage system by customers this
year.

COST OF SALES

The Group’s cost of sales in 2024 was approximately RMB157
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB100
million or approximately 39% compared with the cost of sales
in 2023.

Among them, the cost of sales of the pitch control systems
business mainly includes raw materials, labor and depreciation,
etc., and the cost of sales of the Group’s pitch control system
business in 2024 was approximately RMB63 million,
representing a decrease of RMB149 million or approximately
70% from approximately RMB212 million in 2023, mainly due
to a decrease in orders relating to the pitch control systems
business.

The cost of sales of the wind power generation business is
mainly depreciation, labor and spare parts and maintenance
after the warranty period, and the cost of sales of the wind
power generation business in 2024 is approximately RMB9
million, which is the same as that in 2023.

The cost of sales of wind farm operation and maintenance
business is mainly raw material and labor costs. The total cost
of sales of the Group’s operation and maintenance business in
2024 was approximately RMB8 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB6.6 million or approximately 45% from
approximately RMB14.6 million in 2023, mainly due to the
decrease in costs due to the decrease in revenue from the
operation and maintenance of wind farms.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The cost of sales of the energy storage business mainly consists
of materials, labor and depreciation. The cost of sales of the
energy storage business in 2024 was approximately RMB77.1
million, an increase of RMB55.1 million from the cost of sales
of the business of approximately RMB22 million in 2023,
mainly due to the increase in material and labor costs due to
the increase in revenue of the energy storage business.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2024, the Group’s gross loss was approximately RMB9
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB36 million
or 133% from approximately RMB27 million in 2023, mainly
due to the fierce competition in the market, the decrease in
product prices and the increase in raw material costs. The
overall gross profit margin decreased from 9% in 2023 to 6%
in 2024, mainly due to the relatively low gross profit margin of
the pitch control systems and energy storage business.

The gross profit margin of the pitch control systems business
decreased from 3% in 2023 to —=18% in 2024, mainly due to
the inability to cover labor, depreciation and lower product
selling prices due to the low order volume.

The gross profit margin of the wind power generation business
in 2024 was approximately 42%, representing a decrease of
6% from the gross profit margin of 48% in 2023, mainly due
to the decrease in wind power generation revenue in 2024 and
the relatively large depreciation in the cost of sales of wind
farms.

The gross profit margin of the wind farm operation and
maintenance business in 2024 was approximately 24%,
representing a decrease of 3% from the gross profit margin of
27% in 2023.

The gross profit margin of the energy storage system business
in 2024 was approximately —12%, representing a decrease of
38% from the gross profit margin of approximately 26% in
2023, mainly due to the high labor and raw material costs of
the new business.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEE A R AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B A R AT

OTHER REVENUE

The Group’s other revenue in 2024 was approximately RMB1.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB2.4
million from approximately RMB4 million in 2023, mainly due to
the decrease in VAT refunds in 2024.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s sales and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately RMB8 million in 2024, which was the same as
that in 2023.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

In 2024,
expenses amounted to approximately RMB25 million, a decrease
of RMB6 million from approximately RMB31 million in 2023,
mainly due to the decrease in labor costs and expenses.

the Group's administrative and other operating

NET FINANCE COSTS

The net finance costs mainly consist of interest expenses on
bank borrowings and third-party borrowings. The Group’s net
finance costs for 2024 amounted to approximately RMB3
million, which was the same as that in 2023.

INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax expense for 2024 is approximately
RMB3 million (approximately RMB1 million in 2023), and the
effective tax rates for the current year and the previous year
are approximately 6% and 7% respectively.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Based on the above reasons, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB39.4 million in 2024, representing an
increase of approximately RMB26.9 million from the net loss of
approximately RMB12.5 million in 2023. The loss of the Group
in 2024 was mainly attributable to increasing market
competition, which has resulted in a decrease in the gross
profit for the sales of pitch control systems and the energy
storage business of the Group.
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LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

In 2024, the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately RMB34.7 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB24.6 million from the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
approximately RMB10.1 million in 2023.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the Group's total
liabilities by total assets. The Group’s gearing ratio in 2024 was
approximately 44%, a decrease of 6% from 50% in 2023,
mainly due to the optimization of supply chain management.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL SOURCE

The Group's sources of working capital include cash flow from
operating activities, the Company’s existing cash and cash
equivalents and bank loans. After prudent financial
management and analysis, the Directors believe that the Group
has sufficient working capital to meet the Group’s current and
future operating needs for a full year.

CASH FLOWS

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents for 2024 amounted to
representing a decrease of
from

approximately RMB51 million,
approximately RMB5 million or approximately 8.9%
approximately RMB56 million in 2023, mainly due to operating

losses.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
In 2024, the Group incurred capital expenditures totalling
approximately RMB7 million (2023: capital expenditure of
approximately RMB26 million), mainly for the purchase of
energy storage production equipment and other fixed assets of

the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s subsidiaries had
short-term bank loans of RMB44 million, of which RMB1 million
was secured by the intellectual property rights of the Group's
subsidiaries.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group has offices in Beijing, Shanghai, Wuxi, Shenzhen,
Hong Kong and Inner Mongolia. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group employed a total of 160 employees (31 December 2023:
151 employees), all of which entered into labor contracts.
According to the PRC labor Law and the relevant laws and
regulations, the contracts of such employees expressly stipulate
the position, staff benefit,
training, obligation of confidentiality and other related matters
of each employee.

responsibilities, remuneration,

POTENTIAL RISK EXPOSURES

Policy uncertainty risk

New energy power industry is significantly policy driven. If there
is any adverse changes in the relevant supporting policy system,
the whole new energy industry chain will be adversely affected,
and lead to a slowdown in demand, insufficient investments in
sectors such as pitch control systems, operation and
maintenance and energy storage, and prolonged settlement of
outstanding tariff premiums for the sales of wind power, which
in turn may adversely affect the Company’s operating results
and its financial position, as well as its cash flow.

Financial risk

If the Group fails to generate sufficient cash flows from its
business execution, it may materially affect the normal
management and operations of the Group. In addition,
accounts receivable and bills receivable are affected by the
uncertainty of the operation of our customers, which lead to
the risk of delayed cash collection. The Group will strictly
adhere to its cash management system and credit policy,
actively follow up on the credit period of accounts receivable
and customer operation status and monitor the real-time cash
status on an ongoing basis, so as to effectively control the
financial risk.
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Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument fluctuate as a result of changes
Exchange rate risk arises from
financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies other

in foreign exchange rates.
than the functional currency.

The Group operates primarily in the PRC and its main
businesses are settled in Renminbi. However, the Company is
still exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
recognised assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and future
transactions in foreign currencies (assets and liabilities and
future transactions are mainly denominated in USD). The Group
has not entered into any forward foreign exchange contracts to
hedge its foreign exchange risk, but management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange risk and take prudent measures to

reduce foreign exchange risk.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (“Mr. Richard Cheng”) (B %),
aged 59, joined the Group in 11 November 2011 and was
appointed as an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board on 28 November 2019. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning and development and overseeing the financial
management and planning of our Group. Mr. Richard Cheng
has been a director of China Transport Real Time Service Co.,
Ltd. since 10 November 2011. Mr. Richard Cheng is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Richard Cheng is an experienced entrepreneur in renewable
energy and environmental projection industry for more than 16
years. Prior to founding our Group, Mr. Richard Cheng joined
Bit Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (Eb4RHTIERR IR 5 B R 2 7)),
and held various positions as deputy manager, general
manager, the chairman of the board and a director from April
2000 to March 2003. Since 2004, Mr. Richard Cheng served as
a director at Ningbo Bonded Area Jiujiu Leasing Co. Ltd. (%%
EHEAABEHBR LA (previously known as Ningbo
Huaneng Leasing Co. Ltd. (B RZEEHE B R 2 7)) (“Ningbo
Jiujiu”). Mr. Richard Cheng was appointed as a director of
Beijing Bogqi Electric Power SCI-TECH Co., Ltd. (It R1IEHE
BRI AR A R)) (“Beijing Bogi”) in June 2005 and became the
chairman of the board of Beijing Bogi in December 2007 and
then served as its chief executive officer from December 2009
to February 2017. Mr. Cheng currently serves as the chairman
of its board of Beijing Bogi, an executive director of Beijing
Shengyi Tiancheng Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (Jb R EE
BAKERRE AR A A]), Zhejiang Bogi Electric Power
SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (H)TEHE AR KB R QX F]) and Anhui
Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd* (ZHAEZEMREI B R A F)).

Mr. Richard Cheng has been a director of China Boqi
Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (FBIE & IRIR (FER%) BR A
A]) (“China Bogi”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 02377). On 14 February 2025, Mr. Cheng Liquan
resigned as a non-executive Director.
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Mr. Richard Cheng is a director of Hongyuan Company Limited,
wholly-owned by him, which directly holds 75% of the shares
of the Company in issue.

Mr. Richard Cheng is the younger brother of Mr. Cliff Cheng
and Ms. Cheng Li Qin.

Mr. Richard Cheng received his bachelor’s degree in political
economy from Fudan University in July 1987.

Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff (“Mr. Cliff Cheng”) (£ 21X), aged 66,
joined the Group in 10 October 2015 and was appointed as an
executive Director and chief executive officer on 17 March
2020. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily
operations and overall general management of our Group.
Mr. Cliff Cheng has been serving as a general manager and an
executive director of Jiangyin Hongyuan New Energy
Technology Company Limited* (TR2SARFTEEREIEBR A R]),
since October 2015. Mr. Cliff Cheng is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cliff Cheng has more than 6 years of experience in wind
power industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cliff Cheng
worked for Chi Tel Limited (KEZEHM AR A A]) as a sales
manager during November 2003 and August 2006. From
August 2008 to January 2015, Mr. Cliff Cheng was a
marketing manager of Beijing BiTe, a company primarily
engaged in technology development and consultancy and sale
of electronic products, mechanical equipment and computer
system services.

Mr. Cliff Cheng is the elder brother of Mr. Richard Cheng and
Ms. Cheng Li Qin.

Mr. Cliff Cheng graduated from Shanghai Peijin School (/&
BT AR E2) in February 1976.
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Ms. Cheng Li Qin (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 64, was appointed as

our non-executive Director on 23 August 2023. Ms. Cheng has

over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial

matters. She has been the chief financial officer of World Hero

International Limited since 2012 and, was the chief financial
A O\

officer of Kang Cheng Seafood Company (FE¥{ & fa /A &) from
2003 to 2012.

Ms. Cheng is the elder sister of Mr. Richard Cheng and
younger sister of Mr. Cliff Cheng.

Ms. Cheng majored in financial management at LaGuardia
Community College and accounting at Shanghai Mechanical
and Electrical Engineering University (/8 # & T ¥ £).

Mr. Li Hao (“Mr. Li") (Zi%), aged 60, was appointed as our
non-executive Director on 19 March 2020.

From January 2000 to December 2010, Mr. Li served as a senior
manager of Dongling (Holding) Corporation (R Z&EBAR A
Al). Since January 2011, Mr. Li has been serving as a general
manager of Guangzhou Weisong Investment Co., Ltd.* (B /&
SREBRAA).

Mr. Li graduated from Nantong Municipal Party School of CPC
(P @™ Z ER) in business management in July 1994.

Mr. Li is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice to
the business and operation of our Group, in particular in
aspects in relation to our customers, such as identification and
introduction of potential customers of pitch control systems and
the maintenance of business relationship in relation thereto. It
is also expected that the presence of Mr. Li in our Board is
beneficial to our Group’s business development, particularly in
view of his connection with customers and/or potential
customers of our Group, which was developed in the course of
his previous employment as his previous employer was a
business partner of such customers and/or potential customers
of our Group. Mr. Li has been devoted to our Group's affairs
since his appointments including contributing to our business
network extension by introducing and attending meetings with
potential customers, providing strategic advice as well as
attending board meeting and related affairs, and is expected to
devote one to two days per week for our Group’s affairs during
his tenures.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEHLT(BLL) 645 RZT==F
NAZ+=ZBEZTAEHTEST - BLITR
ARV BEE T EEAE0FLR - KEZ
T — — F # ¥ EWorld Hero International
Limited W BEENBE WR_ZTZ=FF_"F
——FEIRBRRAANEENBEE -

BELTREE2EENRHE MEBRLEDN
MK o

12 Zr M LaGuardia Community CollegeE{& 84
BEERREERETEEREIEEH -

FHEEETERE]D 605 R_T_TF=
ATNBEZEERINITES -

R-BPEF-AE-T-TF+=A Tk
ERTEREARATEESREE - AT
——F-AR FREREMEEREERA
ARERIEE -

FRER-NANOFLABTHEETZE
REBEBREX-

FRETBRRARASEER MNELRHRE
BRER LEEABEFT @ flYe ksl
ANERZHAREEREPREREETEN
EBEE - AHFAEEREZTENAG
HAKBEXGERARN  LERZRIIRBHE
REAEX (REEERERP R/ HEEEFH
EBBRH)BROBRBEAEERTP R/ REE
BEPREIMBGR B BEREUR  FRE—
BEEARAKEER  SREEBBNGBNR2NE
EEFHNERRAEBEERER RHBKE
RANZ2NEFS SR LAMEE  AHMRNME
NG EZEGERN—ZEMBEFHEREEREER
=V

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Ms. Hung Pui Yu (“Ms. Hung”) (#t{f¥i), aged 49, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
2 December 2022. Ms. Hung is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Ms. Hung has more than 20 vyears of audit experience.
Ms. Hung is the founder and managing director of Talent
Power CPA Limited. She was an Audit Partner of Zenith CPA
Limited. She was also an Audit Senior Manager at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu.

Ms. Hung holds degrees in Bachelor of Arts (major in
accounting) from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. Hung
is a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Kang Jian (“Mr. Kang”) (BR#), aged 61, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 4 September
2020. Mr. Kang is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Kang has more than 20 years of experience in strategic
management, marketing management and investor relations
management for large state-owned and multinational
companies. Mr. Kang served as a regional manager of
Canadian Tucows Inc. from April 2000 to March 2003. He was
a global business development manager of the department of
automation system of the automation & drives group and the
director of strategic development and customer relations of the
strategic marketing department at Siemens Ltd., China from
February 2004 to July 2009 and vice general manager and the
secretary of the board of Beijing Jingneng Clean Energy Co.,
Limited (At R R EEBE REERE HIRMH B R A A]), a joint stock
company incorporated in the PRC whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange in 2011 (stock code: 00579),
December 2009, and has retired in 2023. Mr. Kang is a senior
project manager of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the People’s Republic of China.

since
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Kang received a bachelor’'s degree in international trade
from Beijing University of Technology (3t R T K 28) (formerly
known as the First Branch of Renmin University of China (-
AR KEE—5R)), which subsequently merged with Beijing
University of Technology in July 1988. Mr. Kang received a
master’'s degree in business administration from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute in May 1999.

Mr. Li Shusheng (“Mr. Li”) (FE7F), aged 60, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 4 September
2020. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Li has more than 18 years of experience in wind power
industry. From January 2006 to January 2008, Mr. Li served as
a general manager of CECEP Wind-power Investment
Corporation Co., Ltd. (FEFRER HEBHREBR A F); From
January 2008 to June 2010, Mr. Li served as a general
manager and chairman of CECEP Wind-power Investment
Corporation Co., Ltd. (FEFRER HEBHREBR A F); From
June 2010 to October 2018, Mr. Li served as a chairman of
CECEP Wind-power Investment Corporation Co., Ltd. (FF &I sEE
NEERMHER DB, a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601016) which is mainly engaged in
development, investment, management, construction, operation
and maintenance of wind power projects.

Mr. Li received his executive master of business administration
at Tsinghua University in July 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Bing, aged 35, was appointed as a technical manager
in May 2021 and is mainly responsible for designing various
types of energy storage project solutions and developing energy
storage energy management systems and cloud platforms. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Liu Bing served as an intelligent
microgrid professional of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited — China Resources Intelligent Energy from
February 2018 to April 2021
investment calculation, business model design and project
implementation of energy storage in investment calculation,
business model design and project implementation in different
application scenarios. From August 2016 to February 2018,
Mr. Liu Bing served as a model algorithm engineer of Ming
Yang Intelligent Energy Company Limited, where he pioneered
the earliest batch of business models and technical solutions for
wind power distribution and storage projects in the PRC. Mr.
Liu Bing graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in July 2015 with a master’s degree. He
graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in July 2013 with a
Bachelor’s degree.

and was responsible for

Ms. Wu Qiong (“Ms. Wu”) (518), aged 55, was appointed as
the financial officer since she joined our Group in November
2015. Ms. Wu is primarily responsible for managing the
finances of our Group.

Ms.
management.
financial officer of Nanjing Powder Metallurgy Factory (F & )
KB4 M) from December 1991 to December 1996 and
Nanjing Boteng Powder Metallurgy Co., Ltd* (F & 18 & ¥ KA
® B R AF]) from January 1997 to May 2002 where she was
responsible for wage and cost accounting, and current-account
management.

Wu has more than 20 years of experience in finance
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Wu was a

From March 2003 to April 2015, Ms. Wu was the financial
manager of Shanghai Nature Power Technology Co., Ltd. (L&
MR ENRFBRAQF]), where she was primarily responsible
for day-to-day financial management and cost control.

Ms. Wu graduated from the Open College of China Communist
Party School (Ff i RER EEZT) with a bachelor's degree
in December 2000. Ms. Wu obtained a certificate of
intermediate accountant in May 2002.
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Mr. Liu Zhixin (“Mr. Liu”) (217 {8), aged 36, was appointed
as our deputy general manager of procurement in October
2015. He is primarily responsible for procurement and supplier
management.

From August 2012 to July 2013, Mr. Liu served as an
after-sales service engineer at Jinan Guolong Tester Co., Ltd.
(Em B EABRE AR AF]), where he was primarily responsible
for after-sales service and technical support. From July 2013 to
September 2015, Mr. Liu served as a process engineer at Jinan
Youli Electrical Equipment Co., Ltd. (B EFN ERKXKERXRER
R 2 7]). He was mainly responsible for developing and
stabilizing production process.

Mr. Liu received his certificate in mechatronics from Weifang
College of Science and Technology in July 2012.

Ms. Zhou Lingyun (“Ms. Zhou"), aged 39, was appointed as
our deputy manager of production since October 2015, and she
is responsible for operations, production and quality
management. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhou served as an
exposure worker at Wuxi China Resources Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd (%85 % B EFAMRAF) from July 2006 to September
2008, a subsidiary of China Resources (Holding) Co., Ltd. (Z£H
(£B®)EMRAR]). From August 2011 to September 2012,
Ms. Zhou served as a manager of the quality inspection
department at Jiangyin Aikesen Communication Material Co.,
Ltd. (IR EMZRBEMHER A A).

Ms. Zhou received a bachelor’s degree in electric
automatization from Southeast University in January 2012. She
obtained a certificate of accounting profession in February

2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXRERBE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or
“Director(s)”) is pleased to report to its shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving good corporate governance
standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
principles and practices should emphasise accountability and
an increase in transparency which will enable the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders,
suppliers, employees and the community to have trust and faith
in the Group to take care of their needs, enhance corporate
value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance
its transparency and accountability.

investors, customers,

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of
the Company’s corporate governance practices. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions under the CG Code (as amended
from time to time) during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Culture and Value

The Company focuses on the comprehensive service of new
energy electric power industry and committed to providing
better solutions and services for global new energy applications.
Integrity and compliant operation are the foundation of
corporate development. The Company strictly abides by the
bottom line of compliance, advocates honest operation,
continuously improves various compliance management systems,
provides a solid guarantee for the sustainable development of
the Company, and drives partners to fulfill their compliance
responsibilities with their own compliant operation, so as to
create a healthy and honest operating environment.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Group has a whistleblowing channel in place to support
employees and other contacts, such as customers or suppliers,
to anonymously raise their concerns with the Audit Committee
about any possible improprieties. The Group also maintains a
smooth channel for reporting anti-corruption complaints, against
unfair competition.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own Code
of Conduct for securities transactions conducted by relevant
Directors. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and each of the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company also has written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for its employees who are likely to
be in possession of inside information relating to the Company
and its securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and takes decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board during the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report are
as below.

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Liguan Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff (Chief executive officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Hao
Ms. Cheng Li Qin

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Hung Pui Yu

Mr. Kang Jian

Mr. Li Shusheng

The biographical information of the Directors and the
relationships among the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 24
of this annual report.

An updated list of the Directors with their respective roles and
functions is available on the websites of HKEx and the Company.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified
corporate communications that disclose the names of Directors.

in all

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge
of the Company, there has been no financial, business, family,
or other material/relevant relationship(s) among the Directors.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board meets at least four (4) times a year, and notice
and agenda of at least fourteen (14) days is given for regular
board meetings, and reasonable notice is given for other board
meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for discussion.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRSE

EEEAR
RBEE-_Z_NE+_-_A=1+—BILEERK
HEAFHRBH F=SEKXNOT -

BITES
BE2EE(ZE)
REBEREE(TTHAZ)

EBTES
FREEE
BEHuL

BIAFEPITES
AW B 22 £
B @ 5 &
FEFEE

EENEEERRESFZRANBERANANFE
BEBE24EEENAREEE| -

ARRZEMEFRECHRNABRARAR
A E PR TESAG MG - K
NRAEMBHAESFHEANAREAT B
RBIIFATESNS D -

BRAFERAWBEEIN  BARRIAARM  EF
ZEBENE XK KBIEMERHH

BAR -

EFEREEZREEHLURES
th % 5C 8%

EFEEHTFARZLNOR  ENEH
BARBERE AR HA T HOHRE R A
FES MEMFAEFSERRRHAEA
M- MEEEHEREHRIEETEETAS

G

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER




Corporate Governance Report

73
ME
il
aj
it
Df

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient details in respect of matters considered by
the Board and committees and the decisions reached, and are
kept by secretary of the meetings. Final version of these minutes
are available for inspection by Directors.

Whenever a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict
of interests which is considered by the Board as material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution.
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A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the BHEEHERBEE_ZT_WNF+_A=+
Board meetings and the respective Board committees meetings — HBIFFERITHNEEZEEZNREEZLE
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below: EEHMLEEMEBEHIIWNT ¢
Attendance/Number of Meeting(s)
HEiLs ERYE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors EEpga Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BEXg B%EEE HWESE REZZEEE BREXE
Cheng Liguan Richard EEE 4/4 N/A 1”1 11 1”1
i
Cheng Li Fu Cliff EER 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TEA TEA TEA
Li Hao & 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
TEA T#EA TEA
Cheng Li Qin EEE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1Al
A iE N iE A T iE A
Hung Pui Yu 1 5 4/4 212 A 1/1 1/1
Kang Jian FZ 4/4 212 N/A N/A 1/1
TEA TEA
Li Shusheng =5 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 11

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the chairman of the
Board and the independent non-executive Directors met at least
once without the presence of other executive and non-executive
Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The position of chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) is
held by Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and the position of chief
executive officer is held by Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff. Mr. Cheng
Liguan Richard is the younger brother of Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff
and Ms. Cheng Li Qin. The Chairman is primarily responsible for
the overall strategic planning and development of our Group
and overseeing the financial management and planning of our
Group. The chief executive officer is primarily responsible for
overseeing the daily operations and overall general management
of our Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times
met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received written
annual confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The
non-executive Directors) are appointed for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date or date of
appointment, subject to termination on certain circumstances

non-executive Directors (including independent

as stipulated in their respective service contracts and letter of
appointment.
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All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings. Under the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The Company’s amended and restated articles of
association also provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors can bring independent
judgment to the decision-making process of our Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’'s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

advice
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to management
team.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed
on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training by
attending various seminars and trainings. Besides that, all of
the Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard, Mr. Cheng
Li Fu Cliff, Mr. Li Hao, Ms. Cheng Li Qin, Ms. Hung Pui Yu,
Mr. Kang Jian and Mr. Li Shusheng have read news updates and
publications regarding relevant rules & regulations.

Management of the Company also provides regular updates
to the Board so as to enable the Board to make informed
assessments of financial and other information put before it for
approval and to discharge their duties.

Corporate Governance Report
PEERBRE

SEENARARBRSEEOE BB
B -

E=ZeREMAEASTENARRE ERFR
AABBREE KBELREE ABEELER
REE EXXZ(LERAETLRMETHR
Z) MBEH ZEEERHMEALES
H-BHATEFERR HBERBAXRAT
BREEREENBRENERENTEREME
BKaE&-

ARRCHEZRRSREEERCXASHME
mHEMEZRFRLCHFEENEETLSRA
BEEERR - RERARBES S FETR

EEREERERE

E=EREMEERRLEE  UEAMETH
BE UHREEBESREFSIEHANBERIEH
B R

RARSBEREELEBAEIRE B
BAARREE REBEE_T-_NF+=A=+
—HIEFE EEHER BALEETHIE
REFI - REETEHESEINCEERT
AIEC1AESFRIESC o hoh - 2B EF (AR
Bak4d BRBRELS THE4s BREHLK
T oMLzt BREERTEALE)E
BIEA AR RGO 8 &35 B R R

ARRERENRAEESRHTPEHREH
NEEEERE MG REMERIELAB
AP METTERER

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER




N
o
=
©
o
=
Q
=L
0}
(A

overnance Report

Upon the appointment of a new Director, the Company will
provide a letter of appointment to the Director, stating the
key terms and conditions of their appointment. As part of the
onboarding procedures, newly appointed Directors are given
briefings and orientations, and shall participate in continuous
professional development programmes each year.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board. The summary of the
mechanisms is set out below:

()

(ii)

(iii)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-third
of its members being Independent Non-executive Directors
(or such higher threshold as may be required by the Listing
Rules from time to time), with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or related financial
management expertise. Further, Independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to Board committees as required
under the Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure
independent views are available.

accounting or

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
nomination policy with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors,
and is mandated to assess annually the independence of
independent non-executive Directors to ensure that they
can continually exercise independent judgement.

Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are entitled to seek further
management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.
A Director (including independent non-executive Directors)
who has a material interest in a contract, transaction or
arrangement shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any Board resolution approving the same.

information from the
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established

namely, the

with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders of the Company upon request. The list
of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Corporate Information” on page 4 of this annual
report.

Each committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties, shall independent
professional advice to perform its responsibilities.

and where necessary, seek

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee consists
non-executive Directors, namely Ms.

of three Independent
Hung Pui Yu, Mr. Li
Shusheng and Mr. Kang Jian. Ms. Hung Pui Yu is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, reviewing our Group's financial information, overseeing
our Group’'s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and performed the following main tasks: (1)
Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
(2) reviewed and discussed the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group with the
management of the Company to ensure that the management of
the Company has performed its duty to have effective systems.
The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and the discussion with the
management of the Company regarding adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function etc.; (3) reviewed the compliance with accounting
standards, Listing Rules, legal and statutory requirements in
relation to financial reporting; and (4) made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results announcement and annual report
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
being two independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Li
Shusheng, Ms. Hung Pui Yu and one executive Director namely
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard. The majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Li Shusheng is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
incompliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, making recommendations to the
Board on our Group'’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior managements’ remuneration, on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy and on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management (upon consultation with the
Chairman and/or Chief Executive) and to review and/or approve
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee has held one meeting and performed the following
main tasks: (1) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; (2) reviewing the emoluments of the
executive Directors; (3) reviewing the remuneration policy and
structure (including any performance-based remuneration) for
all Directors and senior management; (4) assessing performance
of executive directors and approving the terms of executive
directors’ service contracts; and (5) reviewing and/or approving
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines the
remuneration of the Directors with reference to their individual
skills, knowledge, responsibilities, performance and contribution
to the Group, the performance of the Group, and the prevailing
market conditions.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band
are set out below.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, being
two independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Hung
Pui Yu, Mr. Li Shusheng and one executive Director namely
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard. The majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The Company has established the Nomination Committee
in compliance with the CG Code. The principal duties of
the Nomination Committee reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures
for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors.

include

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee has held one meeting and performed the following
work: (1) reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the Board
and achievement of objectives pursuant to the board diversity
policy and effectiveness of the board diversity policy and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
and (2) considering the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the nomination of directors, the procedure, process
and criteria to be adopted for the purposes of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship, and shall
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular, the chairman and the chief executive. When
assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as the
qualifications, skills, integrity, experience and the amount of time
and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her
duties and responsibilities will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In the case of independent non-executive directors, they
must further satisfy the independence criteria set out within Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of candidates should
ensure that diversity remains a central feature of the Board,
a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to
professional skills, regional and industry experience, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity and
length of service would be considered in accordance with the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee will report annually on the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy. In designing the Board’s composition and
selection of candidates, Board diversity has been considered from
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural
and education background, ethnicity and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on merits and the contribution
which the selected candidates are expected to bring to our
Board.
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The Company recognises the importance of gender diversity at
the Board level and shall continue its endeavours in identifying
suitable female candidates in respect of the Board. As of the
date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven members,
including two female Directors and five male Directors with a
balanced mix of knowledge skills, and experiences in renewable
energy, environmental protection, engineering, business
management, accounting and finance, strategic, marketing
and investors relations management. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors who have different industry
backgrounds, including accounting, strategic management,
marketing management, investor relations management and the
wind power industry. Furthermore, the Board has a relatively
wide range of ages, ranging from 49 to 66 years old.

Regarding the target of achieving further diversity at Board level,
the Company will endeavor to maintain not less than one (1)
female director. The Company will continue to look for suitable
female candidates at the Board and workforce levels to achieve
further diversity.

Similarly, the Company also follows the gender diversity principle
in the workforce. As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 160
employees in total, with 5.63% of our senior management and
31.25% of our total workforce being female. Further information
on the gender diversity at workforce levels is set out on page
106 to 107 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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As no corporate governance committee has been established, the
Board is responsible for, among after things, formulating and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Group and making recommendations, monitoring the
compliance of legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and reviewing
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosures
in the annual report. The corporate governance report has
been reviewed by the Board in the discharge of its corporate
governance function. Further, the Company has adopted the CG
Code and will comply with the code provisions in the CG Code.
The CG Code sets out principles of good corporate governance
in relation to, among other matters, directors, the chairman and
chief executive officer, board composition, the appointment,
re-election and removal of directors, their responsibilities and
remuneration and communications with shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or losses.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading management
team and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Company has engaged an independent internal control
advisor to perform a review on our overall internal control
procedures, which includes financial reporting, operations,
compliance and risk management. During the review, the internal
control advisor recommended remedial actions in relation to
weaknesses or deficiencies identified during the review process.
The internal control advisor also performed a follow-up review
after we had adopted their suggested measures, and no material
deficiency has been identified.

In addition, the Company has various internal guidelines, written
policies and procedures to monitor and alleviate the risks
arising from our daily operations. The Company Directors and
management closely monitor the implementation and assess the
effectiveness of these guidelines and measures which are crucial
to the Company business sustainability.

The Company has developed system of internal control and risk
management for reviewing and maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company.

The Company has not established a separate internal audit
department; instead, an external consultant was to review
the Group’s internal control and risk management system and
support the Board in assessing the effectiveness of such system
annually.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal control review findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for
the year ended 31 December 2024, and considered that such
systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
Inside Information, and the Group regularly reminds its Directors
and employees about due compliance with securities dealing
restrictions as set out in the Model Code and other applicable
rules and regulations.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ZNYNCIIRE - AR R A ko k- R
2HREF(ERVBHRE B2 AR KAR
ER)ETEE -EESHHE ANEFER
NHBSERTHERNORBEITEEZMN
it e NERE IR ERMRARFRZNE
2 RETREERS  UEZFRBEMNERL
E °

SN RABHAESEAMES  EEBEK K
B AEZEMBRERMANAELLEELNEA
@ o ZEHSI RERE AR RBNEBAFELE
AEEZEEE Nt ARAEFKEERER
VBT EERBRALFHEARL -

AR BB B A R T 0 ) PO B B 4 A
BIETPE B KRR E R ST - DAR R
HRANFAE -

RAFWERIBINANFEF T ML
BIHEERRIASRENABEERERE
EHE YREETESFHEEARIENAXN
MR S HF o

HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=+—HALFE EF
CHEZZEEIRTYEREERERA
HEERTERRTREREE R AP EEZE
B (REMK 2ERARER) RAEZSH
BIZ2BRLRSH FERNIVAETBEHRE
MR UWREBTER KR EAEE
i

MRHBWE
AEBCRBELRERECBRERANE
BE Y EHEBEEFRESREEYTEE
FRIREMERRAREOBRINES XS
PR =

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



The handling and dissemination of inside information are carried
out through appropriate internal identification, analysis, review
and reporting process. In compliance with disclosure obligations
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules,
inside information is disclosed in an equal and timely manner.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 148 to 154.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to RMB1,090,000
and RMB300,000 respectively. An analysis of the remuneration
paid to the external auditor of the Company, KPMG, in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2024 is set out below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Following the resignation of Ms. Tang Wing Shan Winza as
the joint company secretary and Mr. Pan Honghuang as the
company secretary of the Company on 28 February 2024 and
31 August 2024 respectively, the Company engaged Ms. Hoo
Mei Fung, a supervisor of Conyers Corporate Services Limited
("Conyers”), as the company secretary and one of the authorised
representatives of the Company with effect from 31 August
2024. Conyers' primary contact person at the Company is Ms.
Wu Qiong, the financial officer of the Group, who would work
and communicate with the company secretary on the Company’s
corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have a dividend policy with a
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Declaration and payment
of dividends is subject to the discretion and recommendation
of our Directors, depending on our results of operation, cash
flows, financial position, statutory and regulatory restrictions on
the dividends paid by us, future prospects, as well as any other
factors which our Directors may consider relevant. We are a
holding company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. Any final dividends for a financial year will be subject
to Shareholders’ approval upon our Board’'s recommendation.
Payment and amount of any future dividend will also depend on
the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries. PRC
laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit for the
year calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which
differ in many aspects from the generally accepted accounting
principles in other jurisdictions, including IFRS. PRC laws also
require foreign-invested enterprises to set aside at least 10% of
its after-tax profits, if any, to fund its statutory reserves, which
are not available for distribution as cash dividends.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with its shareholders through various
communication channels. To safeguard shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolution(s) are proposed for each
substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual director. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules, and the Company ensures that the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and any questions from shareholders on voting
by poll are explained and addressed. Poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AT THE REQUEST OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

There is no provision allowing the Company’s shareholders to
put forward new resolutions at general meetings under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands or the amended and
restated articles of the Company. The Company’s shareholders
who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.

For Shareholders’ right to nominate candidates for directors,
please refer to “Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director” on the website of our Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders of
the Company may send written enquiries to the Company, the
contact details of which are contained on the website of the
Company (www.natureenergytech.com).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company is endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings.

At the annual general meeting, directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholder Communication
Policy to ensure that its shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed and the
Board is satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of
such policy, having considered the communication channels in
place between itself and its shareholders to allow the Company
to disseminate information and receive feedback effectively.
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AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF EsTER A

ASSOCIATION
By a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of REARFAR T _MNFNA-+EHRTH

the Company held on June 27, 2024, the Company amended MREBEEAE® F@BHERAZR KA FE (WA
and restated its articles of association in order to comply with FIREFHBHERME] - LFE R ERE
the latest legal and regulatory requirements, including the REERT BEAR-_ZE-_=F+_-A=+—
amendments made to Chapter 2 to the Listing Rules regarding H4AMK ETRBIF2EGHIUE 757N EM

the electronic dissemination of corporate communications which R BBAMER] - TBEBTREAE : (WBEED
took effect on 31 December 2023. The major amendments are AIBAAEASE IR AAR KRS &

(1) to provide corporate communications may be disseminated to & 18 R P 7 AR 72 &) 48 U K2 Bt 22 T 49 b E B
shareholders of the Company through various means, including 1 : MQEFHLEEFENHMEEER I

but not limited to, by publishing it on the Company’s website R# E#i{E ] R H M A E & E L A E
and the website of the Stock Exchange; and (2) to update {&7] e

and tidy up definitions and other references, and to make

consequential amendments in line with the above amendments

and other housekeeping amendments.

The Company’s Articles of Association is available on the 7N B H)#H 4% = 12 48 B AT A AN 2 7] X B 2 B
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. MU E B -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE-HERERHRSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Report”) is an environment, social and
governance (“ESG"”) report prepared and issued by China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited in compliance with
the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and its
Appendix C2 Environmental,
Guide of the Stock Exchange.

Social and Governance Reporting

The Report summarizes the ESG work of China Nature Energy
Technology Holdings Limited in financial year 2024, mainly
including the environmental and social issues concerned by the
stakeholders and related key performance, so that stakeholders
can better understand the Company’s sustainable development
concept, related measures and performance.
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Reporting Principles

The Report complies with the reporting principles of the ESG
Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange. Its environmental and
social strategies and objectives are
disclosed in various chapters of the Report. The preparation
process of the Report follows the provisions and reporting
principles of “comply or explain” as set out in ESG Reporting
Guide, including:

management policies,

It determines the issues of stakeholders that need to be
addressed in the Report through a materiality analysis,
and focuses on reporting the matters related to
environment, society and governance that may have
material impact on investors and other stakeholders.

BRBRMDNHEEAREHER D EFEEH
EMEE THAMESGEEAIEHIRES
REMBEAELERZENERLETE

BOER -

Materiality
EEN

The content reflects
objective facts, discloses
challenges and efforts in
sustainable development,
and discloses ESG indicators
involving positive and
negative information. Its
content reflects objective
facts, discloses challenges
and efforts in sustainable
development, and discloses
all ESG indicators involving
positive and negative
information.

Reporting
Principles

E R Al

Balance
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Quantification

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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It continuously records and monitors environmental and
social indicators related to its operations, discloses key
quantitative performance indicators and gives illustrations on
the implications of the indicators with explanations on the
calculation basis and assumptions through customized data
collection tools. Unless otherwise stated, the Report provides
the environmental and social performance data for the three
years ended 31 December 2024, so as to present the annual
performance changes and lay the foundation for setting
future environmental and social performance targets.

BRTHECEBRETRE BFECHEREREH
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It explains the implications
of the key quantitative ESG
performance indicators
disclosed herein, explains the
calculation basis and
assumptions; unless
otherwise stated, the
indicators and data
calculation methods used for
different reporting periods are consistent
in the Report to reflect the trend of
performance levels.

Consistency
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Scope of the Report

Business: The Report covers the scope of businesses of China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries,
which is consistent with the entities and businesses covered in
the annual report.

Period: The Report is a report on annual basis covering the
same period of the annual report (i.e. from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2024). Some of the contents in the Report may
precede or post-date this period due to the continuity or the
significant impact of the project.

Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and its Appendix C2 Environment,
Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange.

Social and

Definition
Unless otherwise specified in the Report:

o China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited is
referred to as “Nature Energy Technology”, “Nature”,
“Company”, “Group” or “we".

o The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is referred to
as the “Stock Exchange”.

o Environment, Social and Governance is referred to as

"ESG".

Publication of the Report

The electronic version of the Report can be downloaded from
the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
website of the Company (www.natureenergytech.com).

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD

The Board, as the highest decision-making body for the
Group’s ESG management, is ultimately responsible for the
Group's ESG management policy, strategy and reporting.
With the establishment of China’s “carbon peak and
carbon neutral” targets, the Group is fully aware of the
impact of ESG risks and opportunities on the stable,
healthy and sustainable development of enterprises, and
has taken various measures to promote ESG-related work.

The Board, through the General Manager Office, guides
the heads of various departments of the Group to form
an ESG working group, and authorizes the ESG working
group to assist it in coordinating, managing and
supervising ESG issues on the basis of clarifying its main
responsibilities, work guidelines and objectives. By
listening to the work reports of the ESG working group,
the Board continuously promoted ESG-related policies,
carried out material issues assessment, prepared ESG
reports, etc., and evaluated the progress of ESG work of
the Company and coordinated the implementation of
relevant resources to effectively address ESG risks and
opportunities.

Based on the external economic and social macro
environment and the Group's development strategy, the
Group conducts an annual materiality assessment of ESG
issues, arranges and manages material ESG-related issues
through the process of analysis, evaluation and review,
and actively learns from the practical experience of
mature international enterprises and industry leaders,
strengthens internal optimization, and seeks to integrate
the management model based on the ESG concept into
the business strategy, risk control management,
compliance and daily operation of the Company, so as to
create sustainable values for the Company and its
stakeholders.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The Group strives to uphold the ESG development
concept from top to bottom, from inside to outside, from
Directors, management and employees, takes ESG as an
important tool to improve the adaptability of business
development, continues to integrate sustainable
development elements into business operations, further
improves the Group’s internal control mechanism, and
establishes a sustainable business model to ensure that
our enterprise pays attention to social responsibility and
environmental
benefits, so as to achieve coordinated development of
economy, society and environment. By strengthening the

protection while pursuing economic

optimization of the internal governance system, the Group
has continuously improved the corporate governance level
and comprehensive competitiveness, and created more
sustainable value for shareholders, customers and society.

The Board will continue to perform its duties, give full
play to its leadership, seize global opportunities of
sustainable development, and continuously improve the
ESG level of the Group. The Group sets scientific and
reasonable ESG objectives based on the actual situation of
the Company, which are closely related to the sustainable
development of the Group’s business, and continuously
improve its environmental and social performance to
conform to the development trend of the times. With the
important goal of creating long-term value, the Board
promotes business development strategies, formulates
policies, measures, quantifiable goals and forward-looking
statements on material issues of ESG, regularly reviews
the achievement of ESG work objectives, urges to make
effective improvements in management optimization and
cost-effectiveness, and approves ESG-related information
disclosure.

The Group will disclose in detail its supervision of ESG
matters,
related objectives and progress review, and the progress
and effectiveness of key issues through the annual report.

ESG management policy and strategy, ESG

The Report has been reviewed and approved by the Board
before publication.
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ABOUT NATURE

The Group specializes in providing integrated services for
the new energy power industry, focusing on the two core
industries of energy storage and wind power pitch control
system. The Group is a wind power and pitch control
system solution provider — mainly engaged in the
research and development, integration, manufacturing and
sales of high-voltage pitch control systems, as well as
providing custom integration services for major
components of pitch control systems and wind farm
operation and maintenance. Meanwhile, the Group, as a
smart energy solution service provider, is dedicated to the
investment, integrated solution provision, product
development, integration and manufacturing of integrated
energy service projects such as photovoltaic energy
storage, wind energy storage, thermal energy storage, and
smart microgrid for cold and hot power. Our focus on the
new energy power industry aims to foster development
for businesses and contribute to society, striving to be a
trusted manufacturer of new energy equipment.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no
significant changes in its ownership, nature and supply
chain.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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2.1 Business System
To continuously promote the growth and
development of its two core businesses of wind
power pitch control systems and energy storage, the
Company has set up 5 business bases in China,
which have been fully put into operation.

Wauxi City,
—@ Jiangsu
LR

21 ¥BER
REFEEEREEZ TG R 5N
BEMAZODEBNBERMER A
AIERBIARERIIWESE A ANFER
iy WEREKRAEE

R&D, production and sales center of pitch control system
BERGARHE EE HEPL

Integration and sales center of energy storage equipment

R RE R EEER D

After-market operation and maintenance center of wind power

EERTIHERD D

Shenzhen,
—@ Guangdong
BEERFEY

Energy storage & R&D center

R BEHT R D

Integrated Energy System Solution Service Centre
RAERRRGBRAT ZRBEH L

Integrated Energy Project Investment Centre
FAERFREBRERL

Beijing
=

Energy Storage and Sales Centre

REEHE R L

Wind power &
energy storage

ABad

Shanghai
L

Management and R&D Centre
BRI DD

Lin Gol (Duolun),
—@ Inner Mongolia
ARTERBE(ZH)

Wind farm
EE]
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2.2

Corporate Culture

Corporate Mission: Carrying Forward the Spirit
of Hard Work,
Development

Striving for Long-Term

Core Values: Innovation, Practical, Enthusiastic,
Development

Corporate Spirit: Dare to Take Responsibility,
Brave to Make Attempt, Advancing with a
Determined Spirit, Strive for the Best

Corporate Vision: Green manufacturing and
development, committed to becoming a
trustworthy new energy equipment
manufacturer

Business Purpose: To create value for users,
opportunities for employees, and wealth for
society

Management Objective: To manufacture quality
products and pool professional teams; to create
a quality enterprise and establish a reputable
brand.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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2.3 Corporate Advantages

Based on the corporate mission of “carrying forward
the spirit of hard work, striving for long-term
development, and the governance concept of
sustainable development”, the Company has built a
management and technical core team with
comprehensive knowledge, rich experience, solid
foundation and excellent style of work, and has
created a unique industry advantage to be
continuously carried forward:

In the field of pitch control system, as one of the
pioneers in integrating hardware and software into
high voltage pitch control system, the Company
relies on the advantageous technology featuring
“integrated drive controller + permanent magnet
synchronous motor + super capacitor” and the
powerful manufacturing system and strict quality
control system to form a high quality and efficient
product design, production and delivery capability
and we are able to provide comprehensive and
systematic operation and maintenance services to our
customers. The Company has become one of the top
five pitch control system suppliers in China.

In the field of new energy storage business, the
Company relies on the integration technology of
power electronics, electrochemistry and power
grid support — collectively known as the “three
electricities”
storage integrated system, provide global offerings
of core equipment and comprehensive solutions for
energy storage systems, including energy storage
modules, Packs, and energy management systems,
and strive to become the world’'s leading R&D,
manufacturing, sales and smart energy solution
service provider of smart energy storage software
and hardware products. We have established
research and development, testing, and marketing
centers in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Wuxi, and
other locations.

— to build a professional energy

2.3
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ENHANCING ESG GOVERNANCE
CAPABILITIES

As part of the new energy industry, the Group continues
to follow the development vision of “Harmonious
coexistence between human beings and nature”, and to
adopt the new development concept of “innovation,
coordination, green, openness and sharing” to direct all
aspects of the Company’s operation. While applying a
holistic approach toward technical innovation,
management improvement and business development, we
actively seek to join ESG international organizations and
industry organizations, study the integration of ESG
performance with executive compensation and
performance evaluations and the verification of ESG
reports, so as to constantly enhance our ESG governance
capabilities and continuously improve our ESG ecosystem
with greater efforts.

3.1 ESG Governance Guideline
The Company has been implementing the corporate
vision of “green manufacturing, green development,
and striving to become a trustworthy manufacturer
of new energy equipment”, focusing on the new
energy power industry and making a contribution to
the development of the enterprise and the society by
providing high-quality equipment. Adhering to the
pragmatic spirit, we unswervingly promote the
development of new energy industry. Through
continuous research and development and
innovation, we continuously optimize new energy
technologies, improve energy efficiency, actively
participate in the competition and cooperation in the
global new energy market, and contribute our
enterprise strength to building a cleaner and more
environmentally friendly world.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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In order to carry out ESG governance, the Company
insists on “scientific management, honest
management, continuous innovation and harmonious
development”, and takes the initiative to assume
corporate ESG responsibilities while creating
economic value and earning returns for
shareholders:

o Customers: quality assurance is vital to every
enterprise, customer first and continuous
improvement

o Employees: go ahead for a bright future, to
achieve common growth of both enterprise and
talents

° Environment: green manufacturing, harmonious
coexistence between human beings and nature

o Community: contribute to public welfare and
community services, support community
development

The Group deeply understands the central position of
environmental protection in achieving sustainable
development and regards it as an important part of
the Company’s strategy. We apply the concept of
environmental protection to all levels of the
Company, and are committed to promoting green
energy, improving energy efficiency, reducing
resource consumption and reducing pollutant
emissions, and establishing an all-round
environmental protection system by formulating and
implementing environmental protection strategies,
systems and measures to reduce the negative impact
of our operations on the environment and achieve a
win-win situation of economic and environmental
benefits, while ensuring compliance with and
enforcement of existing environmental protection
policies and laws. The Group highly recognizes the
concept of “we are all responsible for environmental
protection” and encourages all employees to actively
participate in environmental protection activities. The
Group also conveys this concept to its partners to
jointly promote the global sustainable development
process.
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The Group believes that employees, customers and
business partners are the key to the sustainable
development of the Company. The Company
attaches great importance to the protection of
employees’ rights and interests and the promotion of
their value. While ensuring a healthy working
environment for employees, it maintains normal
communication with employees to fully understand
their expectations and aspirations. In order to
continuously enhance employees’ sense of value and
belonging, the Group is committed to providing
employees with reasonable salary and benefits,
creating equal work opportunities, and helping
employees continuously improve their professional
ability and competitiveness by providing systematic
knowledge and skills training. Meanwhile, we have
established a clear career planning path for
employees, and provided clear guidance and support
for their career development, so as to continuously
enhance their value and expand their development
opportunities. The Company is committed to
maintaining good relations with customers, suppliers
and other partners. In daily operations, we maintain
close and benign contacts with all parties to ensure
the smooth progress of business cooperation.
Moreover, the management has established smooth
communication channels with all parties, exchanging
opinions, listening to suggestions and sharing
information such as the Company’'s development
philosophy and operation practice in a timely
manner. This open and transparent way of
communication helps to enhance mutual
understanding and trust, further consolidate and
deepen cooperative relations, and jointly promote
business cooperation and development.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERERE

AEERR/ET BEFMEBAE
BHEARAFEZRNEAR -2
ASEEREI#AEREMEER
o ERRAEIIRMHEERMNI®
RENRE REEETHERL
AR - DATE o R AR b 1P B B R A0 AR
F-RTHEKLRE THEERM
BER AKREZOIRSETREH
BENHMEERN  BIEFETIHE
e BARHERSICHANBER
ReiEdl - BEBE I TERIT B 8
EXREOMBEFH - AR RS
BETEY 7AW EHNBELERS
BE RETHNRBRERREHARE
MiE BT AEERABIE
B -HAREIZHR=H -RAIHD
REERER HERFAEBH
MRFEE EAEELHS 3
HEHRFETYAERMENRE - #
REBAENIBF®ETT  mHEEE
BIHREETEY THEBNBER
B ERRBRER BREZRLD
FRAIBERER ZEEESE
B-EZRAMBERNBRETASR
By 1 38 S 17 1tk 2 P ) B R ERE (T
#E—TEBENRCAIERE KA
HBXBEIFRER -

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER

1
@



®

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BT -

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

g

el
EREE

3.2 ESG Management Architecture

The Company actively integrates ESG management
into all aspects of its corporate operations and has
established and maintained an effective ESG
management architecture where the Board of
Directors is responsible for decision-making, the
management involves and various functional
departments of the working group collaborate, so as
to continuously communicate the Company’'s ESG
strategies, guidelines and
stakeholders into concrete actions and ensure the
of ESG

commitments to
implementation and advancement
governance.

The Board defines the strategic direction and
objectives of ESG management, incorporates them
into the overall strategic planning of the Company,
regularly reviews the progress of ESG management,
and ensures that relevant decisions are consistent
with the long-term development goals of the
Company.

The management actively participates in the daily
work of ESG management to ensure the
implementation of various strategies and policies.
They foster close cooperation between departments
to ensure the smooth allocation of resources and

execution of ESG practices.
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Working group come from different functional THE/NEREB QBRI AEEFT - ‘
departments of the Company and play a vital role in HEESGEBT RHEEZHEEMNE
ESG practice, and are responsible for the A rBEAEEBNESGREHIT  #
implementation of specific ESG strategies to ensure RABIMESGEARENEREE -
the effective implementation of the Company’s ESG —

The Board (ESG Decision-making Level)
EET(ESGREE)

commitments.

General Manager Office (ESG Implementation Level)

BMEBE (ESGEERE)
ESG Working Group
ESGI {E/NA
Business Procurement Technology Operation Finance HR QEHS
Center Center Center Center Center Center Center

8 75 REH L By AR B P 8 75 7R 0 AFEHL QEHSH /i

3.3 Stakeholders 3.3 FIIEHEHRES
The Company attaches great importance to the RAAREEERMNSHBINREE
attitudes and opinions of stakeholders, and regularly HER WEHBHEANKSHEST S
communicates with stakeholders, collects internal BWEANEER BB AE
and external opinions, understands the main AN E@ETRAG  WAZEF
concerns and expectations of stakeholders, and Allgk 2 ~ A% ) &9 R B #& F1l 2= 48
incorporates the requirements of stakeholders into BANERMARRAIHEERE
the Company’s sustainable development BITEzH - RAREOES TR -

management actions based on the principle of
“correcting them if mistakes are present and be
mindful in case of any mistake”, so as to respond to
the expectations of all parties as much as possible.

HEARERMBEERAERAT —T_NFEFR
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Maintaining effective communication with
stakeholders is a key component to continuously
improving ESG governance. The Company has
established diversified communication channels to
meet the needs of different stakeholders, including
but not limited to proactive information disclosure,
meetings, exchanges,
consultations, visits, survey and other means and
measures to report on the Company’s operation and
ESG governance achievements. We will understand
the expectations and requirements of our
stakeholders, actively listen to their suggestions and
opinions. We are committed to listening to the
opinions of all stakeholders and working hand in
hand with all stakeholders to jointly promote the
continuous progress and development of the
Company. By continuously improving and improving

announcements, seminars,

ESG governance, we look forward to creating
greater sustainable development value for
stakeholders.

Stakeholders

FIEHEEA A FERERE

Main Issues of Concern

ﬁﬂ SEBT A RB B BN
E%Eﬁ%%iﬁ%°$“ﬁ@
ZlbWBEREREE  UmET
ﬂﬂ SR NER  BRENR
REIBEERE ZMHEe AE
@‘X/ﬁ@‘ggﬁﬁg‘unnq i
FoAMESAMEBE  ERA
BRI MESGRE AR - R A Eié%
BN mAET N ERENR  BE
RRANZERTORZEER - &
MBEARERZIMNEHEBETNE
RoYEZNEHEETEFEE
KRB ARNFELESEER -
Lﬂﬁﬁh%ﬁﬁﬁBWﬁPﬁ
FIEfF RSB T BIEE ReyA]
FEERER-

Communication Channel

BERE

Shareholders and investors

o Anti-corruption

. Information disclosure
R RIEEE o N A& e

. % & [ ) &

° 2 b B 12

o k&5

° 1 5/‘\5':%

Corporate profitability
. Return on investment
o Risk management capability

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

General meeting

o Regular/irregular information
disclosure Investor
communication platform

° Official website, email,
hotline

e REKRE

s TH/TEHEEHERE

e REEHZEBYTA

e BB FBIH - AL
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Main Issues of Concern
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Communication Channel

Mz HEAFH FERERE BERE
Customer o Product safety and quality o Customer satisfaction survey
o Technology research and o Complaints and feedback
development and innovation channels
o Supply stability o Trade fair
o Performance ability o Client talks
o Customer privacy security o Customer exchange meeting
and information protection
S e Em¥XrHEEE s XEFWmEERAZE
o R EAIN e RFERMBEE
e HERTEM s TTXRES®
e EBAIRE s TEFEW
e XEFNBZEZHEEFEERE o ZTFIREG
Employees o Working stability o Employee performance
o Occupational health and evaluation
safety o Staff training
o Career development channel e Employee care activities
o Working atmosphere o Perfection of employee
employment and training
system
BT e IERRTEM e BIBAMEH
e RBIXRERHEZZE e BIHI
e BIXTRBE e EBIHWEEF

Suppliers and Partners

HEBRAIERH

e TH{FARE

o Stable cooperation
o Win-win cooperation
o Responsible supply chain

e REATE
« AfFHR
s BARMEHER

ETREABIHELS

Supplier code of conduct
Supplier ESG training
Transparent procurement
Supplier meeting
HrEmTAEL

f FE RIESGHE 3
k%t ER 8

HEE S &

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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Stakeholders
FIZEHRA A

Main Issues of Concern

FERMERE

Communication Channel

BERE

Government and
regulatory agencies

BURT & B2 & # 1R

Community

&

Industry Organizations

BEZ L

J Legal and compliant
operation

o Tax compliance

o Optimization of energy
structure

o Climate change mitigation
and adaptation

s AEEARKE

o AWM

O BLREIRAEE

s RIRB(LEREFRE

o Environmental protection

o Community construction

o Drive local economic
development

o REMR#E
e HEER
s WHEMAEERR

J Industry collaboration and
innovation

s EXWRAI
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o Accept supervision and
inspection

o Regular/irregular public
information disclosure

gy
HAREERE

o Construction of
environmental protection
system

o Public welfare and charity

o Volunteer service

e REREBRER

° NIEE=

m AR =

o  ERERF

o Association/society activities



3.4 Analysis of Material Issues

Issue Analysis

According to the requirements of the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange and its Appendix C2
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide, the Company analyzed and identified the
material issues of ESG for the year in combination
with the disclosure rules and development trends of
ESG at home and abroad, as well as the ESG
progress within our industry, and identified 18
material issues related to the Company.

Issue Assessment

The Company evaluated the importance of material
issues of ESG governance of the Company, and
identified 8 high-important issues, 8
medium-important issues and 2 low-important issues
in total by referring to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Stock
Exchange, drawing on the materiality issue analysis
method of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), and
combining the opinions and expectations of
stakeholders.

Issue Review
The identified material issues and material issues
matrix shall be submitted to the Board (ESG
decision-making level) for approval and
confirmation.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Importance

EEM
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3.5 Matrix of Material Issues 3.5 EEMEEERE

Material Issues

BEEMHE

High importance

Medium importance

TEEEM

Low importance

BEEEM4

o Construction of environmental management system
o Resource management

o Emission management

o Addressing climate change
o Employee employment

o Product liability

° Anti-corruption

o Customer service

e REEEBARER

e EBRER

e HIWER

s REHRERZL

e EBIRRE

e EmEME

e RENFS

s EPFPR®

o Talent training mechanism

o Occupational health and safety in production
o Employee compensation, welfare and care
o R&D innovation

o Intellectual property protection

o Supplier management

o Responsible supply chain

o Information security and privacy protection
e AT IEEKS

e REXREFRHELTIAE

e EBIFNMMEANERME

o HEEEAIFT

o HBERRE

e HEBER

e AEEHEHE

e FEELXTHALERE

o Public welfare and charity
o Volunteer service

e DNHBEE

o 5 FE AR 75
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3.6 Support the United Nations Sustainable 36 XFHABERERERERE
Development Goals
The Company supports the United Nations RABAERITE X Rl S B Al 5
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) with practical BERBRGSDGS) BREBER N
actions by integrating these goals into our DECELEELBET  MAL &
production and operational processes. Leveraging our XEENNEXHIREER
own strengths to promote sustainable development, WREZZ=ZFFAEREE &
we are committed to eradicating poverty, protecting IR R T E A= B R FE
the planet, and ensuring peace and prosperity for all AL o
by 2030.

SUSTAINABLE (3" A\ | ©
DEVELOPMENT Zan,

NOHUNGER GOOD HEALTH CLEAN DRINKING WATER
1 Nsng;vzm 2 e 3 AND WELFARE 4 j;‘g‘},[‘g‘“"“‘""“ 5 ?:‘;"J%;EQ"A“" 6Aunsmmﬂcuuaums
RERRSEL - . ARBARFERE

DECENT J0BS AND NDUSTRIAL INNOVATVEAND SUSTANABLECITY RESPONSOBLE
8 ECONOMIC GROWTH 9 FUNDAMENTALFACLITS 10 L 11 AND COMMUNITY 12 CONSUMPTION
EEIANERER ER AIFNERERE - TREAHIHE Aﬁuln mg:uﬂ;n
"

CLIMATE ACTIONS PARTNERSHIP THAT FACILITATE
13 EAD KT £H

1 7 ‘THE ACHEVEMENT OF GOALS
RERFRRNBHER

& 4
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SDGs
SDGs

Enterprise Action

EETH

o 7 Affordable and clean energy

o 11 Sustainable cities and
communities

o 12 Responsible consumption
and production

o 13 Climate action

o  TRBHEAMFRREIR
. MAFFE W ™ R A&
e NEEMEHEHEBEHELEE
. 13RARITED

° 9 Industry, innovation, and
infrastructure

o OE ¥ - BIFTE AT RIE

Clean energy construction

As a supplier of energy storage technology and pitch control
technology, the Company supports the reshaping of energy
pattern with practical business and technology research and
development, promotes the development of economical and
applicable clean energy, expands the benefits of clean energy
and enhances the sustainability of urban development. The
substitution of clean energy for traditional fossil fuels reduces
resource consumption and the pollution associated with the
use of fossil energies, decreases carbon emissions, mitigates
climate change issues, and slows the pace of global
warming.

AR ER

AR RME R Be il B B SR R I B i PR - A B R R 5
&ﬁ}ﬁﬂﬁ‘iﬁﬁéx)ﬁ%%i%ﬁ CHEBREERNGB /%auﬁ?*
CERBRERBELEE  BABMDEROATRFEL -
5,*% EREREGIEARER BAOBERBEIMEAREIRERS
PKE’JE P Vﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬂl ERRRELEE  BEDHERAK

Technology research and development and innovation

Through investment in technology research and development,
the Company has made in-depth exploration in the field of
energy storage and pitch control, developed innovative pitch
models in various scenarios, greatly improved the situation
that wind turbine assembly is limited by site, enhanced the
applicability of wind power equipment, and comprehensively
improved the layout of clean energy infrastructure.

17 i 3% 58 2 3

RARRBARMAEIRA  EREEHESFITHEHRAR
R ARZRIGETHEEAFKE  KEXNSERAKERER
HHREINER  RAREXEEAN  2ENEEEREE
IREMREBEMD ©
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Enterprise Action

EETH

° 1 No poverty

o 5 Gender equality

o 8 Decent work and economic
growth

e 1EEWR
° 5:|\$)DJ|J\/%
 SBEEIMEEER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Protection of employees’ rights and interests

The Company regards employees as the most precious wealth
of the enterprise, and sets up a perfect salary and welfare
system for employees to ensure the stability of their lives and
provide channels for their development and promotion. The
Company pays attention to protecting the rights and interests
of female employees in the workplace and is committed to
eliminating gender discrimination in the workplace.

ETHBRE

ARABEIRASEEREENTE  REZTEHNE THM
HEMNEBR REEIMAEREN REINEREZH

B35 R AR -

4. AT)EE

The Company strictly abides by various laws, regulations
and normative documents applicable to the production
and operation places of the Company, including the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China ({42 A
R &£ 1 B A 7 %)), the Audit Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({F#E ARLMEIFEHE)), the Internal
Audit Regulations of the People’s Republic of China ({/

AR R ERAEE ST R R R E N E S M PR
A S EERERRRBIEX - B
(PEARANMBERTNE) (FEARHK
MEERE) (FEARANMBEARE
AHEPD (P EARAMBRZAZ#R)E -
AR B E M E B ECR RREE 2
B (REBHLEBHHE) (REEER

&)
@

FEARKEMBE A EFEEEG)), the Civil Code of the EVE  TERAGE  AEBERARE
People’s Republic of China ((FRZE AR HEAME R X)), BHELNEGHE REMZEEEE
etc., and formulates, according to the nature of the e

business, the Company Confidentiality Management

System ({2 AR % & 12 %l E)), the Anti-fraud and

Reporting System ({fx %% #F £ 5 3 & E)) and the

Confidentiality Management Regulations ({{R% & 12 R

JE)), etc., to improve the Company system and ensure the

compliance of the Company’s management and operation

and protect the rights and interests of stakeholders.

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER
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4.2

Ti& ERMR S

Business Ethics

In the process of production and operation, the
Company abides by the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic (R EARZMNBER N EE
#% 3 %)) and the Anti-Monopoly Law of the
People’s Republic of China (¥ # A R 15 iz 2 &
7%)), gquides the business norms of the enterprise
with the principle of fair competition, and insists on
honest management, quality first and innovation, so
as to promote the healthy development of the
industry.

During the reporting period, the Company
conducted anti-monopoly and fair competition
training four times, covering 110 employees, with a
total training time of 8 hours in order to implement
the Company’'s business philosophy of fair
competition and improve employees’ awareness of
anti-unfair competition. Furthermore, the Company
aims to enhance the awareness of fair competition
among stakeholders through methods such as
customer interviews and communication, and the
implementation of “transparent procurement”,
thereby fostering healthy competitive development
within the industry chain.

Anti-Corruption

To prevent corruption and bribery incidents and to
create an environment of integrity, the Company has
formulated normative documents such as the
Anti-fraud and Reporting System and the Internal
Audit System. In order to thoroughly implement the
concept of integrity in management, emphasize the
importance of understanding anti-corruption risk
control and fundamentally
prevent corruption incidents, the Company regularly
conducts anti-corruption training for employees,
publicizes anti-corruption and bribery policies,
relevant laws and regulations and Company rules,
and creates a good atmosphere of sticking to the
ethical guidelines, integrity in practice and healthy
development, thus laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the Company.

among employees,

4.1

4.2
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The Company, through customer interviews and the
implementation of “transparent procurement”
among other methods, regularly supervises and
inspects business cooperation activities to guide
customers, suppliers, and other stakeholder groups
to act in accordance with laws and regulations. We
encourage our employees and partners to actively
report corrupt practices, ensuring that issues are
identified and addressed promptly.

In addition, the Company builds an anti-corruption
mechanism of “dare not be corrupt, cannot be
corrupt, do not want to be corrupt” by hiring a
third party to conduct an annual internal control
audit every year, setting up anti-corruption reporting
channels such as reporting hotlines, e-mails and
letters, and taking effective protection measures for
whistleblowers. During the past three reporting
periods, the Company had no legal proceedings
arising from corruption.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Table of Key Anti-corruption Performance

RERHREN—HX

Key Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022

LEE T B —g-mE -¥-=% -¥o-=

Number of corruption proceedings brought Case 0 0 0
against the issuer or its employees and
settled during the Reporting Period

ERAAHBETAREEIREVEESR 1
MBS RARRMH

Proportion of employees covered by % 31 31 100
anti-corruption training

REFEINEENE T A %

Length of time per employee participating Hours 0.5 0.63 1
in anti-corruption training per person

BETAAZEREFEIRE INSYON

Proportion of Board members covered by % 100 100 100
anti-corruption training

REFEINBENESTSKE LD %

Number of hours per Director participating Hours 2 2 2
in anti-corruption training per person

BEEADBEXREFEINEH INEE A

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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BIRWME

EN PRODUCTION AND OPERATION
Construction of Environmental Management
System

Environmental management concept

As a builder in the transition towards new energy,
the Company is acutely aware of the importance of
green production and low-carbon manufacturing.
Our
manufacturing and green development, committed
to becoming a trusted manufacturer of new energy
equipment”. We firmly believe in the development
philosophy that “green mountains and clear waters
are as valuable as mountains of gold and silver”,
and persist on the path of green development. We
strive to reduce the environmental impact of our
production and operations, actively responding to the
national strategy for
neutrality”. We are continuously improving our
environmental management system, optimizing the
organizational
management, and actively conducting environmental
protection-related training to ensure the
comprehensive implementation of environmental
management concepts throughout the Company. By
the financial year 2025, the Company’'s carbon
dioxide emissions per unit of industrial added value
will meet the targets set by the government, with an
anticipated recycling rate of waste exceeding 50%.

corporate vision is anchored in “green

“carbon peak and carbon

structure for environmental

5.

5.1
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Environmental Management System

The Company strictly abides by applicable laws,
regulations and normative documents such as
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FZE AR X MBI IRIFEREE)),
the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FEARKLFMBEREF
ZT{ESL)), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste ({7 2 A & 7B & 52 £ ¥
SERIRBIAIR)), the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Air Pollution
(R EARLMBE KRR SHEYEE)), and actively
responds to policy requirements such as the
Adaptation to Climate Change Strategy 2035, the
Implementation Plan for Carbon Peaks in Industrial
Sectors and the Jiangsu Provincial Implementation
Plan for Carbon Peaks. The Company promulgated
and implemented system documents such as the
Environmental Safety Monitoring and Measurement
Control Procedures, the Control Procedures for
Identification and Evaluation of Environmental
Internal and External Issues, the Energy and Resource
Control Procedures, the Energy Conservation
Management Regulations, the Waste Management
Regulations, the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention
and Control Procedure, etc., and established and
continuously improved the Company’s environmental
management system. In addition, the Company has
obtained ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental
Management System Certification.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Environmental management practice
The Company conducts
inspections,
resource use and emissions, promptly identifies and
addresses any anomalies, and controls the overall
level of our environmental management. According

regular environmental

self-monitors and records data on

to the Code of Practice for the Management and
Operation of Environmentally Friendly Equipment
formulated by the Company, we routinely maintain
the Company’s environmental protection facilities to
prevent any waste leakage and welcome supervision
from government departments to ensure that our
emissions meet regulatory standards.

Environmental protection training

In order to implement the Company’s environmental
protection concept, the Company organizes
employees to carry out environmental protection
improve the
management. During the reporting
period, the Company conducted 24 environmental

knowledge training to level of

environmental

training sessions, covering 70 employees, with a total
training duration of 60 hours.

Resource Management

Energy management

The energy used by the Company is mainly
electricity, and the Company attaches great
importance to the use and management of resources
in the process of production and operation, reducing
energy consumption per unit product and improving
energy utilization efficiency. As a builder of
reshaping the energy landscape, the Company aims
to promote clean energy transformation and efficient
energy use.

5.2
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The Company is committed to improving the
comprehensive utilization efficiency of energy, and
has formulated the Energy Conservation
Management Regulations within the organization.
We valuate the production process, monitor and
evaluate the energy consumption according to the
production process division, identify the abnormal
situation in time, record the energy consumption
trend, and formulate the overall solution of safe
energy use, scientific energy use and energy
conservation in a targeted manner, so as to improve
the energy management level and realize the
comprehensive energy saving value. In addition, in
terms of technological innovation, the Company
gradually promoted a smart energy management
system by adopting digital upgrading of production
lines, replaced high-energy consumption process
equipment with energy-saving equipment, and
continuously improved the energy efficiency of the
manufacturing process through technical
transformation and process optimization, as well as
the adoption of new energy-saving materials. In
addition, the Company has set an energy use target,
and strives to reduce the comprehensive energy
consumption per unit of industrial added value by no
less than 10% compared with the financial year of
2020 by financial year 2025. In order to achieve this
target, the Company regularly compares the energy
saving progress, so as to adjust the energy saving
strategy in a timely manner.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Table of Energy Consumption Performance

RERAN-—HER

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022

LB L L1 —$-mE =-%¥-=f o=

Total energy consumption kWh in'000s 177.78 323 209

REREREE FEFRE

Energy consumption intensity kWh/RMBO0'000 11.99 11.38 9.38
(RMBO0'000 revenue)

REE(BETWA) TRE/&T

AR

Consumption of non-renewable fuel Litre 3,200 1,600 6,897
(gasoline consumption of self-owned
vehicles)

TR BERHEE(BEERTHAE) N

Consumption of non-renewable fuel kWh 28,618 14,309 /
(gasoline consumption of self-owned
vehicles)

TR BERHEE(BEERTHAE) TRE

Consumption of non-renewable fuel (diesel Litre 2,486 1,200 /
consumption of self-owned vehicles)

TR BERHEE(BEEREBAE) NI

Consumption of non-renewable fuel (diesel kWh 24,226 11,693 /
consumption of self-owned vehicles)

TR BERHEE(BEEREBAE) TRE

Note 1: Non-renewable fuel consumption has not been
statistically disclosed in 2022.

Note 2: The vyear 2023 data

has been restated for

enhancing comparative purpose and more
advanced and updated scientific calculation
models and methodologies have been adopted.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

— T — —

Migh1: TAIBERMEE —T=
FRETHRAHE -

B a2 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

HREBELEBRENRERTE
BRMEFOHR EFTEHER M

TE A -E -

WES e

—FHEE



As an equipment supplier of clean energy wind
power generation, the Company focuses on the
comprehensive services of new energy power
industry, and is committed to providing better
solutions and services for global new energy
applications. The Company actively participates in
wind power industry activities and advocates the use
of clean energy. It not only provides high-quality
products and services for the wind power industry,
but also invests in the construction of clean energy
for wind power. The Lin Gol (Duolun) Wind Farm in
Inner Mongolia, which was invested and operated
independently by the Company, has been connected
to the grid for power generation in 2015, with an
installed capacity of 20 MW. In 2024, the power grid
of the Company’s wind farm reached 46.47 million
kWh.
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Table of Wind Power Generation

ANRER-HE

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
BERER Efu “E-ME Z—¥=-= —8¥-C
Wind power generation kWh in'000s 46,473 53,070 56,320
BAOEES & T R

Water resources management

The Company is well aware of the preciousness and
importance of water resources. In our daily
operation, we strictly follow the relevant regulations
on water resources management and use. Our water
supply comes from municipal sources, ensuring a
stable and reliable water supply without difficulties
in sourcing water. The consumption of water is
primarily for domestic use, including daily drinking
water for employees, the use of sanitation facilities,
and cleaning of departmental office areas. The
Company advocate the conservation of water and
promote water-saving measures in our daily
production and living practices by placing water-
saving slogans in offices and toilets to cultivate
water-saving habits among our employees.

KEREE
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Table of Water Resources Consumption

KEFRHE-HX

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
ENER EE i —T-_@mE Z—¥C-= —B==
Total water consumption m3 1,366 1,455 1,536
BREKE 3K
Water consumption intensity m3/RMB0’000 0.09 0.05 0.07
revenue
K8 E NFK/BT
AR
Proportion of total amount of recycled and % 0 0 13.48
reused water in the total water
consumption
KBEREBFAMASHEREKENLLA %
Packaging material management BEHHEE

The Company fully implements the rules and
regulations such as the Supplier Packaging
Specification, the Product Packaging Operation

Instruction and the Wooden pallet

Recycling

Incentive System Regulations, etc. Through the

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

unified and standardized requirements, the recycling
rate of turnover boxes and special material racks
used by suppliers can be improved, and the recycling
amount of finished product packaging can be
simultaneously improved, thus reducing the
generation of solid waste. According to the material
categories and characteristics of packaging materials,
they are divided into different categories such as
plastic, metal and wood, which are recycled and
reused respectively to reduce the adverse impact on
the environment.
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Table of Packaging Materials Used
BEMEER-BR

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022

ANER EE i —ET-_@mE Z—¥C-= —g-=

Total consumption of packaging material Tonnes 90.10 264.8 189.5
for finished products

EmBEmBEMHNERER M

Recycled packaging materials used for Tonnes 30.0 41.6 71.2
finished products

SRmMAEEMHNEKE M

Case: Recycling of pitch wooden pallets in
Hongyuan Factory

During the reporting period, the Company recycled
the pitch wooden pallets used in the production
process, and returned the wooden pallets to
suppliers, so as to improve the reuse rate of wooden
pallets and the overall resource utilization rate.
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Green office

In our day-to-day office operations, the Company is
fully committed to advancing the process of green
office practices. We set the air conditioning in office
areas to start at a designated temperature; reduce

the use of artificial

suffices for work needs; regularly

lighting when natural

light

inspect all

equipment at the office premises, and use more

energy-efficient office supplies,

avoiding the wuse of disposable items.

minimizing or
We also

recycle and process office waste collectively. By
adopting a networked OA system, we promote
paperless office operations and remote meetings.
Energy and water-saving tips are posted in public
areas to enhance employees’ awareness of energy

conservation. The Company advocates for green
commuting among employees, encouraging the use
of public transportation systems as much as possible

to reduce private car

use. We provide shuttle

services to and from major transit hubs for our

employees, aiming to

reduce carbon emissions

during the commute and actively promote the

construction of a resource-saving society.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5.3 Emissions Management 53 HEWMER O
Exhaust emission management BERFEREE
During our production and operational processes, RABIMAEEESBRET I EERE
there are no direct emissions of significant amounts EBRREER BREBRKRBERA o
of exhaust gas. The emissions of exhaust gas stem BITR BHEMAEESNUR -

from vehicle operation, with no other sources of
production emissions.

Table of Exhaust Emission

BRER—BX
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
BHIER B i —E-mNE =—F-= —g-=
Nitrogen oxide (NO,) kg 33.49 28.28 /
RAELY(NO,) TR
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.11 0.04 /
— &L HR(s0,) Tr
Particulate matter (PM) kg 3.95 2.67 /
T8 R Y1 (PM) Tr
Note: Exhaust emissions have not been statistically disclosed Mar: BEREEW —T - —FRETT
in 2022. BUETHREE -
Wastewater discharge management BEKFEREE
The water source of the Company is municipal water RNATAKIR AT K - £
supply, which is used in the process of office and AMEEEEBERERAKER
production and operation. The water use does not WAREAZERKEENSE2Y
generate pollutants requiring special treatment. It N REEREKGEM - I8 REKEE
does not involve the discharge of production BHE—EATHRER -

wastewater, and the discharge of domestic
wastewater is uniformly connected to the municipal
pipe network.

Table of Wastewater Discharge

EEKHER —EE xR
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
ERER Efu —EZlmE Z¥Z= —®¥-C
Wastewater discharge m? 1,366 605 /
BEKEBERE 3K
Note: Wastewater discharge has not been statistically Mzt : BEKBERE ZTZZ_FK#
disclosed in 2022. TTHRGTHEEE -

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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Solid waste management

Solid waste includes non-hazardous waste and
hazardous waste, which can be divided into
recyclable general waste and non-recyclable general
waste according to the nature of recycling; the
Company does not produce hazardous wastes in the
process of production and operation. The Company
strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of
Pollution by Solid Waste, and
formulates and implements the Environmental Safety
Monitoring and Measurement Control Procedures,
the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control
Procedures and the Waste Management Regulations.
In accordance with the Company’s rules and
regulations, waste generation is monitored,
recorded, and managed. Waste is treated
differentially based on its nature, with classification
labels posted to facilitate appropriate disposal or
recycling. Regular training sessions on waste
identification, hazards, and disposal methods are
conducted for our employees. The aim is to enhance
employees’ understanding of the characteristics and
potential hazards of waste and the correct methods
of disposal, boost their awareness of environmental
protection, and reduce injuries resulting from
improper waste disposal.

Environmental
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Table of Waste Discharge

RIE - HERERERE

BREMHER—ER
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
LEST L1 —®$-mE =-¥-=E o=
Total amount of non-hazardous waste Tonnes 96.50 300 250
generated
MESCREEENEE 73
Total amount of non-hazardous waste Tonnes/RMB 0.65 1.06 /
generated per million revenues million
BRELCNELNESEENEES M/ BB
AR
Total amount of hazardous waste Tonnes 0 0 0
produced
MELREERNEE i
Total amount of hazardous waste Tonnes/RMB 0 0 /
generated per million revenues million
BRELRELENEERENGEE M,/ B&T
AR
Note: The total amount of non-hazardous waste generated i BESEWELENEETEEY
per million revenues and the total amount of BENTEEEWNELENESE
hazardous waste generated per million revenues BEEWEE —T__FK#
were not statistically disclosed in 2022. TTHRATIRER -
Addressing Climate Change 54 FEHRMEEIL
Greenhouse gas emissions mEREHE

The Company actively responded to the policy
requirements such as “Carbon Peaking and Carbon
Neutralization” strategy, the Adaptation to Climate
Change Strategy 2035, the Implementation Plan for
Carbon Peaks in Industrial Sectors and the Jiangsu
Provincial Implementation Plan for Carbon Peaks,
integrated the concept of carbon reduction into
production and daily operation, reduced the use of
traditional fossil energy, increased the proportion of
clean energy use, and built the sustainable
development path of the Company.

TEARERREERAERAA
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The Company always upholds the concept of green

and
partners

environmental
development,

protection
and promotes

sustainable

to share

responsibility. In order to achieve this goal, we have
taken a series of concrete actions: choosing more

low-carbon and environmentally friendly

raw

materials and reducing the consumption of natural

resources,;

favoring products that have passed

environmental protection certification and can be
recycled to reduce the impact on the environment;

sharing our environmental protection
practical experiences with our

ideas and
partners,

and

encouraging them to build a green, low-carbon and
circular economic development model together, and

to work together in protecting our planet.

ARAPIERRFEZEREANARKE
BRES  WHBAEBH LR

FEEE-RTERE—BE &M

KRR T — R AEBTE  EEEM
EMRANRME - HOHBRE
REVERE  HARERKEBRRFRR
EHABARBRRMBENER A
PHRENEE  BRMANRRKE
CHEBRERIZFRAERH =
Biaf—REEse i @R

MEEBEZRRRA - BF TEBER
o

During the reporting period, the Company's total &%HEW RATEBER A2 (8[E
carbon emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) have —HHE D )BEKER=ERE -
achieved three consecutive declines.
Table of Greenhouse Gas Emissions
RERBHER—BER
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
BHIER B i —¥-mE Z¥-= —¥-C
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO,e 109.64 175.82 200.89
RERBHREE ’%Mb ixeE
Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions tCO,e 13.37 7.56 18.68
HE-AERBHENE ’%Lﬂc RE &
Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions tCO,e 96.26 168.27 182.21
HE_ARERBHENE %ft ixE &
GHG emission intensity (RMB0'000 dioxide 7.39 6.19 9.02
revenue) equivalent/
RMB0'000
BERBHEREZE (ARBETWRA) FTr_&bik
=) E/++ T
AR
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Adaptation to climate change = EELEE

Climate change has become a hot topic of global RIEZFLELCKARERE TN
concern, and the extreme weather caused by climate R RRE L E K AR S KR
change has caused serious and irreversible impacts MREIREEEEHEXTRELR O
on global production and life. The Company pays TAIFHNEE - ARRBIRGRE
attention to the impact of climate change on current EHRETRAREEELNTE

and future business operations, identifies and 2 ETT RIRE/CE bR R
evaluates climate change risks, and puts forward i Wi H AR E YRR §RIE
corresponding coping strategies, integrating climate PLEHBRERAARARAEEES
change response measures into the production and BAEF  FERARRAEY SR
operation process of the Company, and continuously SRR IKE o

improving the Company’s level of coping with
climate change risks.

Risk category Project Risk description Response measures

&, Bk 4 R IEH B B 6 FE S

Physical risk Acute Extreme weather caused by climate warming e Establish a regular tracking
frequently occurs, such as extreme high mechanism for
temperature weather, rainstorm and flood, meteorological information,
tropical cyclone, etc., which indirectly leads formulate an extreme
to the damage of the Company’s operation. weather response
Transportation of raw materials, production mechanism, give early
of products and transportation of finished warning and arrange
products are blocked. emergency drills.

Chronic Extreme weather may lead to obstacles in . Innovate and develop

the operation of wind power equipment. As products that offer greater
the frequency of extreme weather events stability and applicability
increases, the number of places where wind based on market trends and
power can be used decreases, which may climate risk.

lead to the shrinking of wind power market,
thus affecting the Company's revenue.

ERRAR =M RIFERTROBFARAE  IHRFSE » BURREENTEIEHRE
AR BRBUK AERES  HMERE il 3 5 XE 48R 3 K R T A
HARARRERB - R MEH EmAE Bl RATEE RPESR
B mE&HXMH - R o
(=33 BHARAESEYRANEEERREE  HEaTmHIANRERERE
TR BERRAREHOEEMRR o BT R E ARE LA
T AERARE N BEENMERD - ATEEER BRMNEMR -

ROBEMSERE RMTEQAZER -
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Risk category Project Risk description Response measures

R IHH B 4 3k FE & B 4

Transformation risk  Policies and The carbon emission policies and regulations e Continuously strengthen the
laws formulated by the government will become Company’s carbon emission

more and more strict, limiting the total
emissions or unit emissions of enterprises.

Technology National policies urge enterprises to
accelerate low-carbon transformation,
optimize energy-using equipment and
develop low-carbon production
technologies.

Cost With the restart of China Certified Emission
Reduction (CCER) market, the carbon price
will show an upward trend in the future,
and the carbon emission cost of enterprises
will rise.

Reputation As a builder in the field of new energy,
poor performance in energy conservation
and carbon reduction may leave a negative
impression on customers, the public and
investors.

L Ryl BR BOER BRI 610 2 O BR HE TR BUR R AR TE & A AR

R ERFNEEREMNE -

Bl BRBRefEOEMREREL - BLREE
R BB A E R o

ZEN FEECCER(FRZERIE)MBERM K
RREE2RLRBS  BRBGEBKAA L
ﬂ—o

B fERAT B R A MR E - B aE R E &

RIEARERER ARAKREERT A
HEIR °
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management system, track
and record the carbon
footprint, and strengthen the
requirements for carbon
emission reduction.

As China’s leading supplier of
wind power and pitch control
system solutions, we persist
in delving deeper into this
field and develop more
products that meet market
demand and policy demand.

Strengthen the ESG
information disclosure of the
Company, improve
information transparency,
and shape the corporate
image of sustainable
development.
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6.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

6.1

Product Liability

The Company firmly believes that excellent product
quality is the foundation of the enterprise, and
always upholds the quality policy of “making quality
the lifeline of the enterprise, focusing on the
customer, The
Company strictly abides by the Product Quality Law
of the People’s Republic of China,
formulated a series of rules and regulations such as
the Quality Information Management System, the
Production Equipment Management Regulations, the
Product Delivery Management Regulations, the New
Product Production Process, the Regulations on
Product Marking and Traceability Management
according to product nature and production process.
The Company’s quality certification meets the
standards stipulated in GB/T 19001-2016/
ISO9001:2015 Quality Management System. Relying
on system guarantee and process management
measures, the Company builds a strategic line of
putting quality first, and a perfect product quality
management system, covering all operational
segments such as product planning, design and
development, production, sales,
delivery and after-sales. The Company records and
investigates quality
emergencies in the production process, improves the
production process and management process, and
continuously promotes the optimization and
perfection of the quality management system. For
three consecutive years, the products and services
provided by the Company have not experienced any
violations of laws and regulations in terms of health
and safety, labeling and marketing.

and continuously improving”.

and has

procurement,

abnormal situations and

6.
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Table of Product Quality Management Performance

EREEEEEN-EBR
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
LB L L1 —$-mE -®P-=f  -Fo=
Total number of violations of health and Pieces 0 0 0
safety and labelling laws and regulations
by the products and services provided
IR MER MR EREEZ S  BX 1
THEEELEEREHNEAH
Proportion of products recalled for safety % 0 15.69 0
and health reasons in the total number
of products sold or delivered
BEESEEAEMBRETRT 2 HEZRE %
B if 72 3 4 9 L 51
Total number of violations of marketing Pieces 0 0 0
laws and regulations
EmsEREAEEEEZERSHNAY 1
The number of complaints received Pieces 2 11 0
regarding products and services
BEREBARERRREGHRFHE 1
Life cycle quality management PEDEHHEEEE

The Company is deeply engaged in the field of
energy storage technology and pitch control
technology, and always insists on enhancing high
quality with high standards. For product
development and design and quality planning,
production quality control and product after-sales
and quality improvement, we insist on high
standards and strictly control every process to ensure
the achievement of product quality objectives.

We stay abreast of market and policy developments
and changes in customer needs, keeping pace with
market dynamics for product updates and designs,
well understanding that quality planning is the
starting point of product quality management. In the
product R&D phase, we set quality objectives,
develop quality plans, design quality standards, and
establish quality assurance systems based on the
unigue characteristics of new products, ensuring
product performance, reliability, and safety from the
outset.

AN TR (R BE Rk il B A AR 4 %U
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The production quality control following
product launch, is central quality
management. We adhere to the principle of “not

phase,
to our

accepting, producing, or passing on defective
products”, strictly control the process from raw
material procurement and storage, production

process control, to product testing and inspection.
By adhering to standard SOPs for production and
emphasizing standardization as a prerequisite for
quality management, identify «critical factors
affecting product quality, establish “quality control
points”, and specially manage key raw materials,
special processes, and weak links to enforce control
and reduce the defect rate. We strengthen the
quality inspection mechanism, conducting 100%
testing for raw material inspection, semi-finished
product identification, and finished product quality
verification, handling defective products according to
the Control Procedures for Unqualified Products. We
continuously enhance the efficiency of quality
inspection work, improving the quality inspection
mechanism and equipping it with professional
personnel and equipment to support the
implementation of quality management measures at
all levels with a sound system,
tracking.

we

including quality

Product after-sales and consumer opinions are
important sources of information for the Company’s
quality improvement, which can help our enterprise
continuously improve product quality and
competitiveness. Based on customer needs, products
with quality issues sold are subject to returns,
exchanges, or other handling methods. Throughout
this process, we set quality objectives and plans
oriented around customer continuously
optimizing product design and performance based on
customer feedback and suggestions during product
use, ensuring the achievement of product quality
objectives. For information on handling complaints
regarding products and services, please refer to
section 6.4 “Customer Service” of the ESG Report.

needs,
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Construction of quality culture

Quality culture is crucial for enterprise quality
management and development. The Company treats
quality management as a compulsory subject for
every employee, regularly conducting quality
knowledge training and promoting the importance
of product quality. Through activities such as quality
competitions, we disseminate the principle that
“quality is the first and foremost element of our
production” to every employee of Nature, making it
a core professional ethos for every person in Nature.
The Company opens channels for the construction of
our quality system, welcoming constructive feedback
from employees on production processes, quality
management approaches, and assessment methods,
thereby facilitating improvement through practice.
We decompose and assign quality objectives to
employees involved in different production processes
to enhance everyone's awareness of quality
management and establish corresponding incentive
systems to boost employee motivation. Adhering to
the 6S management principles during production,
we have instituted internal regulations such as the
Company 6S Management System and the Six
Constants Management System to improve work
efficiency and production quality, ensure safety and
product quality, and promote standardization and
regularization.

Case: 6S management quality billboard in
production workshop

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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6.2 R&D Innovation

As a constructor in the new energy sector, the
Company actively responds to the “14th Five-Year”
modern energy system construction plan and the
“14th Five-Year” renewable energy development
plan. We continue to enhance the technological level
and economic viability of wind power development
and utilization, strengthen the security and stability
of the energy supply chain, and promote the
transformation into a “clean, low-carbon, safe, and
efficient” modern energy system. Through
investments in scientific and technological research
and development, the Company have overcome
technical challenges in wind power, accelerated the
development of cutting-edge technologies, and
improved product quality and performance, thereby
actively responding to the national call to
continuously strengthen wind power construction.

The Company upholds the corporate spirit of “dare
to take responsibility, brave to make attempt,
advancing with a determined spirit, strive for the
best”, continuously investing in building our capacity
for scientific and technological research and
development innovation. We have established the
Incentive System for Patents to encourage and
support employees in process research and
development and product innovation, pushing the
enterprise to new levels of innovation. We conduct
in-depth research and tackle key problems
encountered in the production, operation, and
development processes, thus solving management
issues while enhancing the overall level of
technological innovation. As a high-tech research
and development enterprise with industry barriers,
the Company also focus on expanding and training
our research and development team. As of the end
of the reporting period, the Company has 42 R&D
personnel, accounting for 26% of the total number
of employees.
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The Company evaluates and selects the results of
employee innovation projects, showcasing
outstanding innovations internally to fully promote
employee enthusiasm for innovation. We have
achieved significant breakthroughs in integrated
controllers, pitch gearbox housings, pitch motors,
pitch models, and pitch personnel practical training
platforms, driving industry development and
progress.

During the reporting period, the Company invested
RMB12,850,000 in research and development,
accounting for approximately 8.67% of the
operating revenue for the same period.

Case: Innovative design of pitch control:
integrated controller

During the reporting period, the integrated controller
independently developed and put into production by
the Company, as an industrial controller specially
designed for the wind power industry, has the
advantages of high integration, strong
professionalism and excellent performance compared
with the traditional integration scheme, as shown in
the following figure: Internal physical diagram of
subgrade pitch.
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The Company actively participates in industry KA A FERR %Eﬁﬁimﬁimxﬁ‘%‘
technical exchange meetings, forums, and trade woOmEETEXRES ARBRE
shows, facilitating cutting-edge technology 1T Al 8 HUT R IRKITERE
discussions, fostering industry cooperation, and E-fTREXES KM ARKSD O
breaking down industry barriers to jointly drive TEER - AQREHRETRER
industry development. We maintain an open EERHRFFAMUBRANREE &
communication stance with peer companies and BEMEE2 R - EITRM
partners, warmly welcoming corporate visits and Tomc AREHTEHRBY  BF
discussions for technological exchanges. Together, Hig HRBR -

we face new industry trends, advancing hand in
hand and collaboratively seeking development.

Case: The Nature exhibition booth in the 8th =6 £\ E(2023)EF B2 # HE K @
(2023) International Conference and Exhibition MEERER (LB XSERES
on Energy Storage Technology, Equipment, and MEREEIRIS

Applications (Shanghai)

The Company continues to carry out product and $“‘7%%Lﬁ?%§ﬂ&ﬁiéﬂ¥ﬁ‘
technological innovation, and actively participates in % M2 EITEBRBEEITEBEME
industry competitions and industry organization B mEHA R EEHOTE
construction. During the reporting period, the ZoEs 5E5K$ AR FAERA
Company won the following honors and medals. In BB AR HEIFErEEHE
the future, the Company will continue to invest in FTREAR -

scientific and technological innovation, and build the
cornerstone of quality progress with scientific and
technological innovation.
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Nature Intellectual
Energy (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd
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Co., Ltd

The Hong Kong 19 January 2024

University of Science

and Technology Blue
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6.3

Intellectual Property Protection

Construction of intellectual property protection
system

The Company is well aware that intellectual property
is an important part of the core competitiveness of
enterprises, and the cornerstone of scientific and
technological Protecting
property rights is not only to protect the core
interests of enterprises,
innovation and development of the industry. The
Company strictly abides by laws, regulations and
normative documents such as the
Property Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#
AR LB MEEREE)), the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((#E AR £ B HF|
7&)), the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China ((hZE AR ZEFABEIZIE)), the Copyright Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({(FF%E AR X F1E

innovation; intellectual

but also to promote the

Intellectual

= E#E L)), etc., establishes and improves the
intellectual property management system, and is

awarded the GB/T29490-2013 Intellectual Property
Management System Certification Certificate, which
protects the Company’s intellectual property rights in
all directions. The Company encourages employees
to innovate and create through the Incentive System
for Patents, pays more attention to protecting
employees’ innovative achievements, and regulates
employees’ intellectual property protection behavior
through documents such as Knowledge Control
Procedures.
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Intellectual property protection actions

The Company provides the necessary resources and
support for employees, offering guidance on
innovative projects. We assess, manage, file patents
for, and participate in industry awards for innovative
projects, cultivating a corporate image of
technological innovation. Employees who win awards
are publicly praised and rewarded. We register and
archive acquired goodwill, patents, copyrights, etc.,
establishing a culture of open exchange. An internal
resource-sharing platform is set up to keep the
Company'’s intellectual property information database
constantly updated, thereby empowering employees
and laying a solid foundation for the Company’s
further innovation and development.

Cultural construction of intellectual property
protection

To deepen the awareness of intellectual property
protection, the Company periodically conducts
themed training on intellectual property protection.
During the reporting period, a total of six
intellectual property protection training sessions were
held, covering 30 employees and total 12 hours of
training time. Additionally, we promote intellectual
property information in regular meetings and daily
work guidance, and broadcast technical explanations
and intellectual property protection promotional
videos at the workplace, establishing the value of
respecting and protecting intellectual property.
During the reporting period, the Company did not
experience any intellectual property disputes or
litigation.
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6.4 Customer Service

Customer management policy

The Company adheres to the business philosophy of
“creating value for wusers and focusing on
customers”, abides by the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests ((FEE AR X MBI E E R R
%)), and formulates Customer-related Process
Control Procedures, Customer Satisfaction and
Complaints Control Procedures within the enterprise,
continuously improves the customer management
system, standardizes customer management modes
and processes, enhances customer experience,
protects customer rights and interests, meets
customers’ deep-seated needs, and establishes long-
term and stable cooperative relations.

Pre-sale-product development and selection

Our Company offers a variety of energy storage
products, wind power and pitch control system
solutions, and comprehensive energy service projects
for different scenarios. Catering to the specific uses
of diverse customers, we engage in thorough
communication during the pre-sale phase, offering
multiple product and service options. We provide
detailed explanations of technical advantages and
application scenarios, helping customers choose the
most suitable and cost-effective products, thereby
reducing customer costs. Tailored services are
designed based on customer needs, driving us to
develop new products for specific scenarios, expand
service boundaries, and improve our overall service
and technical capabilities.
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In sale-product technical issues support

The Company has established a comprehensive
professional technical service team to resolve post
installation market services for our customers,
promptly addressing any issues encountered during
product use. Additionally, the Company have created
a product knowledge base accessible to both
internal technicians and external customers,
enhancing work efficiency and establishing a
professional corporate image. Multiple customer
communication channels have been set up, offering
online email and telephone technical support, and
dispatching technicians for on-site service. While
providing professional technical support, we
reinforce the high-quality characteristics of our
products. Through face-to-face service, we bridge the
gap with our customers, disseminating our green
business philosophy, product technical features, and
advantages, exploring new business opportunities,
and growing together.

After-sales-complaints and handling

The Company implements the internal regulations
such as the Regulations on Handling Customer
Returns and the Customer Complaint Processing
Procedures, and clarifies the after-sales product
handling process, after-sales service scope and
division of powers and responsibilities. Post-sale
service guarantee mechanism: We have established a
comprehensive post-sale service network to achieve
full coverage of our customer base; we have set up
a dedicated 24-hour post-sale service hotline through
which customers can report usage issues,
malfunctions, and complaints at any time. We record
every customer call, arrange follow-up actions, and
ensure the closure of each post-sale issue.
Depending on the actual situation of the customer,
we arrange for various professionals, including
technical support, maintenance, and repair
personnel, to address issues on-site.
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Post-sale service quality tracking: We have instituted
a post-sale product quality assessment mechanism to
evaluate and record on-site conditions. Based on
customer demands, we provide three warranties of
“repair, replacement, and return”. We integrate and
analyze recorded post-sale service scenarios and
problems to identify common failure causes, propose
corresponding improvement measures and product
design suggestions, and enhance product quality and
stability. undergo
technical training and knowledge assessments, with
their performance, including resolution rates of
post-sale issues and customer satisfaction feedback,
regularly reviewed and evaluated to ensure the
Company delivers high-quality post-sale services.

Post-sale service personnel

Customer complaint resolution: Through the
continuous efforts of our post-sale and product
teams, 100%
resolution rate for customer complaints for three
consecutive years. We will continue to focus on
experience, address practical
encountered during product use, and constantly
improve customer satisfaction.

the Company has achieved a

customer issues
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Table of Customer Complaints

EFEE—BEX

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
AWER ES {if “EB-mE Z=B== —g-C
Number of customer complaints Pieces 2 11 16
RFEREE 1

Resolution rate of customer complaints % 100% 100% 100%
o R R 3 %
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Protecting customer privacy

The Company values the confidentiality of

commercial secrets

information security, implementing

and the protection of
stringent

measures to safeguard customer information and
data. We strictly adhere to the Constitution of the
People’s Republic of China ((FFEARZLMBEFE)),
the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China

(h #E AR A ME R A #)),

and other legal

regulations and normative documents. Internally, we

have established a customer

privacy protection

system and developed and implemented regulations

such as the

Information Security Management

System and the Confidentiality Management
Regulations to prevent unauthorized access to

customer private information,

customer trust and satisfaction.

The Company’s measures in

thereby enhancing

implementing

information security management mainly include:

o Classifying and processing customer private
information during service delivery, avoiding
involvement in privacy information beyond the

scope of services; ensuring customers’ right to
be informed by clearly communicating the
purpose, usage, and protection measures for

collecting personal information.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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o Adopting graded control over customer
information, granting different levels of privacy
access permissions to employees based on their
roles and scope of work, limiting access to
customer data beyond their responsibilities, and
appointing specific personnel to manage critical
customer privacy data and documents to
minimize the risk of internal information leaks.
Key technical and management personnel are
required to comply with the Confidentiality
Management Regulations, incorporating
customer information protection into their
fundamental responsibilities; enhancing all
employees’ awareness of privacy protection
through training and education on the
necessity, importance, and measures of
customer privacy protection, thereby elevating
the overall level of enterprise privacy
protection.

o Setting up multiple layers of privacy security
measures, including firewalls, intrusion
detection systems, and anti-virus software, to
prevent external personnel and hackers from
invading the internal systems and accessing
customer information; employing identity
authentication and access restrictions, granting
only necessary permissions to users according
to the principle of least privilege, limiting user
access, with employees only able to access
customer information based on granted
permissions; conducting security monitoring of
information systems, monitoring network
security status, and promptly investigating and
addressing information leakage threats;
requiring employees to set startup passwords,
shutdown when away, etc., during daily office
operations to ensure no accidental information
leakage occurs.

During the reporting period, the Company had no
incidents of leakage of customer information and
privacy, and no disputes and proceedings occurred
as a result.
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RESPONSIBLE SUPPLY CHAIN

With the rapid development of globalization and
informatization, improving supply chain quality has
become a crucial strategic initiative for business growth.
Enhancing supply chain quality can effectively help
businesses reduce costs, improve efficiency, and thereby
enhance competitiveness. The Company is committed to
building a responsible supply chain, adhering to a
cooperative model of “mutual benefit and high-quality
development” with our supply chain partners. We actively
strengthen supply chain quality and have implemented a
series of practical and effective measures to ensure the
stability, reliability, and high standards of our supply
chain. Simultaneously, we strongly advocate for green and
responsible procurement management philosophies,
continuously integrating ESG principles into our supply
chain management process, striving to build a responsible
supply chain, and working together to construct a
sustainable supply chain ecosystem.

The Company places great emphasis on and actively
enhances supply chain quality, dedicated to creating a
responsible supply chain, promoting industry development
and progress, and advancing the application of ESG
concepts within the supply chain. We have also carried
out a series of practical and effective measures internally.
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First, we have established a strict supplier admission
mechanism. A healthy supplier relationship is the
cornerstone of supply chain quality. Through the
implementation of management systems such as the
Supplier Introduction Review System and the Supplier
Management System, we coordinate and standardize
mechanisms for supplier admission, evaluation, and
elimination, strengthening supplier file management and
regular inspections. In the process of continually
optimizing supply chain management, the Company
adheres to a comprehensive and detailed assessment
principle for suppliers, conducting high-standard
assessments of economic factors such as quality, cost,
delivery timeliness, and service quality; in line with current
ESG development trends, we also gradually enhance the
considerations of suppliers in terms of environmental
protection, social responsibility, and business ethics among
other ESG factors. When faced with comparable economic
factor conditions, the Company will prioritize
environmental materials and suppliers actively
implementing energy-saving and emission-reduction
measures and promoting environmentally friendly
production methods, to push the entire supply chain
towards a more environmentally friendly, efficient, and
sustainable direction.
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Second, we strengthen the assessment within our supplier
pool. The key to improving supply chain quality lies in
quality management. the Company have formulated the
Procurement and Supplier Control Procedure and the
Supplier Performance Management System, specifying
supplier quality standards their
implementation. Through inspections and testing, we
ensure that products and services provided by suppliers
meet our quality requirements. We conduct rigorous

and overseeing

evaluations and assessments of suppliers within our
resource pool including site visits, video
inspections, and the distribution and collection of Supplier

each vyear,

Assessment Forms. The evaluation criteria cover not only
economic factors but also are compiled with full
We aim to establish
long-term cooperative relationships with suppliers who not
only excel in economic performance and product quality
but also perform outstandingly
protection, social responsibility, and corporate governance.
For the assessment results, we adopt a clear reward and
penalty mechanism, eliminating or warning suppliers who
fail to meet our standards; reducing purchase volumes
from suppliers with scores to motivate
improvement; and increasing purchase volumes from those
with higher scores to express our recognition and support,
and our desire for long-term cooperation. Through our
assessment and evaluation mechanisms, we hope to drive

consideration of ESG factors.

in environmental

lower

sustainable development in the supply chain together with
value chain enterprises, achieving both economic and
social responsibility improvements, and building a better
future together.
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Third, we improve the controllability of the supply chain.
The Company instructs purchasing, technology, quality
control and other departments to cooperate with each
other. In order to ensure the quality and safety of
purchased materials, we take a series of measures,
including tracking inspections, testing, and monitoring the
status of materials. The Company has also established
part-time positions in the procurement department to
monitor and search for negative information about
suppliers in environmental, social, and governance aspects
through the internet and other accessible media. Any
findings are recorded and promptly reported to the head
of the procurement department. Depending on the
severity of the negative information, the procurement
department may re-evaluate the supplier through phone/
correspondence verification or on-site/video inspection.
The Company aims to “promote improvement through
inspection and progress through improvement”, ensuring
a more robust and reliable cooperative relationship with
suppliers.

Fourth, we optimize the supply chain process. The process
within the supply chain determines the smooth flow of
logistics and information. The Company focuses on
optimizing supply chain processes by streamlining
procedures, reducing waste, and enhancing efficiency to
lower costs. Meanwhile, in line with digital trends, we are
exploring big data technology to achieve digital
management and automated control of the supply chain,
improving the management efficiency and flexibility of the
supply chain.
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Table of Suppliers

BEFEL-BX
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
BRIEE B fi —¥-ME —F-=F CZT=-=Z
Total number of suppliers pcs. 112 95 42
HEMER X
Number of suppliers in Mainland China pcs. 112 95 41
K BE 3 [ ) FE 7 2K x
Number of suppliers from overseas, Hong Kong, pcs. 0 0 1
Macao and Taiwan
TN SR A i [ 6 4 E P & e
Percentage of suppliers that have implemented % 100 94.74 100
environmental, social and governance
assessment in accordance with the Company’s
supplier assessment system
BRARMMHERTGHERTRE MR %
AR ERRA S L
Number of suppliers found that was unable to pcs. 0 4 0
meet the evaluation criteria during the
reporting period
HEPANBERITEFAETENEER A ER

8. TALENT ATTRACTION AND TRAINING

8.1 Talent Introduction and Development

8. AAES|HEE

8.1

Employees are the most valuable asset of an

enterprise. Nature always

people-oriented development concept,

adheres

to a
legally

ensuring employees’ fundamental rights, creating a

diverse and

implementing a variety of welfare «care,

inclusive working environment,

and

continuously improving each employee’s sense of

achievement and happiness.

We ensure every

employee has the opportunity to learn and grow in

fair, and
maintaining passion,

a diverse,
environment,
realizing value.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

creating,

inclusive culture and work

and
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Equal employment and cultivation of diversified
talents

The Company strictly abides by and refers to the
relevant laws and regulations such as the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Special Rules on the Labor Protection of Female
Employees, the Provisions on Prohibiting the Use of
Child Labor, the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Occupational Disease
Prevention Law of the People’s Republic of China,
etc. Based on the principles of openness, fairness
and impartiality, the Company establishes an
inclusive workplace culture, attracts and retains
diversified talents, provides them with a fair
institutional environment, builds a multi-high-quality
talent pool and builds an equal career platform.

Through the formulation and implementation of the
Human Resource Management Rules, the Company
strengthens the standardization of recruitment,
employment, promotion, and resignation processes,
strictly adhering to relevant recruitment disciplines to
ensure fairness and justice in recruitment; lawfully
establishing, fulfilling, modifying, dissolving, or
terminating labor contracts with employees, and
providing corresponding benefits and remuneration
to protect their legal rights.

The Company insists on equal employment, actively
resists any actions that ignore and trample on
human rights, strictly prohibits gender and racial
discrimination, protects legal religious beliefs, and
eliminates all forms of discrimination based on
nationality, ethnicity, gender, age, skin color,
religious beliefs, cultural background, marital status,
pregnancy, disability, etc. We strictly enforce national
laws and regulations, respect internationally
recognized social responsibility codes of conduct,
and eliminate the use of child labor or forced labor;
during the reporting period, the Company did not
experience any of the aforementioned human rights
violations, nor did we receive related complaints or
appeals.
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There are many talented individuals among people
with disabilities. The Company pays close attention
to the employment of people with disabilities,

striving to provide

suitable employment

opportunities for them to realize their self-worth and
potential. Through our efforts, we hope to create
more job opportunities for the disabled community,
helping them achieve self-growth and development.

As of the end of the reporting period, the total
number of employees of the Group was 160, of
which 110 (69%) were male employees and 50

(31%) were female employees.

Table of Employment

BRABREBTERZABRHRT
AT c KRRAIBERR AR
BHARERARKES B FEHE
g EPMMERAREE %E
BEMER - BAEIMNEN &
PRARERANREBAEEZEZMM
e EPOMERARAKKA
B -

BHIEREHR AEEETHAH
B160A - HA 5% B T110A - 14
Lt B(69%) : M B T50A « fh kb
(31%) °

AIBR—8%
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
BHIER B i —F-mE Z—F-= —¥-C
Total number of employees Person 160 151 218
BETHAY A
Number of male employees Person 110 100 178
BHEETAH A
Number of female employees Person 50 51 40
THEETAH A
Proportion of male employees in total % 68.75 66.23 81.65
employees
FHET A %
Proportion of female employees in total % 31.25 33.77 18.35
employees
M8 Tl %
Number of employees under labor contract Person 159 146 218
BHERGETARK A
Number of employees under labor dispatch Person 1 2 0
BIBRERE T AR A
Number of employees under other forms of Person 0 3 0
employment
Hine B XE T AR A
Number of employees over 50 Person 9 29 15
50m A EHB T A A
Number of employees aged 30 to 50 Person 76 79 65
305 E505% 8 T A A
Number of employees under 30 Person 75 43 138
30 A TE I A A

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Table of Employment "]
AIRR—ER
Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022

SRER B fi —B-_mE —B-=f -B-C (T)

Number of employees working in Mainland Person 152 147 217
China

ERBEAEIENETAX A

Number of employees working in Hong Person 8 4 1
Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas

EBERARBINIHEETIAR A

Number of senior management staff Person 9 15 9

AREEEETIAH A

Number of middle management staff Person 20 27 16

FREBEETIAHK A

Number of junior employees Person 131 109 193

HEEBTA™ A

Employee turnover rate % 25.45 51.29 25.37

BIRAXR %

Turnover rate of male employees % 24.44 58.16 2523

BHETIRAX %

Turnover rate of female employees % 27.37 28.17 26.09

THBIRAR %

Turnover rate of employees over 50 % 20.00 9.38 0

S0BRA EE Tk % %

Turnover rate of employees aged 30 to 50 % 65.15 43.57 40.63

30 E505% B Ttk X %

Turnover rate of employees under 30 % 21.82 68.84 24.14

30N TR AR %

Turnover rate of employees in Mainland % 26.05 51.96 25.37
China

ERBEAENE T RAX %

Turnover rate of employees working % 14.29 0 0
overseas (including Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan)

EEMNEBRB)IENEIRAR %

Total number of incidents of employee Case 0 0 0
discrimination

BETEBEHEH i

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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Talent construction to improve training quality

and efficiency

The Company values the worth of human capital and
considers talent as the primary driving force behind
our development, and is committed to creating a
more open, efficient, and attractive development
platform. Guided by our core values of “innovation,
pragmatism, progress, and development”, we strive
to enable exceptional talents to showcase their skills
and realize their dreams. We believe that continuous
learning and development of our employees enhance
the value of the team and individual professional
qualities, also bringing higher production efficiency

to the Company.

We have established and

implemented

the

Employees’ Training Management Rules, following
the Company’s development strategy and annual
operational goals. At the beginning of each financial
year, we develop an employee training plan, offering
systematic and diverse training courses to continually
enhance our employees’ work knowledge and skills,
meeting the needs of the Company’s sustainable
operational development. The Company has also
established and improved the Measures for Talent
Reserve Management and Training, creating various
employee growth mechanisms and development
channels. Adhering to the principle of “internal
training as the main body and external training as
the auxiliary”, we have established the “unified and
separate” talent training system. We categorize and

implement training plans for professional
talents,
building a
and wide-reaching

technical talents, high-skill
comprehensive management talents,

comprehensive, multi-level,

and
and

training platform. This approach effectively uncovers
employee potential, develops thinking, cultivates core

and reserve talents,
talent echelon,
sustainable development.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

and constructs a multi-level
contributing to the Company’'s
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The Company provides an inclusive, open, and safe
working environment for our employees, creating
equal job opportunities and establishing clear career
planning. Through the Company’s annual systematic
training plan, we forge an effective path for
employee skill growth, building a professional talent
reserve for the enterprise. Regular professional
training is conducted for employees, with
differentiated training content based on job positions
to enhance the specificity and effectiveness of the
training. We organize internal and external experts to
provide specialized training courses for our
employees, such as new employee orientation,
professional skills practical training, and professional
conduct training, continuously improving employees’
professional capabilities and learning abilities.

The Company continually carries out systematic
learning and training activities, both online and
offline, through “mentor-apprentice” and
“one-on-one teaching, and learning pairs”. We
persistently engage in and participate in training
plans focused on “competing, learning, catching up,
assisting, and surpassing”, aimed at cultivating a
high-quality professional talent team. This effort
significantly promotes the improvement of the
Company’s technical, management, and production
levels.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERERE

ARBR/BETIREBCTHAR R
REMTFRR  BIEFENTIE
HeRERYEWMBERE BB
RAEFRGNEIFE  TES
MHETHRERTRZE BREEE
BEXANT B - EHHE TETR
EEI - EEIART L RREA
MARIETER(CE - =BREHEI
BB 31 M B R o B FT &1 A A
AE - IBONTR  BRBRAE
THREEBERIRE WMHFEITA
BEI - EXREEEREI  BE
EERIE FERABINEER
BENEEEEEN -

RABTEBBR E+ET - [ADH
I —E— —#H— —2— 5%
R AHEHHBEREARS(LHE
BEIIIE UHERARMSEL
-2 8- H BIAANAWNE
s EHEESEREEREELLA
TBME B MR E AR B
BAAEEXKFERRA -

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER

O

A



®

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

e
BIRWME

Table of Employees’ Training

BIZIRRA-—HX

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022

BRIERE B fi —¥-ME —F-=F CZT=-=Z

Employee training coverage % 43.64 59.60 100

BTIRJIBER %

Proportion of female employees covered by % 34.69 38.89 18.3
training

FlBE LM E TR f %

Proportion of male employees covered by % 48.59 61.11 81.7
training

BAIBESMHETHLLA %

Percentage of senior management % 22.22 7.78 4.1
employees covered by training

BIBERRERES THLLA %

Percentage of middle management % 100.00 11.11 7.3
employees covered by training

BIBERPREEES TH LA %

Percentage of junior employees covered by % 28.24 81.11 88.5
training

R BEEEES T A %

Average training hours received by Hours/person 3.17 3.23 2
employees

B TR X INF 15/ 2 INE A

Average hours of training received by Hours/person 2.12 3.53 2
female employees

LB TR XEIN T/ & INE A

Average hours of training received by Hours/person 3.75 3.08 2
male employees

BB IRXEIN TG/ INE A

Average hours of training received by Hours/person 2.67 3.60 5
employees at senior management level

R EREEREITH /S INE A

Average hours of training received by Hours/person 8.20 3.26 5
employees at middle management level

AR E IR B R AT T /N R B INE A

Average hours of training received by Hours/person 1.89 3.17 1
employees at grass-root level

EEBTREEITY I BY IN-ZON

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8.2 Employee Remuneration and Benefits

The Company has formulated the Performance
Appraisal Management Measures to form a
performance-and achievement-oriented distribution
system and value evaluation standards. On the basis
of adhering to the principle of distribution according
to work, the Company has continuously innovated
and improved welfare protection, provided
competitive remuneration packages in the industry,
and attracted and retained more human resources
for the Company.

The Company strictly abides by the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, maintains a fair employment
environment, improves the salary and welfare
system, encourages equal communication and
protects the rights and interests of every employee
by formulating the Employee Code. The Company
strictly implements the national regulations on rest
and vacation for employees. The Company's
employees are entitled to family visit leave, wedding
and funeral leave, maternity leave and other holidays
in accordance with the regulations, as well as the
right to paid annual leave. For those who work
overtime on public holidays due to production and
operation needs, overtime pay or leaves in lieu of
overtime work will be calculated and paid in
accordance with the Labor Law.

The Company is committed to creating a
comfortable working atmosphere for employees,
offering a variety of welfare measures, and regularly
conducting employee care activities. We place high
importance on employees’ mental well-being,
advocate for an open culture, and prioritize
employees’ psychological health. Through
implementing the Employee Satisfaction Assessment
Standards, we aim to understand and collect
feedback and suggestions from employees, alleviate
professional and work-related stress, and build a
warm and harmonious workplace environment.
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8.3 Occupational Health and Safety

Safe production to ensure occupational health
In strict compliance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Treatment
of Occupational Diseases, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Safety in Production (/% A
R # MM & % & & E %)), the Regulations on
Occupational Health Management in the Workplace
(K IES B E A EBIERE)), the Industrial Injury
Insurance Regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (FEAREZMBE TEREIEH) and other
laws and regulations, under the work guideline of
Safety First, Prevention Emphasized, Risk Control,
“All-round Treatment, Peace & Harmony, Continuous
Improvement, Compliance with Laws and Safe
Development”, the Company establishes a perfect
occupational health and safety management system,
standardizes labor protection responsibilities, labor
protection measures, labor protection articles
management, accident hidden dangers and accident
treatment, inspects production safety places, and
reduces occupational hazards in the production
process. The Company has passed the ISO 45001:
2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System certification.
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The Company has developed management systems
such as the Occupational Health Management
System, the Safety Inspection and Safety Education
System, the Control Procedures for Occupational
Health and Labor Protection of Employees, the
Emergency Preparedness and Response Control
Procedures, the Hazardous Chemicals Management
Regulations, and the Emergency Response Plans
Through onboarding training and regular specialized
training, we conduct occupational health and safety
education, continually raising employees’ awareness
of safe production. In daily work, we provide
employees with labor protection supplies tailored to
their job characteristics, ensuring their health and
safety during work processes. Additionally, the
Company actively conducts regular occupational
health examinations, supervises the implementation
of production work environment standards, and
urges employees to use and wear daily labor
protection supplies to identify, reduce, and eliminate
existing and potential risks. The Company also
conducts specialized training on fire drills, heatstroke
and cold prevention, disaster prevention, electricity
usage, motor vehicle driving, production operations,
and carries out emergency evacuation drills to
enhance employees’ ability to prevent safety risks.

Through system standardization, scientific
management, daily protection, and training and
education, the Company prevents occupational
disease risks and ensures employee occupational
health. In the past three reporting periods, the
Company has one work-related injury, with a total
of 28 workdays lost due to work-related injuries.
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Table of Safety Performance

ETHEREER-BR

Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022

SRER B fi —B-_mE -—B-=f Z-B-C

Number of working days lost due to work Days 28 0 0
injury

AIBREANIERH X

Number of employees killed by work Person 0 0 0
related injuries

AIGEEMETHEIAH A

Proportion of employees killed by work- % 0 0 0
related injuries

AIGEEMETHE LA %

COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTIONS

Putting public welfare first to promote community
development

Adhering to the mission of “carrying forward the spirit of
hard work, striving for long-term development”, Nature is
committed to sustainable development while aiming for a
win-win situation between its own growth and societal
progress, and taking on the responsibility of promoting
community development and social progress.

As a responsible corporate citizen, Nature is fully aware
that our responsibilities extend beyond making direct
contributions to the socio-economic landscape to include
the impact and effect our business operations and
participation in public welfare projects have on society as
a whole. The Company strictly follows the rules of fair
market competition, upholds honest and compliant
business practices, accurately calculates business
outcomes, pays taxes according to the law, and fulfills our
corporate social responsibilities.
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The Company actively invests in community development
and responds to societal needs, leveraging our advantages
and capabilities in talent, technology, capital, culture, and
management to contribute to sustainable development
across society. During the reporting period, the Company
participated in the Wuxi Huishan High-tech Zone Green
and Low-carbon Industry Development Forum, engaging in
communication and exchanges on green and low-carbon
technologies to promote the development of the green
and low-carbon industry and participate in community
construction, reducing negative impacts on the local
community environment. The Company encourages
employees to participate in volunteer services,
continuously expanding the volunteer team, and carrying
out public welfare and volunteer environmental activities,
fostering a positive volunteer atmosphere.

The Company maintains good communication with
community stakeholders, listens to the community’s voices
and demands, and actively participates in community
construction. The Company implements the concept of
sustainable development in its operational management
processes and strengthens the awareness of sustainable
development among stakeholders, taking practical actions
to support sustainable development, continuously creating
value for societal progress and the betterment of human
life.
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10. TABLE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS 10.

Laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company’s business operations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong are as follows:

ESG scope
ESG#i B

Mainland China
oh B K P&

& BlE R 5=
5 7R R B A R BB T
BEARENARERNT

Hong Kong
&

Environment

il

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

R

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment

Environmental Protection Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China

Regulations of the People’s Republic of China
on the Implementation of Environmental
Protection Tax Law

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation

(hEARLMBIREREE)

(PEAREMBERBEFEFTER)

(FEARLMBIRERER X

(PEARAMBERRREREZ GG

(REAREMBEARRGEBE)

(hEARERMBIKG PR

(hEEARAMEEBREYSRRENGE)

(REAREMBRRRE )T RNBE)

(hEE AR £ MBI L8R %)

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

BREPIEINE(ER TR E B EHD
BRIED E354E(EM R E 5B
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ESG scope Mainland China Hong Kong

ESGEE o B K B &FiE
Environment and Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China  Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the
labour ordinance  Labor Contract Law of the People’'s Republic Laws of Hong Kong)
of China Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of
Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic the Laws of Hong Kong)
of China Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
Protection of Minors Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602
Prohibition of Child Labour Provisions of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Family Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

1B 1% & 55 T {51 (REARIAMESHZE) BRIEDI ESTERIE D))
(REARAMBESH A RE) %78 A B FAB0E (1L Bl b 4R 15 1)
(PEARLAMBEL S REZE) BB ED BABTECR K AR 5B
(g AR MBIREKF A REE) BBIED S 30

B 356022 (1& jk 55 43 1

(RIEEREIRTE) BBEDIFES27TE (K BE iz 5248 & 1)
Health and safety at  Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
work Prevention and Control of Occupational (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
Diseases Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
Safety Production Law of the People’s (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Republic of China

Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China

Regulations on Safety Management of
Hazardous Chemicals

Regulations on Safety Supervision of Special

Equipment
TERFEEZ 2 (hEARLMBIEZERDGE) BBEDIFE2825 (R B R E5RHI)
(hFEARAMBEZ 2 £ EX) BBEDIFS09R (B E R 2 KR HB

(g ARJMBIARE)
(ERIEERLZZ2EE KD
(BFEREZZERRHD

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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ESG scope Mainland China Hong Kong

ESGE o B K P g

Product liability Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of
China the Laws of Hong Kong)

Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China

Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China

Intellectual Property Law of the People's
Republic of China

Consumer Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China

Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(hE AR MBI E ERE)

(PEARLMEZFZE)

(FEARAMBAIRE)

(RFEARLMBERZH)

(PEAREMBAZREREZE)

(PFEAREAMBEEEEERZRER)

(PEARENBERLEE%)

(P EARAMEE S Z)

it
So
puul;
0

Business ethics Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People's
Republic of China

Anti-Monopoly Law of the People’s Republic
of China

Interim Provisions of the State Administration
for Industry and Commerce on Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery

(hEARLME REEZE)

(PEARAMBERDIEE R FE)

(hEARALME R EEE)

(BRIRTREERERRILEXBET
REOEITHRE)

clet

B R E]

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter
486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

BRBA
BB
BBIE
BRBA

—

5| 88362% (7 fn &1 B9 15 A1)

Bl EA86Z (fE A & £t (FLBB) 1651
7] 2559 (7 12 & )

Bl 571 E(FEFH K EE &)

o

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

ICAC Ordinance (Chapter 204 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorist
Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

BB EDIF201 52 (R - BB 5B

BBEDIFE2045 (BRBLA E 5B

E;&ﬂﬂ%&S%(ﬂ%ﬁﬁx 2o FES

SO
§/%/£1§|J%622§<</&ﬂ1l7%1ﬂ>>
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11. CONTENT INDEX TABLE OF THE ESG 1. BEXFRESGHR EE5I M EF R S| O
REPORTING GUIDE OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE

Subject Areas, O
Aspects, General Relevant Sections of the

Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

BE - —REER

PR ENIEER i it FRERMELM

Subject Areas A. Environmental

TEHEARE

Aspect A1. Emissions

EEA : $E

General Disclosure Information on: 5 Green Production and
(@)  the policies; and Operation
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—REE FRABRLAERBHENR MARLTHOES BF SHKELEEHESR
REZEZEVHNELESH
@ BE: K
(b) BIFHBETABEAZENHEBEERZRRINE
R
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 5.3 Emissions Management
KPI A1.1 B R MR B B - 53 HFE R
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 5.4 Addressing Climate Change
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
KPI A1.2 B (BB ke REZ (BE2)RERBHENE CAE 54 BHREE(L
FER(MER)ZE(MNSEZEN SERMT
)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 5.3 Emissions Management
appropriate (if applicable) density (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
KPI A1.3 FEXAERENRE BB R(mEm ZE( 53 HRER

= oo

WEEBEL  SEREHY) -

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Relevant Sections of the

Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

BE - —RKER

PRRENIEE i ik FREFMAELG

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 5.3 Emissions Management
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

KPI A1.4 FELEZRENEE UEAE)R(WMER)ZE (M 53 RER
WEBEEEN BERKEAH) -

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 5.3 Emissions Management
achieve them. 5.4 Addressing Climate Change

KPI A1.5 AT VMBERER R RAEIELAZMERIMAE 53 FRER
TR 5.4 BHRIRZ (L

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 5.3 Emissions Management
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

KPI A1.6 HLRBEEREERRYN L AN 53 FMER

BERERAERELRBMRONFER -

Aspect A2. Use of Resources

EEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RBE
KPI A2.1

KPI A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.2
KPI A2.3

KPI A2.3

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Policies on effective use of resources (including energy,
water and other raw materials)
ERERER(BERR KREMRME) OEE -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in’000s) and density
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENESNERER /IREER(WNE - R30h) £
REUATETREFE) REE(WAGESEEN
HEREFE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
BRKEREE(WNBEEEN BERBE) -
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

BTV REANGEERAENELBEM
PRER B 27 BR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

5 Green Production and
Operation
SHELEERES

5.2 Resource Management

52 BRERE

5.2 Resource Management

52 ERERE
5.2 Resource Management

52 8 RER
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Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Relevant Sections of the

Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

BE —RKER ( )
RRENIEE 1 ik FREFMELM .
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 5.2 Resource Management

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

KPI A2.4 HSKEGER KR LR BERAEE  ARAATVHA 52 BRERE
KB ERRBENELARMERONTR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in 5.2 Resource Management
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

KPI A2.5 BRmAAARHNEE (UBEFTE)R(NERE 52 8RER
HEBMUHGE-

Aspect A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

EEA3: RERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on 5 Green Production and
the environment and natural resources. Operation

—REE REBTAHRBERRAERENEATENREK: OLHRELEHESL

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on 5 Green Production and
the environment and natural resources Impacts and Operation
actions taken to manage them.

KPI A3.1 HEEBEDEHRERRAERNEATENRESRR S RELEHES

EEARATENTY -

Aspect A4. Climate Change
EBEAL: RIZEIL

General Disclosure Policies on identification of and response to significant 5.4 Addressing Climate Change
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

—MRIKE BAREHELRARGHBETAEEZENERR 54 BHREZ(
(RABREE E AR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues 5.4 Addressing Climate Change

which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI A4.1 HEBEERAREHBETAELEZENEARKEAR 54 BHREKEE L
EH REHTH-

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Relevant Sections of the
Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

BE - —RESER

AREHER g FREFMAELG

Subject Area B. Social Employment and Labour Practices

FREEBHERBRSEIER

Aspect B1. Employment
EEB1: &R

General Disclosure Information on: 8 Talent Attraction and Training
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits and welfare.
—MRIKE FRAGMERE HEREM ITEREH RH FF 8 ATRIHEESR
e il REBIAREMESEREN
(@ BXR Rk
(b) BEFHETABBEAZENHBERZRAMNNE
e
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for 8.1 Talent Introduction and
example, full- or part-time), age group and Development
geographical region.
KPI B1.1 BRI EEEE(WERBARE) FRAMNMKME 81 ATSIERER
ErmEE RS -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 8.1 Talent Introduction and
geographical region. Development
KPI B1.2 RIS FRAJNRSEEDNEERRL X - 8.1 AT B EHER

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Relevant Sections of the

Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

§E BB A
ARENER i gud FREFMELM

Aspect B2. Health and Safety
EEB2: @REZ2

General Disclosure Information on: 8.3 Occupational Health and
(@)  the policies; and Safety
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—RIRE FARHZE2THERERREEEBEBENLEIN : 83 BERRELS
@@ BX Rk
(b) BTHBETAREAZENHBERRRIINE
B
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 8.3 Occupational Health and
each of the past three years including the reporting Safety
year.
KPI B2.1 BE=F (BHEESFR)BFRAITHOABRLE . S3BERREALRS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 8.3 Occupational Health and
Safety
KPI B2.2 AIGHELATERE- 83MERFEALRS
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 8.3 Occupational Health and
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Safety
KPI B2.3 HAMEANBERREATRER  URBEBERTR S3BERRAZS

ERNE-

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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B L EREAWE

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs

Bl —REER

AREMER

Description

i 3kt

Relevant Sections of the
Report

FRERMES

Aspect B3. Development and Training

EEB3 : 3% & R il

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

KPI B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
FARITEERTIEREN B R REHNBIR - #
B FES o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BEURREERN(WNSRERE FRERES)E
PEORINEEBEDL -

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RURREEBERE S BHEETKXINTFIHE
8o

Aspect B4. Labor Standards

EEB4: &5 T XA

8.1 Talent Introduction and
Development

8.1 AA S| #EEERE

8.1 Talent Introduction and
Development

8.1 A7 5l EHER

8.1 Talent Introduction and
Development
8.1 A5l EEER

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.1
KPI B4.2

KPI B4.2

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRAR IEE T34 T

@ BX: R

(b) BEFTHETAREAZENHBEZRAMNNE
£ o

Description of measures to review employment practices

to avoid child and forced labour.

Wit EEEANERABRET RS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

HREERERERE R R RN S E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

8 Talent Attraction and Training

8 AA RS HiFE

8.1 Talent Introduction and
Development

81 A7 5| #EHER

8.1 Talent Introduction and
Development

81 A7 5| #EHER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - -wHekERrmE

O

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Relevant Sections of the

Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

§E BB A
ARENER i gud FREFMELM

Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management
EEBS : fEH#ER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 7 Responsible Supply Chain
the supply chain.

—RE BEEHEENRERE RRECER 7 BEEHERE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 7 Responsible Supply Chain

KPI B5.1 BRI DO EHEKE - 7 BEEMRERE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 7 Responsible Supply Chain

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and

monitored.

KPI B5.2 W ERERMERNED mEARTEBEMNNME 7 AFEHER
EEHE ANRBBEANRTREREN A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 7 Responsible Supply Chain

and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

KPI B5.3 R EBEHNEEREERONRERMERARNE 7850 HER
Bl ARBERITRERTE-
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 7 Responsible Supply Chain

environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
KPI B5.4 HMERERERSREELZARRERIRENEL - 7 85FHERE
IWREBRTRERR A

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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B L EREAWE

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs

Bl —REER

AREMER

Description

i 3kt

Relevant Sections of the
Report

FRERMES

Aspect B6. Product Responsibility

[EHEB6: ERE T

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.3
KPI B6.4

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

KPI B6.5

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

FHMRHEMRNBRENERERZS B BERE

MEEE N RERTED

a) ME R

b) BTHETABEATZEMNHBEIRZERIINE
o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEACEXEmAYTEZ 2 BERBAMARLK

CONER N A

Number of products and service related complaints

received and how they are dealt with.

REARERRRENRFHABAREE X -

(
(

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

g RRENHREEEBNED
Description of quality assurance process and recall
Procedures.

HiEERTRERERBURERF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
HLHEE ERRERLBEE - U RABBEHNTRE
BHE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

6 Products and Services

6.1 Product Liability
6.1 EmE L

6.1 Product Liability
6.4 Customer Service
6.1 EmEE
6.4 X P IR

6.3 Intellectual Property
Protection

6.3 MBERRE
6.1 Product Liability
6.4 Customer Service
6.1 EmEE

6.4 EFR%

6.4 Customer Service

6.4 BP R
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Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Relevant Sections of the

Disclosure and KPIs  Description Report

§E BB A
ARENER i gud FREFMELM

Aspect B7. Anti-corruption
EEB7: R&ES

General Disclosure Information on: 4.2 Anti-corruption
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RE EBAGILHE PR RFREBED 42 RERS
@ BE: K
(b) BITHETAREAZENHBERRRIINE
£ e
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 4.2 Anti-corruption

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.

KPI B7.1 REGRBAHETAXHEERLIVEEENESTHF 42 RES
RRUHHE RFAER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 4.2 Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B7.2 maBERREREF  UREBEBRTREE L 42 RE)S

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 4.2 Anti-corruption
directors and employees.

KPI B7.3 mAmMEERE TRHENREGHEN - 42 RE"

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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Subject Areas,

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs  Description
BE - —RKER

PRRENIEE i ik

Relevant Sections of the
Report

FRERMES

Aspect B8. Community Investment

EEBS : #HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—REE UM ELEREREENELRTEMRREE
BESSZEEMLRMZHIR -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (such as education,

environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture
and sports).

KPI BS.1 EIEEEE(NHE BREFHE SFIFTK K-
Xft - 8BF)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas (such as
money or time) to the focus area.

KPI B8.2 EEIBEMBHAER(MESERER) -

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024

9 Community Contributions

9t BB

9 Community Contributions

9 & & B

9 Community Contributions
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12. EXPLANATION OF TERMS 12. MR E
Term Definition
BEHEHE 2%

Greenhouse gas or GHG

B o & opw
ym 2 R B2

Nitrogen oxides

AELY

Climate change

SR
Climate adaptation

A
S
(et
&t

Wind power

Including carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride.

BIEZSH Bk SLDR  [EREEY 2RI SNBH -
Includes a variety of compounds such as nitrous oxide (N20), nitric oxide
(NO), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), nitrogen trioxide (N203), nitrogen tetroxide
(N204) and nitrogen pentoxide (N205). Except nitrogen dioxide, other
nitrogen oxides are extremely unstable, changing into nitrogen dioxide and
nitric oxide when exposed to light, humidity or heat, and nitric oxide
subsequently converts into nitrogen dioxide.

BREZELEEY  M—R(E=_RAN20) - —&/LANO) - —|ILANO2) - =
f{=" (N203)  mE{L=ZRN204HF A&t ZAN205% - K=& /A
AN it BREAL MR TIBE - Bk  BHAEN _—_AtAR—|ELA
—atAXEBR_SI/LA -

In current common usage, climate change refers to global warming and its
impacts on the Earth’s climate system.

EEMBRRER RESFHEALT2HRERERHAHMERERANTE -
Climate adaptation refers to the process of adapting to the impacts of
climate change, which may be present or expected. Climate adaptation
requires human actions to help adjust natural systems, aiming at mitigating
or avoiding the harm of climate change to human beings and as well as
seizing opportunities.

RIFERENEEBRRBRE(CTENBRE SLUTEARIE THHAIEE
EHEHAN - RIEERFTEZEANBERDNTHUEDABRBAZRR  EERE X
BEREELCHARNEE  ARTBAKS -

Wind power refers to wind power generation, which converts the kinetic
energy of wind into electric energy. Wind energy is a clean and pollution-
free renewable energy, which has huge storage capacity and is very
environmentally friendly.

BREENSRNEE ERANBEEILASEH RERE —RBEEFRAEAEN
AHEARER BREEEEXRBENBRNEEFTERER-

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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Definition

]

Energy storage
technology

ff& BE Bl

Pitch Control

6S management

6SE IR

Energy storage technology refers to the storage of electric energy. The stored
energy can be used as emergency energy, and can also be used to store
energy when the power grid load is low, and output energy when the power
grid load is high. This helps in peak shaving and valley filling, reducing
fluctuations in the power grid.

RERNEEENRETF BENEEAARMESER LA LARES
HAERENRGEHE CEESEANRERELESE - AREIEER - FHE
Pitch control system is one of the core parts of large wind turbine control
system, which plays a very important role in the safe, stable and efficient
operation of the turbine. Pitch control system controls the aerodynamic
torque and aerodynamic power captured by the wind wheel. Stable pitch
control has become one of the hotspots and difficulties in the control
technology research of large-scale wind turbines.
BRIEGZGEAREREREEHASGNZLB O — BHREL S
BE RUANETEETHIEZENER ZREZHAGESNEARHBENR
HEENARINE BENEEZF N/ AEE ) ZHFHAETRK
MRS ZABE AR 2 — o

6S management refers to six items of SEIRI (Sorting), SEITON (Setting in
order), SEISO (Shining), SEIKETSU (Cleaning), SHITSUSE (Literacy), and SAFETY
(Safety), which all start with S, referred to as 6S, aiming at improving the
overall work quality.

65S% £ 1§ #) = B HSEIRI - FE TBSEITON - )& FSEISO « )& ZSEIKETSU « £ &
SHITSUKE ~ %2 2SECURITY R EIE B - FIGASFHISE - fiME6S » E EiEm B8
TEEE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHG

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or
“Director(s)”) is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2024 (the "Year").

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND LISTING
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 28 November
2019. In preparation for the Listing, the Group underwent
reorganisation, details of which are set out in the section headed
“History, Development and Reorganisation” of the Company's
prospectus dated 29 September 2020 (the “Prospectus”).

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 20 October
2020 (the “Listing Date").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the research and development,
integration, manufacturing and sales of pitch control systems
and related components, sales of wind power, wind farm
operation and maintenance business and provision of energy
storage management solutions in the People’s Republic of China.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, including their
respective activities, are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company’s principal place of business in China is at 1
Luoyang North Road, Luoshe Town, Huishan District, Wuxi City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Room 2104, 21st Floor, Global Trade Square, 21
Wong Chuk Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

ARAEER([EFQ|REZ])MARER
EFXBREBERARALENBRR (AEE])
BE_Z_NOE+_A=+—HLEFE(R
FRDEEZRAVBRER -

EEREHRET
ARRAR=ZB-—NF+—-A=-t\BEREH
SHMKAIAEREERAR - REH LD -
AEEETEA FERRARAARL-F
SEFAASTABRNBRER(BRER])
[ ZRREMD]—H-

KRABRRZEZZF+A=Z+B T LWHED
PR ZZ P 7R e

FEEH

ARABR/—FKRELZEBRARF - AEEHNEEE
BREPEARANMBATLER Ba  ®
ENHERRIER RELAAAAT  BOEE
HE RESELMNEEXTRERFHREE
BATE - ARBTEMNBRAAFE(BRER
EEMEBHNGEAMBRERMEI2 -

ETEZSERE
AARRHPBENETELE W APRIHS
EHMREILEREERGIEEIR MRES
METELEEMMABTBEMNENNE2IRIR
M fE 521182104 % -

TEARGERMEERAERRARD —T_NFER
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year ended
31 December 2024, which includes a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the
year and up to the date of this report, and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 8 and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 17 of this annual report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are included in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report, and the discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies, relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers
are included in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report. All these discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has adopted environmental policies for the
implementation of environmentally-friendly measures in its
operations.

The Group is committed to providing a diverse and harmonious
working environment to our employees. Further, the Group
maintains a close relationship with our customers to strengthen
potential business opportunities and endeavours to deliver high
quality services to our customers. The Group maintains a list of
suppliers (based on their quality, prices and capacities).

Further details regarding the above are set out in the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no material

dispute or argument between the Group and its employees,
customers and suppliers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The operations of the Group are primarily carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group's establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the above jurisdiction. During the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Group's operations have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the above jurisdictions in all material respects.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings in the Shares.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 156 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note
24(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”), amounted to
approximately RMB75,119,000.

Under the Companies Law, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed. The Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. Details of the movements in reserves
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in note 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

ExeHS

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five years ended 31 December 2024 is set out
on page 264 of this annual report.

DONATIONS
The total donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024 amounted to approximately RMB nil.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2024
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2024 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
material events relating to the business or financial performance
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up
to the date of this report.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL
ASSETS

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 March 2022 and the section titled “Wind Farm
Operation and Maintenance” in the annual results
announcement of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023. Pursuant to the Equity Purchase Agreement
in relation to the disposal of the decentralized distributed wind
farm project invested and developed by the Group through
Linggiu County Fengyuan Energy Technology Company Limited
(BE B eeREH AR 2AR]) in Linggiu County, Datong City,
Shanxi Province, all conditions precedent therein have been
satisfied, and the disposal has been completed in September
2024. Accordingly, the Company ceases to have any equity
interests in the Target Company.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have any other significant investment or material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries, affiliated companies and joint
ventures during the year ended 31 December 2024. Save for the
information disclosed in this annual report, as at the date of
the annual report, the Group did not have any future plans for
significant investments or capital assets approved by the Board.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue derived
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 27% and 75% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, purchases from the
Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 16% and 45% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.
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Report of the Directors

ExeHS

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up
to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff (Chief executive officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Hao
Ms. Cheng Li Qin

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Hung Pui Yu

Mr. Kang Jian

Mr. Li Shusheng

In accordance with Article 84 of the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company (“Article of Association”),
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include
(so far as necessary to ascertain the number of directors to retire
by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election.

Accordingly, at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 27 June 2025, Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff, Mr. Li Shusheng
and Ms. Hung Pui Yu, in accordance with Article 84 of the
Articles of Association, shall retire from office and have offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2025 AGM are

set out in the circular to shareholders of the Company dated
25 April 2025.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

-
RBE-_ZET_NWE+-_A=1+—BILEERE
HEAFEHRBHNES A

BITES
BE2AELE(EE)
RBIRE L (TTHAEZ)

EBITES
FHERE
BEHLL

BIAFBITES
AR B 2+
FEFEE

RIFARREERT REFIAMEZAMA (AL
BRRAR]) Fealk EEERRBFARE L
ER=Z D2 WNESFEHEABLIF=Q)NE
g AINSBROBEADPR=Z02 —0AB)A
WnRE EBUEFEVERLE=FNER
BEARELRE-R - REESTRERBE
BEURERENRKGLEBEETIESZ K
AR EENEESEBRGIEERTETESA
BMEBLH)EMNEERIRERERLE
=

At REBEABERAMRFEAE EFR-F
“THFEARNAZTERRTHNRERREFK
gL-RERELE FEAEEAMBMEZL
RRE - YEERRERRBFEAS LEEE
(Ea

BR-_ZE_AFRRBAFASLEENES
HBEERABRATS_AFHEAZTHAR
ARRRBRBEA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules, save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no
change to any information required to be disclosed in relation
to any Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) under
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2025 annual general meeting of the Company (the “2025
AGM") will be held on Friday, 27 June 2025. Notice of the 2025
AGM has been published on HKEx website and the Company
website.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2025
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 24 June 2025 (Tuesday) to 27 June 2025 (Friday), both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of its shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2025 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong, for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 June
2025 (Monday) for registration of transfer.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company considered each of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 18 to 24 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
ExeWmE

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each
of the executive and non-executive Directors and a letter of
appointment with each of the independent non-executive
Directors.
of appointment is for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date or date of appointment, and
sets out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. All
Directors are subject to retirement from office and re-election at
the AGM of the Company in accordance with the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company.

Each of the service contracts and the letters

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors has entered
into, or has proposed to enter into, a service contract with
any member of our Group (other than contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2024.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR
ASSOCIATES IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and including the date of this report, none of
the Directors or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) was considered to be interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the amended and restated articles of association
of the Company, the Directors and other officers of the Group
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators,
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts.
The Company has purchased the directors and officers liability
insurance to provide appropriate protection for its Directors and
senior management of the Company. The permitted indemnity
provision was in force during the year ended 31 December 2024
for the benefit of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS
Details of the
management, together with those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

remuneration of the Directors and senior

statements.

The
senior management (including salaries and other benefits)
are recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the
Board’s approval, with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and performance of the Group.

remuneration packages of individual Directors and

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (if applicable) for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Report of the Directors
BEEgRE

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, none of the
Directors or controlling shareholders, nor a connected party of
any Directors or controlling shareholders, had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

SHARE OPTIONS OF THE COMPANY

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which was adopted by written
resolutions passed by its shareholders on 16 July 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to the Eligible Participants (including
(i) any fulltime employees (including any executive Director
but excluding any non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Director) of the Company, any subsidiary or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest (an “Invested Entity”); (ii) any independent non-executive
Director and chief executive (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any subsidiary; (iii) any Director (including
independent non-executive Director) and chief executive (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of any Invested Entity; (iv) any
adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (v) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any
customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(vii) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (viii) any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity), to
enable the Group to grant Options to the Eligible Participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
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The Board shall, in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be entitled but shall not be
bound at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing
from the Adoption Date to make an offer as the Board may in
their absolute discretion impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation to the options (which shall be stated in
the letter containing the offer) to any person belonging to the
Eligible Participant(s) to subscribe, and no person other than the
Eligible Participant named in such the offer may subscribe.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares. The total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date (i.e. not exceeding 25,000,000 Shares). However,
the maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme adopted by the Group shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options under the Share Option Scheme and the options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares from time
to time, without separate approval obtained from the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting. The Company may specify a
minimum holding period and performance conditions or targets
which must be achieved before the options can be exercised by
the grantees of the Share Option Scheme. The amount payable
by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of the offer shall
be RMB1.00. The options granted are exercisable for a period
(which may not be later than ten (10) years from the offer date
of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof and, in the absence of such determination,
from the offer date of such option to the earlier of (i) the date
on which such option lapses; and (ii) ten (10) years from the
offer date of that option.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
as at the date of the annual report is 25,000,000 (10% of the
total issued share capital).

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2024. The Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the Adoption Date.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
the Company’s holding companies or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval
by shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
of the Company. The remuneration payable to Directors are
determined by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee with reference to the Company's
remuneration policy, and based on the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities within the Group, their contribution to the Group
and the prevailing market environment.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 160 employees in
total (31 December 2023: 151). The Group determines the
salary of its employees based on their qualifications,
experiences and performance. The remuneration package
offered by the Group to its employees includes salary and
discretionary year end bonus. The Group also provides a
retirement scheme for all eligible employees as stated below.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
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by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were MI8(C3FT&E E T B TAEFETEELHH
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions 1Z¥ 57 8| ([1ZX%<F8]) - BRI E RN A 7 M B2
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in FTHIMEZ RAB T ¢

Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as adopted by the Company,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

(i) Directors’ interests in the Company

() ESREFLATNESR

Number of

Shares held/ Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Interested in shareholding
Fits %A
EEfs S EEnEasE FiRRaakt
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(PfFE1) (P 5E3)
Mr. Cheng Liguan Richard Interest in a controlled 187,500,000 (L) 75%
("Mr. Richard Cheng”) corporation (Note 2)
BE2ARE(IRER2EE]D 2% B #E o (P 5E2) 187,500,000 (L) 75%
TEMNREEREERERAR ZZT-MOFFER
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(ii)
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Notes:

1.

The letter (L) denotes the person’s long position in such
Shares.

These Shares are held by Hongyuan BVI. The entire issued
shares of Hongyuan BVI are legally and beneficially owned
by Mr. Richard Cheng, the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Accordingly, Mr. Richard Cheng is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Hongyuan BVI under Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares interested, if any, divided by the
number of Shares in issue of 250,000,000 as at
31 December 2024.

B &

[LIEZATRZERDOER

ZE WD A BARBVIEEA © SARBVIZ
BETRNBESSEIERITESE
B2rEREEERER Al BEE
FRHEGEOIEXVE  REZ L EHR
BRSLEBVIF BB K %A #

<

Ao EEERTNRD REBERSG
(nB)BEHEBAR T _mMF+ - =
+— BB %77 % # 5 250,000,000%% °

Directors’ interests in associated corporation of the (i) EENAATIHE ZEER
Company
Number of
Name of associated Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity Interested in  shareholding
Fite HAE
EEHs 8= E &8 5 & =B % i B FRE S
Mr. Richard Cheng Hongyuan Company Limited  Beneficial owner 1 100%
(Note 2) ("Hongyuan BVI") (Note 1)

BEa2r4(MiE2) shEFRAR([5AEBVI) BEmfEA A

Notes:

(B =ET)

Hongyuan BVI is a direct Shareholder of the Company and
is an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Richard Cheng is a director of Hongyuan BVI.

GEE
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors are aware, the
interests or short positions of the entities/persons, other than
a Director or chief executives of the Company, in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, were
as follows:

Substantial shareholders’ interest in the Company
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Number of

Shares held/ Percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity Interested in Shareholding
Fite %A
BRERE HE 54 gz ROEE FiRE 7L
(Note 1) (Note 4)
(BF3E1) (Mf7E4)
Hongyuan BVI (Note 2) Beneficial owner 187,500,000 (L) 75%
sk iEBVI (P 5E2) EnEAA 187,500,000 (L) 75%
Ms. Zhou Xuan (Note 3) Interest of spouse 187,500,000 (L) 75%
JE BE 2 & (B 3E3) o 15 7 = 187,500,000 (L) 75%
TEMARGERMEERARAED —T_NFEER
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Notes:

1. The letter “L"” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
Shares.

2. Hongyuan BVI is wholly owned by Mr. Richard Cheng. Under the
SFO, Mr. Richard Cheng is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Hongyuan BVI is interested.

3. Ms. Zhou Xuan, being the spouse of Mr. Richard Cheng, is
deemed, or taken to be, interested in the Shares in which
Mr. Richard Cheng is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

4. The percentage represents the total number of the Shares and
the underlying Shares interested, if any, divided by the number
of Shares in issue of 250,000,000 as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company
had not been notified of any entities/persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, under which the Company would be
required to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 25 to 45 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of
the Company.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

B &

1. FEILIRFTZER ALRBEOOEER -

2. SMEBVIHIEE 2 E2EHAE - REBEK
BE G - &i%f‘ﬁi%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁA%LBv%ﬁ
R ERESERDPHEEERS -

3. BMBEFRHMEGOmME ARKEIE/RER
EEENEBRERIRIERER2ALHE
BREaNRhHEGER -

4. DEEEEENRO RABR K (E)
m%ﬁ(ﬁ?lf/ﬁﬁ/\_v_mi‘f A=+—HBE %
77 R% 17 2 B 250,000,0000% °

X LT BEEN  RZE_OF+ A=+
—HB ARRTEENSEMNERE AL(E
EYEARABEEZTHRABBRIN RRH S AEH
BRIDFHEBREZFRAEGRIEXVHBE2R
3R BRNAR A EENES I AR

HARBERARNRIREES K BE K FE336

KEFBENESROESIRA -
BEREEE
AARGEIRENEHREREANRAS R

SR EFHIN A QR BZLLHIRAREGHRE
LEMBMOMELEEERI -

TtEER
EBARBEMNTIECEESRERERN
ARERESZASEN D EEARE o

BE HENEOES

RAFEE  ARARSEEMNEBRRHER
B HEXBEQAARQAMEM LEHES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



During the Year, the Company has not entered into or

maintained any equity-linked agreements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 have been audited by KPMG. KPMG shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
company is to be proposed at the 2025 AGM.

There was no change in auditor of the Company since the
Listing.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The Audit
Committee has three members comprising three independent
non-executive Directors, being Ms. Hung Pui Yu (“Ms. Hung"),
Mr. Kang Jian and Mr. Li Shusheng. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Ms. Hung, who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience as required by Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee of the Company has
reviewed the annual results of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024 and the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 prepared in accordance with the
IFRSs.

For and on behalf of the Board
Cheng Liquan Richard
Chairman

28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

7 31 1% BB 3R

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 155 to 263,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that,

judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

in our professional

Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 N7 1% SR e &

HE#ERER
ARECFESRERMANERHE  RRY
FHEEMBRENERXZDEENEH - &
FERDREMERBEEBEAM BRI LA
ARRKETRRE HMATSHZSFIFREMR
BERENER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on this matter.

Loss allowances for trade receivables other than tariff premium receivables

FE W 2 {5 Bt LA S 6 B2 55 FRE e o TR B S 1 15 4

Refer to Note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 173 to 178.
BREGE R BFHENF25@)RE173E178H B9 &7 BE -

The Key Audit Matter
FAREZEIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ETNAREERARENSE

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount
of the Group's trade receivables other than tariff
premium receivables totalled RMB45.6 million, against
which a loss allowance of RMB2.0 million for expected
(ECLs) was made.
amount of the Group's trade receivables other than

credit losses The net carrying
tariff premium receivables represented approximately
11% of the total assets as at 31 December 2024.
RZZBE_WF+_A=+—H BEEENEKRSEE
MALASNY B BN IEREAERARBIS6BE
TomEBEAER(RBEABREDIELNERRE
BEAARB20BE8 L - R-_ZE-_MFE+_A=+—
B EXEERKEEMINAINGE S EKKIED R
EFENRBREENI% °

Management measures the ECL allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs using a provision matrix
based on the ageing of trade receivable balances as at
31 December 2024.
ERECEAER TS _NFT_A=t—HNEHE
WHRIREHRENBEEER  R2HRYEEEBEN
SRAERHEEBERESE -

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade
receivables included the following:

B ERKREER MAINNE Z EWFIATRHRE
EERBRENETEFBEEATEIE:

receivables other than tariff premium

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and the
estimation of the ECL allowance;

e TEHIEITHERES  WHRERKGEER
EEBEBEBAENEIZANIMITEH R B
TIBR BGEEAR R

implementation

o evaluating the Group's policy and method for
estimating the ECL allowance with reference to
the applicable accounting standard;
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Loss allowances for trade receivables other than tariff premium receivables
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Refer to Note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 173 to 178.
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The Key Audit Matter
GE R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB A EERARENSER

We identified the ECL allowance for trade receivables
other than tariff premium receivables as a key audit
matter because of the significance of the balance to
statements, and the
assessment of the ECL allowance is inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

B EWEBRMAINE S RKFENTEREES
BEREINAEREFTE REREKRHEAM
BHREMEBEXR BERHAGEEEREBNAERE
FABFEM FTEETEBELRERAE -

the consolidated financial
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o evaluating the data relevance and reliability by
assessing whether trade
correctly categorised in the trade receivables
ageing report by comparing individual items
therein with sales invoices and other relevant

receivables were

underlying documentation;

e FHRUREZHEWHIERERSEEHRIES
BEHEERREMMBEXY - 5T EE S EUGK
BHREREPRACERSH  UREAHEEE
BY A8 A M K AT SE L

o re-performing the calculation of the ECL
allowance as at 31 December 2024 based on
the Group’s policy and method; and

e BE BEEENTEHEEFERBRRESA
% EBHHER-_E-_NE+=—A=+—HH
BiEEE: R

o evaluating the overall reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL by performing an independent
calculation.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

materially

our knowledge obtained in the audit or

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of

the consolidated financial statements,
design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

whether due to
fraud or error,

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 % BRAD S

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit in this
independent auditor’s report Yue Tat Wai.

resulting

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

I%TI:IE

For the year ended 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE-_Z_NE+-A=+—BILEE

(AANRBTTIIR)

2024 2023
g 111 - —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
H &t ARETR AR®T T
Revenue I #= 4 148,280 284,075
Cost of sales HE A (157,248) (257,130)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8B)E7 (8.968) 26,945
Other revenue H th Iy 2= 5(a) 1,642 3,756
Other net gain/(loss) H ez, (E518)
HRE 5(b) 2,122 (341)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (8,486) (8,302)
Administrative and other operating T R HAE &
expenses X (21,782) (30,697)
Impairment loss on loans to third parties (2t FE=HEX
EoREREN i 6(c) (3,408) —
Loss from operations EEBE (38,880) (8,639)
Net finance costs A& AN FRR 6(a) (3,200) (3,022)
Loss before taxation BRI A 6 (42,080) (11,661)
Income tax FT 15 %% 7 2,652 (821)
Loss for the year FREE (39,428) (12,482)
Attributable to: LT &FHRE:
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIERRKRE (34,733) (10,144)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = (4,695) (2,338)
Loss for the year FREE (39,428) (12,482)
Loss per share BiEE 10
Basic and diluted (RMB) HA K #5E
(ANR¥TT) (0.139) (0.041)

The notes on pages 163 to 263 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEakEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-_MNF+_A=+—HIEFE CAARETIIR)

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARETTT

Loss for the year FREEE (39,428) (12,482)

Other comprehensive income for the year HEEHMEZEE W

(after tax adjustments)

[tem that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss:

(BLRAE)
TEEH DI RBEZHY
EH -

Exchange difference on translation of financial & AL & # I A R

statements of entities with functional (TARE ] E R
currencies other than Renminbi (“RMB") S RAE L =5 1,237 473

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to A 1 7] 52 5 1 7 48 7
profit or loss: BamAryEA -

Exchange difference on translation of financial & AL & # I A R

statements of entities with functional BB ImED

currencies other than RMB PE 3 =58 (1,159) (440)
Other comprehensive income for the year FAHHMG2EUZE 78 33
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2HEW L (39,350) (12,449)
Attributable to: LT&BEW:
Equity shareholders of the Company KArERBE (34,655) (10,111)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M = (4,695) (2,338)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2HEW L (39,350) (12,449)

The notes on pages 163 to 263 form part of these financial £5163Z2635 FT i M it & 5% L 81 75 R & 40 K 3P

I\ o

statements. 7]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

or &= MBS AN L R

At 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)
REZZE=ME+=H=+—H

(AANR®TTIIR)

2024 2023
—E-EF —T-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
7 it ARETT ARBEFTIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEE 11 111,749 125,672
Interests in joint ventures REERAINER 13 — —
Contract assets aREE 14(a) 17,102 13,831
Other receivables E fib & W 5RIE 17 416 600
Deferred tax assets FRIERIBE E 23(b) 4,480 1,123
133,747 141,226
Current assets REEE
Assets held for sale HFIELEEE 15 — 7,048
Inventories BE 16 15,446 12,989
Contract assets EREE 14(a) 47,955 36,874
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E A e
RIE 17 136,706 218,922
Loans to third parties RHEFE=ZFH
B 18 4,913 25,359
Cash and cash equivalents BE MRS EEBEY 19(a) 51,005 55,824
Pledged and restricted deposits B & X R
73 19(b) 8,567 20,097
264,592 377,113
Current liabilities k=R
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R H A
EEN 20 67,053 68,561
Trade and other payables B 5 & H At et
N8 21 97,886 169,749
Lease liabilities HEaE 22 3,150 4,310
Contract liabilities ERAaE 14(b) 148 995
Current taxation BD HA 7 18 23(a) 297 463
168,534 244,078
Net current assets REEEFHE 96,058 133,035
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHER 229,805 274,261
TEMBREREMEERERAR —T_NFEFR




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR B WS AR L R

At 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)
RZBZME+ZA=+—H UARBITIITR)

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

1 &t ARBFRT ARETTT

Non-current liabilities EREERE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A &
RIE 21 577 2,093
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 7,024 10,614
7,601 12,707
NET ASSETS EEFHE 222,204 261,554
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXREE
Share capital % AR 24(c) 2,168 2,168
Reserves B 221,069 255,724
Total equity attributable to equity AATHEZRE
shareholders of the Company FE{LHER R 223,237 257,892
Non-controlling interests iR EDR (1,033) 3,662
TOTAL EQUITY R 222,204 261,554

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson HAEZENR _ZTE-_AF=A=-+/\BHH#ERK

28 March 2025. KT
Cheng Liquan Richard Cheng Lifu Cliff
BEE2 BEK
Directors Directors
EFE EZE

The notes on pages 163 to 263 form part of these financial 2163E263E FT it & 7% Z 0 7% MR A K 2B
statements. n

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e mBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-_MF+_A=+—HIEFE CUAARETIIF)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRRIERRREN
PRC Non-
Share Share Other  statutory  Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests  Total equity
PEEE

BA BHEE  EbEE W EARE REEN Bt FRRES  EGAR
Note RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
#iE  ARETTL ARETR ARETL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETI ARETRT ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2023 ~ RZ-F==%
-R-BH&H 2,168 95,992 31,646 9,490 (1,278) 129,985 268,003 — 268,003

Changes in equity for 2023: Z—B-=E#R%H:

Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (10,144)  (10,144) (2338 (12,482
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef1 2Bl - - - — 33 - 33 — 33
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - — — — 33 (10,144) (10,111) (2,338) (12,449)
Capital contributions from FEREENEANLE

non-controlling interests - - - — - - - 6,000 6,000
Appropriation of reserve PEGEE 24(a)ii) — — — 775 — (775) — — —
Balance at 31 December R-ZB-=Z%+=R

2023 S+-AMEe 2,168 95,992 31,646 10,265 (1,245) 119,066 257,892 3,662 261,554

The notes on pages 163 to 263 form part of these financial $163Z263H FraElMi it &% 5 8 7 Rk 405K 26
statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAESEBE

For the year ended 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-_MNF+_A=+—HIEFE CAARETIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATRBRREN
PRC Non-
Share Share Other  statutory Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total equity
hEEE

kE  RiteR ReRG B ERRE RERH 4 kEREn Ho48
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
fiE  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETFR ARBTR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2024 ~ RZ=F=ME
-R-BHEH 2,168 95,992 31,646 10,265 (1,245) 119,066 257,892 3662 261,554

Changes in equity for 2024: —B-MEHBEE:

Loss for the year FRER = = - - - (34733)  (34.733) (4,695  (39,428)
Other comprehensive income  E 12 E Mz = = = = 78 = 78 - 78
Total comprehensive income 2ARELE = - - - 78 (34,733) (34,655) (4,695) (39,350)
Appropriation of reserve PEFEE 24(a)i) - - - 384 — (384) — — -

Balance at 31 December RZF-ME+=A
@ 2024 =+-ANER 2,168 95,992 31,646 10,649 (1,167) 83,949 223,237 (1,033) 222,204

o

The notes on pages 163 to 263 form part of these financial £5163Z2635 FT & M it & 5% & 81 75 & 40 K 3P
statements. b2
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE-_Z_NE+-A=+—BILEE

(AARETTIIR)

2024 2023
—E-mE —T=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
H &t ARETR AREF T
Operating activities & “%?)J
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #£ % (FTH),/Fr 5
He 19(c) (11,578) 10,821
Tax paid EAIHIE (871) (1,166)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEEH (A
operating activities FiRRE$HE (12,449) 9,655
Investing activities B’EEE
Payment for the acquisition of property, WEYHE - RE X
plant and equipment B ANEN (6,590) (26,382)
Proceeds received from disposal of HESE QA #ER
interests in joint ventures FT W ER BT 15 3018 4,200 —
Loans to a third party mM—E2E=FEX (80) (150)
Repayment of loans to a related party M@ RE=
and third parties BEEER 17,118 89
Interest received 2 A 673 250
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETHME
investing activities (FFA)R&%8# 15,321 (26,193)
Financing activities REEE
Capital contributions from EERERNE R
non-controlling interests HE 12 — 6,000
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHESER
#B 19(d) (4,750) (5,456)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSFE
jB ) 19(d) (566) (686)
Proceeds from bank loans RITE RS RIE 19(d) 44,788 24,700
Repayment of bank loans Euafﬁﬁf% 19(d) (20,450) (14,900)
Proceeds from loans due to a related RE@E T ER
party T8 718 19(d) — 20,000
Repayment of loans due to a related 18 i% JE 1~ 8 B
party B 19(d) (20,000) —
Repayment of loans due to third parties (EEEMNE=7
A 19(d) (6,000) (800)
Interest paid B FE 19(d) (1,047) (621)
TEMNREEREERBERAR ZTE-MFFER




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
ERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-_MNF+_A=+—HIEFE CAARETIIR)

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

1 &t ARBFRT ARETTT

Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTA),
financing activities FEREEAE (8,025) 28,237
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HEGRd) tEm
B (5,153) 11,699
Cash at 1 January R—B—BHRE 19(a) 55,824 43,911
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExEgsHneeE
changes 334 214
Cash at 31 December w+=—HA=+—H
HiRE 19(a) 51,005 55,824

The notes on pages 163 to 263 form part of these financial 551632263 H AT it &% 5 01 7% &< AR 2B

statements. 7 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ff %55 R 3% Bt &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAIEE  BARARKETIIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 November 2019 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 20 October
2020. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development, integration, manufacture and sales of pitch
control systems and related components, wind power
generation, wind farm operation and maintenance
business and energy storage business in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Material accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 < Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

2 EXG

(b)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group's interests in joint
ventures.

Items included in these consolidated financial
statements of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the wunderlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company
is Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to nearest thousands, which is the presentation
currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except as set out in the accounting policies
hereunder.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell (see Note 2(u)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with [FRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI BEE - BRIAARETTIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFBEE)

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) MBHROEREE(EZ)
statements (Continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are ZEhE R AE F"E-HE BRERERE
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to M@t EEr BRI ERE T’Eﬁﬁﬁ%
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in EETHHARA _JZ{ HEIR=E:C R P
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects NHESERZE BenfEHE @
only that period, or in the period of the revision and f& 7T # B FE) A0 K 2 B P 3R o

future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application 1P B R A B B B S R 2R A BE BT
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial ELEOEMBRRBEEATENH
statements and major sources of estimation B AR T HERRNEER
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3. TRE M3 ©

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) ﬁ"*fﬁi%ﬁif]
The IASB has issued the following amendments to B EEESE EM IR
IFRSs that are first effective for the current AEEER ST EEEXERDE
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the ETERMBRELER  Hh - U
following developments are relevant to the Group's TETEAEBENTHEHRERERA :

financial statements:

e Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial . R LB — AF
statements — Classification of liabilities as ftﬁ% # 5 #H — B /,%\Eﬁfﬁ BT
current or non-current and amendments to IAS B I B R BIBR 2 5 A
1, Presentation of financial statements — Non- FI1EH — HBHREXINE — F
current liabilities with covenants R FE BB EREE]

e Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases — Lease . PRI E R F1658 —
liability in a sale and leaseback HE — E#EHFYHHEER

EHMERT

. Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows . BB et EBFETRELAE
and IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures 7 A0 B B B 75 ¥R 45 2E Bl B 75%
— Supplier finance arrangements THTH: #E — REEH

BEZHMIEE]

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRTE  BRIKARETHIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXTG
(Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (o)

None of these developments had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior years have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective

for the current accounting period.

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(d)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in

the consolidated financial statements from the date
on which control commences until the date on

which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions,

and any

unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests (“NCI")
either at fair value or at the NCI's proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEFSHIET ' BRINAAREITHR)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEstEE(E)
(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MIBATIRIEERER (&)
(Continued)

NCI are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. NCI in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between NCI and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of NCI and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with Notes 2(m) or 2(n)
depending on the nature of the liability.

allocation of the total

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, related NCI and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in

and any

that former subsidiary is measured at fair value
when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)), unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group classified as held for sale) (see Note 2(u)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Joint ventures

2

(e)

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group or the Company has joint control, whereby
the Group or the Company has the rights to the net
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its

assets and obligations for its liabilities.

An interest in a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group classified as

held for sale (see Note 2(u)).

They are initially

recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs.
Subsequently, the consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

investees, until the date on which

influence or joint control ceases.

("OCl") of those
significant

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method, together
with any other long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture (after applying the ECLs model to such other
long-term interests where applicable see Note 2(h)

(i)).

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with
equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent

there is no evidence of impairment.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
which includes capitalised borrowing costs (which is,
in the case of assets acquired
combination, the acquisition date fair value). Items of
property, plant and equipment including right-of-use
are stated at cost less accumulated

in a business

assets
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see Note 2(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(s)).

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate
components).

items (major

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

values, if any,
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(BRIFESHIEE  BTAKARKEITIIR)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEstEEE)
(Continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) f) VX -BERSDREE)
Estimated useful life
1% &1 7] (& 7 E B
Leasehold land (see Note 2(g)) 50 years
FE T (R M E2(g)) 504F
Plant and buildings 20 years or remaining lease terms
BB RETF 20%F sk &2 T 78 A7
Generators and other equipment 5-20 years
BERREMRE 5Z204F
Office equipment and others 2-5 years
WNFRE R EHAM 2E5%F

Depreciation methods, useful
values are

appropriate.

lives and
reviewed annually and adjusted if

residual

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Construction in progress represents properties under
construction and machinery and equipment pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)). Cost comprises the
purchase costs of the asset and the related
construction and installation costs.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is ready for its
intended use and depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates in accordance with the
depreciation policies specified above.

No depreciation is
construction in progress.

provided in respect of

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEBSELE  THIAARE TS| R)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXGstEE (&)
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (g) HESE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is
the case if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that

use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of 12
months or less, and leases of low- value items.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
item,
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If not
capitalised, the associated
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

low-value the Group decides whether to

lease payments are

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability, and are charged
to profit or loss as incurred.
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

2 EXG

(9)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 2(f)
and 2(h)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
lease modification, which means a change in the
scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract, if
such modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and presents the
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

lease

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL"s):

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits,
receivables and loans to third parties);

trade and other

—  contract assets (see Note 2(j)); and

— non-equity securities measured at fair
value through other
income (FVOCI) (recycling).

comprehensive

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit
measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls between the contractual and
expected amounts.

losses. Generally, credit losses are
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following if the effect is
material:

rates

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial

recognition or an approximation thereof;

current

— variable-rate financial assets:

effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of
ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date (or a shorter period if
the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months); and

— lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-months
ECLs:

— financial instruments that are determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting

date; and
— other financial instruments for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default

occurring over the expected life of the

financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and

contract assets are always measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when measuring
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s

historical experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBIEE

2

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

C BRAIAARBTIIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when:

— the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

— the financial asset is 90 days past due.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all

recognised as an

financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in non-equity securities
that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in OCI
and accumulated
(recycling) does not reduce the carrying amount
of the financial asset in the statement of

financial position.

in the fair value reserve
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

— the restructuring of a loan or advance by
the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

— it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 < Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBIEE -

2

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRIA AR TTIIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

(i)

contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract assets is written off to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the asset
becomes three years past due or when the
Group otherwise determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
(other than property carried at revalued
amounts, investment property, inventories and
other contract costs, contract assets and
deferred tax assets) to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash-generating units
("CGU"s). Goodwill arising from a business
combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(iii)

(Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in Profit or
Loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the resulting carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see Notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Continued)

()

()]

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(r)(i)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the terms in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECLs (see Note 2(h)(i)) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration becomes unconditional (see Note 2(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 2(r)(i)). A
contract liability is also recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such latter cases, a
corresponding receivable is also recognised (see Note

2(k)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(r)(i)).
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration and only
the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost (see Note 2(h)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and other short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an in significant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL (see
Note 2(h)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade
and other payables are stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently, these
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with Note 2(s).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBIEE -

2

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRIA AR TTIIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid
if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Contributions to local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the
Group's subsidiaries located are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred, except
to the extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises costs for a restructuring.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in Profit or Loss except
to the extent that it
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or
in OCl.

relates to a business

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also
includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

— temporary differences on the initial recognition

of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

— temporary differences related to investment in

subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)
The Group

2 EXG

(p)

recognized deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its

lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which

they can be used.

Future taxable profits are

determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a
deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits,

adjusted for

reversals of existing temporary

differences, are considered, based on the business

plans for individual subsidiaries

in the Group.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting

date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be

realised; such

probability of future taxable profits improves.

reductions are reversed when the

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if

certain criteria are met.

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(q)

Generally, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised when the
underlying products or services are sold, based on
historical warranty data and a weighting of possible
outcomes against their associated probabilities.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI BEE - BRIAARETTIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXGstEE (&)
(Continued)
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (q) BERJAER (Z)

(Continued)

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing with the contract, which is determined
based on the incremental costs of fulfilling the
obligation under that contract and an allocation of
other costs directly related to fulfilling that contract.
Before a provision is established, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, a separate asset is recognised for any
expected reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBIEE -

BRIA AR TTIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it

arises from the sale of goods or the provision of

services in the ordinary course of the Group's

business.

(r)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers

In determining whether the Group acts as a
principal or as an agent, it considers whether it
obtains control of the products before they are
transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group's ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the
benefits from the products.

remaining

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as

of promised

value added tax or other sales taxes.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is
accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

(a) Sales of pitch control systems and related
components, wind farm consumables and
energy storage products
Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products.

(b)  Sales of wind power
Revenue is recognised upon transmission
of electricity to the power grid company
where the control of the electricity is
transferred at the same time.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBETE  GRAIKAARBITIITR)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EX=EsBRK (&)
(Continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (Continued) n WEEHEMBUNE)
(i) Revenue from contracts with customers (i) EBEEFEITELHBI 7 (E)
(Continued)
(c)  Rendering of wind farm maintenance, (c) 1EHEELGHE TR

(d)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

upgrade and modification services, energy
storage management services and
provision of wind energy related
consultancy services

Revenue from the rendering of services is
recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Other practical expedients applied
In addition, the Group has applied the
following practical expedients:

— For sales contracts that had an
original expected duration of one
year or less, the Group has not
disclosed information related to the
aggregated
transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations
in accordance with paragraph 121(a)
of IFRS 15.

amount of the

— The Group has
costs of obtaining
contracts as an expense when
incurred in accordance with
paragraph 94 of IFRS 15, as the
amortisation period of the assets
that the Group otherwise would
have recognised is within the same
reporting period as the date of
entering into the contract.

recognised the
incremental
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(ij) Revenue from other sources and other
income

(a)

(b)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. The ‘effective
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired). However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Borrowing costs

2 EXG

(s)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which

they are incurred.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

(t)

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into

the respective functional

currencies of group

companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the

transactions.

Monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit

or loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into RMB at the exchange

rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the exchange reserve, except to

the extent that the translation difference is allocated

to NCI.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control, joint control is
lost, the cumulative amount in the exchange reserve
related to that foreign operation is reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
On disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation that
have been attributed to the NCI shall be
derecognised, but shall not be reclassified to profit
or loss. If the Group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed
to NCI. When the Group disposes of only part of
joint venture while retaining joint control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal group comprising
assets and liabilities, are classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that they will be recovered

primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use.
Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally

measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a
disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then
to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro-rata
basis, except that no loss is allocated to deferred tax
assets,
(other than investments in subsidiaries,
and joint ventures) and investment properties, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the
Group's other accounting policies. Impairment losses
on initial classification as held for sale or held for
distribution and subsequent gains and losses on
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

employee benefits assets, financial assets

associates
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 KEETER (&)
(Continued)
(u) Non-current assets held for sale (Continued) (u) ?#1’FH:|'EE'15~'F0".§J§;§(4%)

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment are no longer
amortised or depreciated, and any equity-accounted
investee is no longer equity accounted.

(v) Related parties (v)
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third

entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRIEZBIEE -

3

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRIA AR TTIIR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

()

(i)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling products with similar
nature. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories
write-down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s net assets
value. The Group reassesses these estimates
annually.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of loss allowance
for ECLs on trade receivables that are measured at
amortised cost based on the credit risk of the
respective financial instruments. The loss allowance
amount is measured as the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
with the consideration of expected future credit loss
of the instrument. The
assessment of the credit risk of the respective
financial instrument involves a degree of estimation
and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or more than expected, a

respective financial

material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly.

WAt B R g 3t

B THERZENEZHRIRMOT

()

(i)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRI BEE - BRIAARETTIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WnmE5EBBE
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
The principal activities of the Group are the research AEENEEZEXZBRWE BS -
and development, integration, manufacture and sales RUERHEFRITEHI RS R AEEA
of pitch control systems and related components, " HERE REHELEREE
sales of wind power, wind farm operation and EBURBEEB AEBEFEXE
maintenance business and energy storage business. BHEZF BRI T4 HE -

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue () Wzmsn#HE
Disaggregation of revenue by business lines is BREBHSZE KGR D AN
as follows: N
2024 2023
—E-HE —FT-=
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARET T

Revenue from contracts with [ PR B 75 58 5 ZE Bl
customers within the scope of FISTHREE R

IFRS 15 EFREHWE
— Sales of pitch control systems — — $%5 & £5 %2 )
and related components ES S &l
1 53,669 217,569
— Sales of wind power — HERE 15,568 17,471
— Wind farm operation and — REHES
maintenance business MEEETS 10,357 19,921
— Energy storage business — R ER 68,686 29,114
148,280 284,075
The Group's revenue from contracts with REBERP & LY i 3 [E
customers were recognised on a point in time MR EERER o
basis.

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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(BRIEZBIHEE

4

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

C BRAIAARBTIIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group had four (2023: one) customers
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2024. In 2024,
sales of pitch control systems and
components, sales of wind power and energy
storage business to these customers, including
sales to entities which are known to the Group
to be under common control with the
customer, amounted to RMB98,380,000 (2023:
RMB195,127,000).
credit risk arising from the customers are set
out in Note 25(a).

revenue from
related

Details of concentrations of

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

As at 31 December 2024,
applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 to its sales contracts for goods
such that information about revenue expected
to be recognised in the future is not disclosed
in respect of revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when
performance obligations under the contracts for
sales of goods that had an expected duration
of one year or less.

the Group has

it satisfies the remaining

4

Wt B 53 BB R & (42

(a) Mgz (%&)
(i) WzHHEE)
BE_T_NMF+-_A=1—

(ii)
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by division, which
is organised by business lines (sales of pitch control
systems and related components, sales of wind
wind farm operation and maintenance
business and energy storage business). In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following four reportable
segments. No individually mentioned operating
segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

power,

o Sales of pitch control systems and related
components: it engages in the research and
development,
sales of the pitch control systems and related

components in wind turbines manufacture;

integration, manufacture and

o Sales of wind power: it engages in the sales of
wind power electricity generated from wind
farms;

o Wind farm operation and maintenance business:
it provides
maintenance, upgrade and modification services
and engages in the sales of wind farm
consumables; and

wind farm operation and

o Energy storage business: it engages in research
and development, integration, manufacture and
sales of energy storage products and provision
of related services.
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(BRIEZBIEE -

4

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRIA AR TTIIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results and assets

For the purpose of assessing
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior
management monitors the results and assets

segment
executive

attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

include trade and other
contract assets and
with the
joint ventures,

Segment assets
receivables,
property,
exception of
deferred tax assets, assets held for sale, loans
to third parties, cash and cash equivalents, and
pledged deposits.

inventories,
plant and equipment,
interests in

The measure used for reporting segment profit/
(loss) is gross profit/(loss).

4 WmRSEBBE(E

(b) S#EE (=)

() HBEEREDE
RTHEDBREMNED B 2
BETERIE  AEESK
EEERBEATERE SR
AHREDRHEEMEE

DHMEEBRE S REMBER
KB FE AREEUED
PE WMEMERE ETEE
EELEEDR BREREAER
E FEHEEE RETE
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AR B ERIFR -
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M/ (B18) o
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(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WnmRkoMmE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) REPERE (&)

() Segment results and assets (Continued) (i) HEBEEREEZEE)
Information regarding the Group's reportable HE-_FT-_MEFR-_FT_=
segments as provided to the Group’s most +ZA=+—HLEFE BE
senior executive management for the purposes BOBEMTESBRIAEMASE
of resources allocation and assessment of EsaETHEEABRED
segment performance for the vyears ended AEEBAHRE DI ER N
31 December 2024 and 2023 is set out below: N

2024
—EomE
Sales of
pitch control Wind farm
systems and operation and Energy
related Sales of wind maintenance storage
components power business business Total
SHESREE
E L] REREER
ae HERE BHEER T &%
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETRL  ARETRT  ARETRT  ARETRT ARETR

Reportable segment revenue EEX GRS 53,669 15,568 10,357 68,686 148,280
Reportable segment (loss)/ AE2HH P
profit (B#B)/&H (9,423) 6,496 2,466 (8,507) (8,968)
Reportable segment assets AERHFEE 68,270 141,770 3,906 115,428 329,374
2023
—ET-=F
Sales of
pitch control Wind farm
systems and operation and Energy
related  Sales of wind ~ maintenance storage
components power business business Total
HE B R
ES W] REREE
ek HERE BEET FREER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETE ARBTE ARETE ARETE ARET:E

Reportable segment revenue BE RiEn 217,569 17,471 19,921 29,114 284,075
Reportable segment profit 25 HEH 5,653 8,401 5335 7,556 26,945
Reportable segment assets AERNHEE 153,804 136,918 4,829 113,337 408,888

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WEERDEBHEE

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SEBFE (&)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) T2 7B - i FI K E518
revenues, profit or loss and assets REENEER
2024 2023
ol el )1 - 3 —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Revenue Y 22
Reportable segment revenue A 2 Wy W= 148,280 284,075
Consolidated revenue fre e 148,280 284,075
Profit itz ¥l
Reportable segment (loss)/profit Al £ % 2 (&18),/
il (8,968) 26,945
Other revenue H Uy 25 1,642 3,756
Other net gain/(loss) Hm ez (E8)
HRE 2,122 (341)
Selling and distribution expenses — $8& & 7 5 f & (8,486) (8,302)
Administrative and other THREEMELERS
operating expenses (21,782) (30,697)
Impairment loss on loans to REFE=ZFERD
third parties B B 18 (3,408) —
Net finance costs B & BN SFEEA (3,200) (3,022)
Consolidated loss before ek AIEE
taxation (42,080) (11,661)
Assets &aE
Reportable segment assets AZWMoHAEE 329,374 408,888
Deferred tax assets REMIBEE 4,480 1,123
Assets held for sale BIEHEEE — 7,048
Loans to third parties BEFE=ZFER 4,913 25,359
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREFEEY 51,005 55,824
Pledged deposits EHEFEFER 8,567 20,097
Consolidated total assets HEEE®E 398,339 518,339
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(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WK BEEE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SEBFHE (&)
(iii) Geographic information (iii) #EE

IFRS 8, Operating Segments, requires B B B 75 R 5 AE R B85 AL &
identification and disclosure of information DEERBANTBEELEBEELS
about an entity’s geographical areas, regardless HIBRENER  BmzER
of the entity’s organisation (i.e. even if the WA NE (AEZERBRA
entity has a single reportable segment). The — AR HRENDE) c AEEH
Group operates within one geographical F—EtEANEE  BAEAM
location because all of its revenue was ERHZEBPERANESE - H
generated in the PRC and substantially all of its RYMBERBEEMERX
non-current assets and capital expenditure were HHEPEBREREA - Bl -
located/incurred in the PRC. Accordingly, no MEZY|EER -

geographical information is presented.

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5 H{lzsREmikis (E5i8) %

(LOSS) 2]
(a) Other revenue (a) Hblrz=
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETTT

VAT refund and deduction (Note /) HEM R &R

(K1 7Ei) 1,314 3,590

Government subsidies (Note Ji) BT 8 Bh (BT 2200 ) 113 78
Others H 215 88
1,642 3,756

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BR3E= B

5

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

E - BRAIAARKITIIR)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/
(LOSS) (Continued)

(a) Other revenue (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to Taxation Policy for Encouraging the
Development of Software and Integrated Circuits
Industry (Guofa [2011] No.4), enterprises engaged in
the sales of self-developed software in the PRC are
entitled to a VAT refund to the extent that the
effective VAT rate of the sales of the software
products in the PRC exceeds 3% of the sales
amounts. During the vyears ended 31 December
2024 and 2023, the Group received such VAT refund
of RMB362,000 and RMB1,109,000 respectively.

Pursuant to the VAT Policy on Wind Power
Generation (Caishui [2015] No.74), enterprises selling
self-generated wind power will be entitled to a 50%
refund of VAT. During the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group received
such VAT refund of RMB777,000 and RMB1,052,000
respectively.

Pursuant to the Announcement on the Weighted
VAT Deduction Policy for Advanced Manufacturing
Enterprises, advanced manufacturing enterprises are
allowed to deduct weighted 5% of the input VAT
against the output VAT. During the year ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, such VAT deduction
amounted to RMB175,000 and RMB1,429,000
respectively.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group received unconditional government
subsidies of RMB113,000 and RMB78,000,
respectively, as encouragement of the Group’s
contribution in technology development and the
local economy.

Hihlrzm R Efbde &5 (B548) iF

# (=)
(a) Hhras (42)
Hist -

() BECE—THEHGEZEAMN
EXNEREFBERE THERD
(B 3[2011138458) - &
FREEAFEE B TAZEEHN
¥ EFEBERNEEERGT
EmfERIEERNEBRIE
ERENE3% BREESEER
B -AHE_Z_NMERK—
T =F+-_A=+—HLHF
ER AEESRIKETAR
362,000t M A R ¥
1,109,0007T Ky & B iR 7 o

BRIECRE N B EBIRERBERLN
WA R[201515745%) »
EEERNBENCEKERE
B 1350% BB E TR T o &L
EITNERT=FF
“A=+—HLEFER K&
2R E T AR 777,000
7T 1 A K #1,052,0007T Ay
BEHED -

BE(ER T ERELFEIEE
BMETEBRBENRE) %
HERUE M E R UIRETRRERN
5% O 3K $0 FE AN 12 (B B o AR
EITE_NERT=F+
“A=+—HLEFEA IHE
BRERTRBEINRARKE
175,0007T 1 A R #1,429,000
= -

(iy BE_FT-_HNER-_T_=F
TZA=+—RHRLEFEAR K
SESHERST ARK
113,0007T 1 A K #¥78,0007T
B B (R 1T BT R B - A SR B AR
5 B S R Al B 35 A0 2 1 AR 0 O
Y
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(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5 H@iZxREMUZ (EiE)i%E

(LOSS) (Continued) (&)
(b) Other net gain/(loss) (b) Hibdesx (E518)FEE
2024 2023
—E_ME —E=4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR T T

Net exchange losses bE N BB IE R (72) (237)
Gain on disposal of interests in joint EEASDTEEZRD
ventures (Note 15) W et (K7a£15) 2,285 —
Others H fth (91) (104)
2,122 (341)
6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBIAIESIE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BANER (B ) AT & R4S M HYBR Bi Al
(crediting): B8
(a) Net finance costs () MERFFH
2024 2023
—E-EFE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARBET T

Interest expenses on bank loans WITERFEZH 1,047 621
Interest expenses on loans due to ERE=FERFE
third parties sl 1,665 1,672
Interest expenses on loans due to a  JETRAE: 5 B F &
related party > H 883 417
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEAGEMNMEXH 566 686
4,161 3,396
Interest income B g A (961) (374)
Net finance costs & KA F R 3,200 3,022

HEAREERMBEERARAT —ToNFEFR
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(BRIEZBIEE -

BRI A RETTH7R)
6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 MBiaigiE(E)
(b) Staff costs (b) EIR®E
2024 2023
—T_ME —E =%
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREF T
Salaries, wages and other benefits - TEREAM
& F 32,488 33,831
Contributions to defined contribution  5E %8 (3% R (R 5T 21 19
retirement plans R 1,770 2,272
34,258 36,103

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement plans administered and operated by the
municipal government. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on

local

certain percentages of the average employee salary
as agreed by the local municipal government to the
plan to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

to the defined
retirement plans are expensed as
incurred and not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the plans prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. The Group has no
obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with the scheme

The Group’s contributions

contribution

other material

beyond the annual contributions described above.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

AREETEMELRNE THA
2MBEHMHTRAEENEZLNTE
B TORKET B - NE B A B
BRRREEHTRFRANE T
FHIEN—EANIHLREIHNER
RKEHESNER -

AEEEBUE RN NERE
BAERH MEEREHRER
57 B8 A AR 5 81 T 102 Y0 41 5
TERENRZERK K LT
FHOENRI AEBREEMBERXN
BIRENONKEE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses includes

amounts relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,

plant and equipment and provision for write-down of
inventories, which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note 6(b) for

each of these types of expenses.

TEARERREERERAA

(RIFESBEE  BAAARETIITR)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 KPHaEEE)
Other items (0 H#IEH
2024 2023
—E-MME -
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR T T
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERINEFE
expenses (Note) B (7 7E) 148,019 246,037
Depreciation charges nEEH
— owned property, plant and — BBENYE BE
equipment B 13,203 8,737
— right-of-use assets — EREEE 5,876 3,007
(Reversal)/provision of ECL allowance  (¥[@), 12 78 &
EEEREE
— trade receivables and contract — BRI NIER
assets aREE (20) 1,427
— loans to third parties —BTE=ZFTEX 3,408 —
— loans to a related party — BT —H@EBA
B = 191
Provision for write-down of FEKEBERE
inventories 947 —
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S5 R % B
— audit services — BFHRH 1,090 1,130
— non-audit services — FEFRHG 300 300
Note: Mt

HERASAXNTFERABREEBI TK
K -THE BENRBNEUALETE
KEEREHEBENSE BLEROERE
b XK RE6(b)F DRI B B REE
B E RS -

R NFF IR
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 SZEBESERAMFEDR

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of (a) HFEERRANBIES:

profit or loss represents:

2024 2023
—E_-MMEF —E_=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR AREET T
Current tax — PRC Corporate BNEASiEE — P EH
Income Tax LEREH
Provision for the year FRNERH 741 1,406
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BAEFER (B
prior years BE)/BETE (36) 330
Deferred tax EEHBIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B |4 2= & #) & £
differences (Note 23(b)) BB (7 i2230)) (3,357) (915)
(2,652) 821

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024



INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands.

(ii) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and
the respective regulations, the subsidiaries of the
Group which operate in PRC are subject to

Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% on their

taxable income.

(iii)  According to the Administrative Measures for
Determination of High Tech Enterprises (Guokefahuo
[2016] No.32), Jiangsu Nature Hongyuan New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. obtained the qualification as a
high-tech enterprise and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years
from 2024 to 2027.

(iv)  Pursuant to Caishui [2011] No.58 and Caishui [2020]
No.23 Notice on Further
Implementation of Western Regions Development
Strategy, Datang Gucang Duolun New Energy Co.,
Ltd. was established in the western regions of the
PRC, and was entitled to the preferential income tax
rate of 15% from its incorporation to 2030.

Tax Policies for

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

7 HEEBRANAEHR (A

(a) HFEBEB/RAMBIIES : (&)

(i) RERNSHESNIABERRES
MREFE AEEEREES
MABEBARESETHMEM
P -

(i) BREBE(PEARKMBECEMREY
FIRBERE  AEEEPEL
ERMBEAREREEATAME
BH25% MM BEAEH

(i) WE(RHEMECERTEEEHR
EV(E B} 85 [2016]58325%) - T
R RLERFERRIE AR AR
WMEEHMENEEER %
CNEE T EZR15%H
FriSti@E= -

(iv) 1R 1% Bf Bi[2011]58585% A BF &%
[2020]5235 B F A & i /o 3B
AFAEEBEEERKBREEN
AN - 72 R BT EP kb [ Ak S Y K
EREZMIERER AR AKX
VEZE=FTF ZR15%M A
SHER -

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BRIEZBETE  GRAIKAARBITIITR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HFHEEHERAAEHR(Z)
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax (benefits)/expense

(b) HERBEFHMBIE R,

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

and loss before taxation at applicable tax

Bl 32 52 B Bi A 5 48 B9 BT BR -

rates:
2024 2023
—E-MmE —T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Loss before taxation B BTE R (42,080) (11,661)
Notional tax on profit before BR A0 A A 8 2 &
taxation, calculated at the PRC 1B (R BEE
statutory tax rate of 25% i R25%:HE) (10,520) (2,915)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFEZ (B
prior years B BETR (36) 330
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses -~ 8] #0 % 58 sz /) ¢ 18
TE 1,439 942
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIBEEL
recognised WA 2 6,854 5,126
Additional deductions for research B 25 5 S B BE AN LR
and development expenses (600) (1,998)
Effect of PRC tax concessions 2 H1F /9 B A 7S
obtained BEXE 1,073 (664)
Tax effect of previously unrecognized IR#ERF A K E R
tax losses now recognized Y B 75 s 18 Y T 7
A (862) —
Actual tax (benefit)/expense ERBIE (R
B > (2,652) 821
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(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section EEMERIBECEE LD THERI)FE383(1) 1K
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part RAABI(BRBESMmER) ROIDFE2H
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about RO :

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Contributions

Salaries, to defined

allowances contribution

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary  retirement

fees in kind bonuses plan 2024 Total
e BUER EHEERE®R Z—FT-OF
ESxHe BYMEH Bl FTEIBER st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARETR ARETR ARETRT AR®TR

Executive directors HITES
Cheng Liquan Richard BEEE = 1,026 47 = 1,073
Cheng Lifu Cliff BER = 1,407 = = 1,407

Non-Executive directors  FHITES

Li Hao £ 135 = = = 135

Cheng Ligin BEY 135 — — — 135

Independent non- BAEPITES

executive directors

Li Shusheng ZEH 135 = = = 135

Kang Jian & 135 = = = 135

Hung Pui Yu s (i) 135 — — — 135
675 2,433 47 o 3,155

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EENN=(#E)
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary retirement
fees in kind bonuses plan 2023 Total
e 2ZRK TEMHFRK ZTZ=F
ExHe EWaEh BEEL  sHEeEXK st
RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Executive directors HITES
Cheng Liquan Richard BEx — 865 45 — 910
Cheng Lifu Cliff BRER — 1,118 758 — 1,876
Non-Executive directors FHITES
Li Hao N 135 — — — 135
Cheng Ligin (appointed on 722 &)
23 August 2023) (R=—ZT=—=F
NBE=-+=H
BEE) 45 — — — 45
Independent non- BUFRTES
executive directors
Li Shusheng TEH 135 — — — 135
Kang lian F 2 135 — — — 135
Hung Pui Yu AL B 135 — - — 135
585 1,983 803 — 3,371

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Both the executive directors

them as key management personnel.

None of these directors and any of the highest paid
individuals set out in Note 9 received any inducements or
compensation for loss of office or waived any emoluments

are key management
personnel of the Group during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 and their remuneration
disclosed above include those for services rendered by

during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

BHE_Z-_MNMFR-T-_=F+-H=
T+T—HLEFE MBRATEEHREASE
EFXrZEBAE MEFAREXHEED
MEBRESIEAFTEETEABRMER
BESHME -

RBE-_ZT_NFER_FT-_=F+=H
=+—BLEFE BIEMESHME9
FrEEREmT ATESNBE RS LB
B E RN EE M H N -
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(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH THE HIGHEST 9 REHEBEA
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two TEmmFmeBAP MBE(ZZTEZ=
(2023: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed &2 ¢ ﬁﬁ%)ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬂ R EES T B o Eﬁ%
in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of —H(ZEZ=F =R)EANF2
the other three (2023: three) individuals are as follows: BOE
2024 2023
—E-@mFE ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Salaries and other emoluments HehEMEe 1,711 2,663
Discretionary bonuses 15 FE 4L 180 185
Contributions to defined JE R FOGR R ET B A9 K
contribution retirement plan 219 332
2,110 3,180
The emoluments of the three (2023: three) individuals R (ZE—_=F  ZR)mReFe@A
with the highest emoluments are within the following N BN ATAR
bands:
2024 2023
il 1 - 3 —ET=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ANE A
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 =7 75 21,000,0007% 7T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ .2
1,500,000/ 7T — 2

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BRIEZBIEE

C BRAIAARBTIIR)

10 LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

10 BikEE

Basic loss per share (a) BEREXEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BRERNEBENFEREBERNAR
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders AEBRREAEGLEEARK
of the Company of RMB34,733,000 (2023: 34,733,000 (ZE=—=F : AR¥
RMB10,144,000) and the weighted average of 10,144,00070) FAN G [ B 217 hl#E
250,000,000 ordinary shares (2023: 250,000,000 T 15 3% 3% §8250,000,0000 (= & =
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as = % : 250,000,000/%) 5t & - 5+ &
follows: LN
Weighted average number of ordinary shares LERMETFYE
2024 2023
—E-mF —ET-=F
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January w—A—BEk+=A
and 31 December =+—HBE#1T
Rl 250,000,000 250,000,000
Diluted loss per share (b) BREFEEE

Diluted loss per share for the vyears ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 are the same as the
basic loss per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares issued.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BE S -_NFR_ZF-_=F+—
A=+—RLtSEoREEEEN
tk%$%%@ﬂ HALHEET
BEREE LR



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1 YE BERSEHE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BRE{E#ER
Generators Office
Leasehold  Plant and  and other equipment Construction
land buildings  equipment and others in progress Total
BEHR BAE
HETH BEREF HitRE REREH EBRIE @t

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETLE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Cost: BA:

At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=Z%#—F—H 3,099 15,429 122,813 1,764 — 143,105
Additions NE — 15,298 294 1,376 26,975 43,943
Transfers B — 1,264 12,720 — (13,984) —
Disposals & — (1,374) (438) — — (1,812)

At 31 December 2023 and R -ZE-=%+—-R

1 January 2024 =+-BRk
“Z-ME-A—H 3,099 30,617 135,389 3,140 12,991 185,236
Additions RE — 638 419 1,686 2,413 5,156
Transfers BE — 14,107 1,198 — (15,305) —
At 31 December 2024 R-ZT-mE+-A
=+—-H 3,099 45,362 137,006 4,826 99 190,392
Accumulated Riting:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2023 R-ZZ-=%—-A—8 (423) (5,604) (39,527) (975) - (46,529)
Charge for the year FRHR (63) (6,544) (7,174) (494) — (14,275)
Disposals HE — 802 438 — - 1,240

At 31 December 2023 and R -ZT-=%+_-A

1 January 2024 =+-HE

“Z-NE—A—H (486) (11,346) (46,263) (1,469) — (59,564)
Charge for the year ERMNBK (63) (9,847) (8,185) (984) - (19,079)
At 31 December 2024 i

=+—-H (549) (21,193) (54,448) (2,453) = (78,643)
Net book value: AR {E :
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-_NF+-A

=+—H 2,550 24,169 82,558 2,373 99 111,749
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=%+ZA

=+—H 2,613 19,271 89,126 1,671 12,991 125,672

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 YM¥E -BERREE)
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EHEESE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REEEERRE S NEAEEE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: REVFESTINEDT :
2024 2023
—E-MME —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Leasehold land held for own use, HIEEAHEE L -
carried at depreciated cost in the R BRI E R A
PRC, with the lease term of HIRR - FIERME B R
between 50 years 50F N 2,550 2,613
Plant and buildings leased for own HEEEREE X
use, carried at depreciated cost BF ZITEKRAK
51 Bk 9,594 15,407

12,144 18,020

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y¥E -BERSRE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) ERIESEZ)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases REREREBEEENHAXIEE
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: oNE T -
2024 2023
—E-MME -
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBT T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use REBEEERE S

assets by class of underlying asset: WEREEENE
B -
Leasehold land HE T 63 63
Plant and buildings B REF 5,813 2,944
5,876 3,007
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a) FTHE&BEF E
(Htit6(a)) 566 686
Expense relating to short-term leases AR EHAHEEMNF X 458 421
During the year ended 31 December 2024, additions HE_ZT_ME+-_A=+—HIE
to right-of-use assets were RMB nil (2023: FE - RENGCAEEERARE
RMB15,030,000). This amount primarily related to TR B =ZF: AR ®
the capitalised lease payments under new tenancy 15,030,0007T) - Z & B F ZH M
agreements. EHBRETHENMLEERIERH -
Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity HEMRERMLAE HEARMN
analysis of lease liabilities and the future cash A EREERMEEARNRKES
outflows arising from leases are set out in Notes M B RIE R EE19e) ~ 22K

19(e), 22 and 25(b), respectively. 25(b) °

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

12

The following

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

list contains only the particulars of

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

12 RMBASIMELR

TREHAE

BEREARERE BE

HBENHERRFE BB FHAIN
R ER ST B -

Proportion of ownership

*

interest
BEEERLA
Place of Group's Held Held
incorporation Particulars of issued effective by the by a
Name of Company and business and paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AR EETR FREN HFAF e i 8
ATEE EEBE HBRRAFE BERER fiE  AERKE EEEBED
China Transport Real Time Service Co., Ltd. The British Virgin United States Dollar 100% 100% - Investment holding
("China Transport”) Islands ("US$") 1
TPRXBSKBBERARD(FERBE]) RERBREE ETAETH) 100% 100% —  REBR
Jiangsu Nature Hongyuan New Energy The PRC US$7,000,000 100% — 100% Integration, manufacturing and sales
Technology Co., Ltd.* of pitch control systems and
(IHMRLBRFERBNEERAR) related components, wind farm
operation and maintenance
business
TEBFAEN LR RERDE* e 7,000,0003 7 100% = 100% Ea HERHEERZHZARR
HRAGRRESES RiE#
5%
Beijing Nature Heli New Energy Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% — 100% Investment holding
Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Nature")*
(ERBRAENFERNBEEREERA)
ERBRANHERHEEREEARN(SAR F A K #5,000,0007C 100% = 100%  BREARRK
mzl)*
Datang Gucang Duolun New Energy The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% — 100% Wind power generation and sales
Co., Ltd.*("Datang Gucang”)
(REREZRmAERERAF)
AERRZRMEREBAR(RERR]) HE AR #33,000,0007C 100% = 100% EHBERHEE
Nature Intellectual Energy (Shenzhen) The PRC HK$10,000,000 100% 100% — Provision of energy storage
Co., Ltd* (AR BEER(FI)ERAF) management solutions
MRBZRR(RIDERR A i 10,000,000 7T 100% 100% — REREEERBRAZR
Nature Energy Investment (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* The PRC US$4,000,000 100% 100% — Investment holding
(MRERIRE (IEH) ERAA)
MRERRE (IR ERRA" i 4,000,000% 7 100% 100% —  RAZK
Jiangsu Nature Zhenyuan Energy Storage The PRC RMB46,000,000 80% — 80% Integration, manufacturing and sales
Technology Co., Ltd.("Nature Zhenyuan”)* of energy storage products
(L& MR IRRFERRERAR)
THEARRRFEENRERAR(ARKER)> & AR #46,000,0007 80% = 80% EA HERHERRER

All the subsidiaries in the PRC are established as limited

liability companies.

Nature Zhenyuan was established by the Group and a
third party individual investor on 13 December 2022. As
at 31 December 2024, capital contribution, amounted to
RMB46,000,000 (2023: RMB30,000,000), has been paid in
Nature Zhenyuan.

* FAETENBARBKLASEREMER
7l o

MEIRBEHAEB R —R2EF=ZFRAK
BER T -_F+A+=HKL-
R-_ZE-_WE+-_A=+—H 2AH
SRR & AR %46,000,0007T (=
T =4 : AR¥30,000,0007T) °
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 13
Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures, which is
accounted for using equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI BEE - BRIAARETTIIR)

1S ELTNER
R R B®RET  AEEERES
AERAEDRAMBEFBENT :

Proportion of ownership
interest

ARSI
Form of Place of Group's Held Held
business incorporation Particulars of effective by the by a
Name of joint venture structure and business paid-in capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
RS 3L R AEEN ®FATF 1
BEATEH EBRERS  BEBE BRBRAZE ERER RE LIRE IEEBED
Datong Hailan Energy Co., Ltd. Incorporated The PRC — Note Note Note Investment holding
("Datong Hailan")
(RRERERERDR)
ARERERERAF(TKRBER]) Bz FE — i Bt B 2% REZR
Linggiu County Hailan Energy Co., Ltd. Incorporated The PRC = Note Note Note Photovoltaic power
(“Linggiu Hailan") generation and sales
(BERERERERAA)
BErZeRmRERAR TR L FE — Pt = Mt =% Lok KREERHEE
(BE8R])
Note: Bt

In February 2022, Datong Hailan and Linggiu Hailan were
established by the Group and a third party company. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, both Datong Hailan and Lingqiu
Hailan have been deregistered.

REZZE-—F - AEBERE=F QAKX
YARRAEBREAEEBR BE_T_NF+
A=+ —BLEE - RRASERELER
HE R -

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER



Notes to the Financial Statements

IR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

14 EHEERENAR

(a) Contract assets (a) BHBE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E - =F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR F T
Contract assets arising from BREENRE :
— Retention receivables on the sales  — $4% B 48 4% 4| Z 4t
of pitch control systems and KBB4 8 e
related components W= 6,133 4,828
— Retention receivables on the sales — $EEHEE DD
of energy storage products JEW R 17 & 59,745 46,398
65,878 51,226
Less: loss allowance B R (821) (521)
65,057 50,705

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group normally allows a credit period of 30 to
180 days to its customers. For retention receivables,
the due dates usually fall from five to six years after
the delivery and acceptance of pitch control systems
and related components, or one to three years after
the delivery of energy storage products.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year s
RMB17,102,000 (2023: RMB13,831,000), all of which
relates to retentions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

REB RGBT EF30E180K HY
FEEH -HEKBGFEELSMS 2 H
HBEAEEITH Rs RIEHE M
Rt RBWERENE KT
BEEmEBE—ZE=F-

BEHRBA—FRETREMNEL
EESBEAARY17,102,0007T (=
T =% : AR¥13,831,0007T) -
2IMEBFSAEM -



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 SHEERSHAERB(E)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2024 2023
ot Rl 1)1 - 5 —E-=%
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR T T

Contract liabilities arising from the HESREHRE R
sales of pitch control systems and HE A AR 1 I 7 B
related components and energy ¥XBEENEDN
storage business =R
— Billings in advance of performance — T8 U /& ) BR X 148 995
When the Group receives a deposit before the BAREE N A E S )R 6 BT ER
production activity commences, this will give rise to T UHBRENRERELESNE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the B BEEzBEREKaEAKRE 2
revenue recognised exceeds the amount of the H-ReBE(WA)REBABER
deposit. The amount of the deposit, if any, is B PR o

negotiated on a case-by-case basis with customers.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be FrEEaHBaBEEHABER —FAER
recognised as revenue within one year. B g o

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER



Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 < Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

15 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

15 F/ELEEE

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREET T
Assets classified as held for sale SERFELEEE
— Disposal of the interests in joint — HEAEAANER
ventures = 7,048

In December 2021, the Group and a third-party company
incorporated in the PRC (the “Buyer”) entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to transfer all of the Group’s equity interests in
Datong Fengyuan and Linggiu Fengyuan to the Buyer at a
cash consideration of approximately RMB9.3 million by
two instalments. Subject to certain pre-conditions in
connection with the operations of Datong Fengyuan and
Linggiu Fengyuan, the completion of equity transfer was
pending and therefore, interests in joint ventures were
reclassified as assets held for sale (see Note 15) in 2021.
Upon the satisfaction of these pre-conditions, equity
transfer was completed and a gain on disposal of interests
in joint ventures of RMB2,285,000 was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

R-E_—F+_F AEEE-—FER
PEEMAKIHE=F28(EFDET
VREEERS  BUAEERESM
HAHOARKIIEETHREKER/ K
%.H@ﬁﬂ/ﬁ/ﬁ&%ﬁ/ﬁ/ﬁmiuBHX*g
BEETED REEXRETINELE
TR ESHBARE T ARG RES
ENTRETE Bt RZFEZ—F R
BERFNEREENRERKIELE
BE(RMEIS) - EimE & TR RGN
% SEkREEE UTREE_T -0
FT_A=+T—"HLFEBRLESE
) R s s A R #62,285,0007T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAIEE  BARARKEITIIR)

16 INVENTORIES 16 BE
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (d) HZEMBRARNEEEIE:
financial position comprise:

2024 2023
—E-ME T =4
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR T T

Raw materials R Mk 8,516 8,924
Work in progress & m 1,716 1,589
Finished goods BIRK o 3,527 1,539
Goods in transit FHEMm 1,687 937
15,446 12,989
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) ERBERAIRIAEBZNEES
recognised as an expense and included in BEoWIFHMT :

profit or loss is as follows:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E =%
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTR AR T T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 147,072 246,037
Provision for write-down of 17 & MOR B
inventories 947 —
148,019 246,037
All inventories are expected to be recovered within FrBFEEREBR —FAKME -
one year.

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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IR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

BEZSRHMEWRIE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFRT ARETTT

Current B HA
Trade and bills receivable, net of loss ‘& 5 & Yt 1B K FE U = 4% -

allowance B B 18 B 128,193 212,660
Prepayments B 2E 645 2,150
Other receivables H 4th fE W 318 7.868 4,112
Total HEt 136,706 218,922
Non-current FEEDEA
Other receivables H b fE U 3R 416 600

137,122 219,522

Except for the non-current other receivables related to the
deposits of tenancy agreements and tariff premium
receivables, all of trade and other receivables balances are
expected to be recovered or recognised as an expense
within one year. Further details of tariff premium
receivables are disclosed below.

BREEEBHRZSABENIFRIEME
WHRIEMEKREBH M FAEE S E
Yok TR e L A e WK B B R T KA —
NEEHERRAX TXHETES
EHRRERWEEMMNFHAES -

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESERHMEKRIE(Z)
(Continued)
Trade and bills receivable B S EWKMIE R EKEH#
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Measured at amortised cost BREHBK AN E
— Trade receivables — B S EWIE 115,131 165,003
— Bills receivable — BKRER 5,694 39,789
Measured at fair value through WAFEFEBEEESHTA
other comprehensive income HAib#r & W
(FVOCI)
— Bills receivable (Note) — BWEEWZ) 9,361 10,181
130,186 214,973
Less: loss allowance W B R R E (1,993) (2,313)
128,193 212,660
Note: Bt -
Certain amounts of the Group’s bills receivable measured at AAFEFEREZEHT AL MRS Rt
FVOCI were held for collection of contractual cash flows and for ENAEEREREBENELESERFERR
selling the financial asset, where cash flows of the bills KHReRRERMEEEREE  HPER
receivable represented solely payments of principal and interest. EBRNBEERERREASAEAZ A -

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER



Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 < Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17 BESREMBWRIE(E)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Continued)

Trade and bills receivable (Continued)

The bills accepted by banks with high credit quality were
derecognised when they were endorsed or discounted. In
the opinion of the directors, the Group did not retain
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
these bills,
banks was very low and the Group had transferred out all
interest risk of the bills upon endorsement or discount. As
the transferees had the practical ability to further endorse

because the credit risk of the acceptance

or discount the bills, control of these bills were
transferred upon endorsement or discount and thus they
were derecognised. As at 31 2024, bills
endorsed or discounted and derecognised, but that had
not reached maturity amounted to RMB5,880,000 (2023:
RMB55,489,000). This represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to loss should the acceptance banks fail to settle
the bills on their maturity date. However, non-settlement

by those acceptance banks was considered unlikely.

December

%EFE&#IE&FEI&EF(%S’T)
=i SRRITEAINEBRESEN
Eﬁiﬁﬁﬂ%&%ﬂ:ﬁ&m\ EE=ERE ARER
RITWERRERIEESER EXAEEEE
EEIMBARERTEROMBTNER
R EARAEBEYWLSEELD LREBEL
EEMERNFBRRMER ARE
FEARBE—SEESIHBREBRNER
'E%%‘%ﬁ;‘%m LSS
‘ER RLEKIER #H2_T-0
F+_A=+—H BEXE BBEMKL
BREMKRIPHEBESEAARK
5,880,000L(=— T — = F£: A R ¥
55,489,0007T) ° R & T AR A H IR1T
REAIHBALEEERE A5BHEBN
E—j@@% H IR A E LT FEITTK
AIRE N EITHE o

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis HEREHR BBRKEERBMMOK
of trade and bills receivable, based on the revenue EEBEENE S EWHIENEKREE
recognition date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: RERER DT :
2024 2023
—E-NEF B -=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREET T
Within 1 year —F R 69,200 165,718
Over 1 year but within 2 years HiE—FEMFER 12,051 12,376
Over 2 years but within 3 years HBBAMFE=FNK 12,376 14,136
Over 3 years = 34,566 20,430
128,193 212,660

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Trade and bills receivable (Continued)

Generally, the Group's trade receivables are due within 30
to 180 days from the date of billing, except for the
revenue from tariff premium, representing 60% (2023:
61%) of total wind power sales for the year ended
31 December 2024. The collection of such tariff premium
is subject to the allocation of funds by
government authorities to local grid company, which takes
a relatively long time for settlement. As at 31 December
2024, the tariff premium receivables included in trade and
other receivables amounted to RMB69,547,000 (2023:
RMB58,993,000).

relevant

Pursuant to Caijian [2020] No.5 Notice on the Measures
for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff Premium of
Renewable Energy (I B AR RE BN IMEHESERY
1T3#E%) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
National Development and Reform Commission and the
National Energy Administration in January 2020, a set of
standardised procedures for the settlement of the tariff
premium came into effect from 2020 and approvals on a
project by project basis are required before the allocation
of funds to local grid companies. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the tariff premium
receivables are fully recoverable considering that there are
no loss experiences with the state owned grid company in
the past and the tariff premium is funded by the PRC
government.

Details of the Group's analysis of credit risk are set out in
Note 25(a).

As at 31 December 2024, bills receivable of RMB nil
(2023: RMB24,286,000) were pledged as security for
issuance of bills payable.

17

TEARERREERERAA

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRIFSZBIEE © BRIKARBITIIR)
BESRHft WK RIE (E)
B 5K IE R B M R R ()
—RRB - REEMMEBA I ARE
B 5RO R 2 A 2305 180K
NE BENMBS ERE=F=®

FT A=+ HLEFEREHAHER
H60% (T =4 :61%) ° ﬁti,a%
0 A M R 2 4 4 AT 6. 1

ERAAIRENES ,uﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬂ?‘?
E-R-T-_MNE+-_A=+—H B
Ko E At & U PR SRR B & #O FE UK B Y B0

A ANRE69,547,000L(ZEZ=F: A
R #58,993,0007T) ©

$ET)€H7IE5(ﬁB‘%%E&éﬂl%%ﬁ%
R E-FF— AR E MR 2(2020]
E5HCBAN AT B LR REEN MABE
SEBRETWDNEMN  BELENEE
MUEEEFE T _FTFEAY X
FREBZ —(Fh#tE Z2RTKER
Tﬁfﬁﬁ/\”%m Wrm-EZRIEBEES
AREIBELSBELEBEE BEEWM
HPBERMFREES ARAEERA
FEWEBM pn Al A 2RI m o

AEBNEERRDITFHFS
25(a) °

EgiN

R—_ZE-_WNFE+-_A=+—H EK=E
BARBEZL(ZE_=ZF: ARK
24,286,0007T) E HRERBEITEN ER
BIELR o

R NFF IR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

18 LOANS TO THIRD PARTIES

18 REFE=ZFHER

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

2024 2023

—E-F —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBEFTIT

Loans to third parties BEREFE=ZFHNER 8,512 25,550
Less: loss allowance B EIE A (3,599) (191)
4,913 25,359

As at 31 December 2024, loans to third parties comprised
a loan of RMB7,182,000 (2023: RMB24,300,000 as loans
to a related party) due from a former joint venture (Note
27(e)) and a loan of RMB1,330,000 (2023: RMB1,250,000)
due from the other investor of the former joint venture.

The loan due from the former joint venture were
interest-free, unsecured and repayable no later than
31 December 2024. The amount due but unpaid in the
loan due from the former joint venture was
RMB7,182,000 (2023: RMB nil) at 31 December 2024.

The loan due from the other investor of the former joint
venture were interest-free, unsecured and repayable no
later than 31 December 2025. There was no amount due
but unpaid in the loan due from the other investor of the
former joint venture at 31 December 2024.

Details of the Group's analysis of credit risk are set out in
Note 25(a).

RZZE-_NEF+_A=+—H &HEHF
E=FTHEXBERE —RAEE QA
MERARY7,182,000t (ZE-=%:
A R #24,300,000CE R ¥ @B T E
TR HE27()) WRIRBZAA LA
AN " UNUREENERARK
1,330,000c(= T = = F: AR %
1,250,0007T) °

o

ZAAERRNERAR S BIER -
wET\zEEé_ZQ_EEnL A=+—8H
EX - R_TE-_WMF+=-_A=+—H"
ZAEERANERIBAERZINE
BAAREET7182,000c(ZE_=F: A
R¥&ZTI) -

F

N

#

A

ZAAERAMEMKREEMRNER
ReE  BER XYETER-_ZT_RF
T-A=+t—BEE-R-_T_M&F+
“A=t—H REZAMGLERANS
—MUREFENERD  WEMMMIBKR
NEH -

AEBRNEERR D TFBHNH T
25(a) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 19 IR&RIL%ZEY  CHEBERT

AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, AND OTHER fREIEREEBIIEFTEER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RaRkBEEYEE:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARET T

Cash at bank RITH 2 51,005 55,824
As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents RZE-_WOF+_A=+—H &
situated in Chinese Mainland amounted to BANBReERREEBUWAAR
RMB47,932,000 (2023: RMB44,573,000). Remittance #47,932,00000 ' (ZE - =F : A
of funds out of Chinese Mainland is subject to R #44,573,0007T) ° 1 B (A #f [A) 3%
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange HNEE R X B A SN B I AR BY K2 AR 51
control. Fr #52 BR -

(b) Pledged and restricted deposits comprise: (b) EHMIARZRHERDE:
2024 2023
—E-MME -
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARBTT

Pledged deposits for issuance of RETENERD
bills payable EHEREFER 7,197 20,097
Restricted deposits for litigation BT 7A X PR #1177 1,370 —
8,567 20,097
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the EEBRITERERNENENER
settlement of bills payable. BRRER -

HEAREERMBEERARAT —ToNFEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, AND OTHER

19 HERBEERY  EHRHFRTE
RElFRRABRERESTH

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (#&)
(c) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash () MBmiESIEMEEE (A Ff
(used in)/generated from operations &R
2024 2023
—E-ME —ET-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
&t ARETR ARET T
Loss before taxation R F5 Ai &S5 18 (42,080) (11,661)
Adjustments for: BATEIERE -
Depreciation of property, ME - BEKEE
plant and equipment e 6(c) 19,079 11,744
Gain on disposal of BEEAELHER
interests in joint B 4 &
ventures 5(b) (2,285) —
Net finance costs BE KA FRE 6(a) 3,200 3,022
Provision of ECL allowance FHREHEEEE
B 6(c) 3,388 1,618
Provision for write-down FEKEEHE
of inventories 6(c) 947 —
Changes in working capital: E& & & &
Increase in contract assets BHEEL M (14,364) (47,114)
(Increase)/decrease in Fe (gm), wd
inventories (3,404) 2,745
Decrease in trade and 2 5 & H MW
other receivables FE R 82,721 5,886
Decrease in pledged and B &R
restricted deposits FF0R 2 11,530 1,609
(Decrease)/increase in g 5 Kk H e
trade and other ;1B O ),/
payables 0 (70,310) 42,972
Cash (used in)/generated K (FrA) /s
from operations Be (11,578) 10,821

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, AND OTHER REEFERREMEERTEES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (&)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d)

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

19 HERBEERY  EHRFRR

MESSHRELRRHEER

TRAMASERELDELENER
B2 RRASKIFREY-
BEAPELANBREREREAED
RIRKREREEAKTEHEFAR
EREXRTLOERBEZTINAE

Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash MENBIE-
flows from financing activities.
Bank loans
and other Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
RITERR
Hip EfFIE HEARE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFR AREFn ARETx®
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)
(H#t20) (Hf#21) (H#22)
At 1 January 2024 R-E-ME-F-H 68,561 28,459 14,924 111,944
Changes from financing cash flows: MEReRESY:
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERESERENEATH = — (4,750) (4,750)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EREEHSHNAEDS = = (566) (566)
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFFMEFE 44,788 — - 44,788
Repayment of bank loans ROEZMER (20,450) — — (20,450)
Repayment of loans due to a related party ~ EEEMEEH & (20,000) — - (20,000)
Repayment of loans due to third parties BERNEZFER (6,000) - - (6,000)
Interest paid BRFIE (1,047) - - (1,047)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEB S HEL P (2,709) = (5.316) (8,025)
Exchange adjustments ErRd% 154 - - 154
Other changes: Hit2g:
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) FEBZ (H#66) 1,047 2,548 566 4,161
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-M%E+=H
=+-H 67,053 31,007 10,174 108,234

TEARERREERERAA

R NFF IR
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IR &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 19 IR&RIL%ZEY  CHEBERT

AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, AND OTHER RAGEREREMRETEEH
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (42)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from d) MEFHMELERYRE)
financing activities (Continued)
Bank loans
and other Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
RITEFR
EfE R FEf 78 HEER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFTL ARBFTL ARBFT ARBTT
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)
(Hii220) (Hi221) (H222)

At 1 January 2023 R-B-=%-HF—-H 39,460 26,370 5922 71,752

Changes from financing cash flows: HERERESY:

Capital element of lease rentals paid EREEHENEAS S - - (5,456) (5,456)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EREEHEHNAESS - - (686) (686)
Proceeds from bank loans ROERMENA 24,700 — - 24,700
Proceeds from loans due to a related REBHFEFFMERE

oarty 20,000 - - 20,000
Repayment of bank loans BOERRER (14,900) — — (14,900)
Repayment of loans due to third parties ERENEZFER (800) - — (800)
Interest paid BERFIE - (621) — (621)
Total changes from financing cash flows BEREREZYL 29,000 (621) (6,142) 22,237
Exchange adjustments ERAE 101 - - 101
Other changes: Hip 25
Increase in lease liabilities from entering MENMEREEHHE

into new leases during the year BEMEMN - - 15,030 15,030
Interest expenses (Note 6(3)) F 8 (Hi26()) - 2,710 686 3,396
Decrease in lease liabilities from MENRERESHAE

cancellation of leases during the year 8ERY - - (572) (572)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=Rh

=+-H 68,561 28,459 14,924 111,944

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024



19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

19 IRERBRELEEY CHBPRT
I;Edﬁ)'lﬁiﬂﬁgf&fﬁﬁiﬁiiﬁﬂ
() BEBRS R HEHE

AAGERERERNHEHESHEE

statement for leases comprise the following: FETAEIE :

2024 2023

—E-mE T =4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR AR®ET T

Within operating cash flows KEBRERENRN 458 480

Within financing cash flows MERESREN 5,316 6,142

5,774 6,622

These amounts relate to the following: ZECHESRUATEIE:

2024 2023

—E-EFE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFR ARETF T

Lease rentals paid ERAERS 5,774 6,622

20 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20 fRITERRHMbER

2024 2023

—EB-MEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

Bank loans (Note (a) below) RITER (T XM at(a)) 44,038 19,700

Loans due to third parties ENE=FER

(Note (b) below) (FXHatDb)) 23,015 28,861
Loans due to a related party JERT— BB T B

(Noted (c) below) (FXHTaE(C) — 20,000

67,053 68,561

TEMNRERMEERBRAT ZZT-NFFRH
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(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

20 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20 RITERRHMERZ
(Continued)
(a) Bank loans (a) RITER
The maturity profile for the interest-bearing bank REBREREHPRZABRITE
loans of the Group at the end of each reporting FEEIEERET -
period is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Short-term bank loans MHRITER 44,038 19,700
Within 1 year or on demand —FARREXR 44,038 19,700
At the end of each reporting period, the bank loans RERESER - RITERZERE
were secured as follows: BT ¢
2024 2023
—E-MNE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR T T
Bank loans RITER
— Secured (Note) — BEM (A7) 1,000 9,900
— Unsecured — K 4 43,038 9,800
44,038 19,700
Note: Kt -

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The bank loans were secured by certain intellectual
properties of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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20 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Bank loans (Continued)

Certain bank facilities granted to the Group were
guaranteed by Mr. Cheng Lifu Cliff, the executive
director of the Company, at 31 December 2024.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BIESAHEE - BURARETLIIT)
20 RITERRHMER (&)

(a) SRITENX(E)
ETETAKENRITEERALRR
ATEERERAEER T -0
F+-_A=1+—BFELER-

2024 2023
“EF-lE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Guarantees to banks for granting EEERITEEMR
banking facilities TEHAER 32,538 17,900

Loans due to third parties

At 31 December 2024, loans due to third parties
represented loans, which were subject to an interest
rate ranging from 3.5% to 7% (2023: 3.5% to 7%)
per annum, were unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms or repayable within one year.

Loans due to a related party

At 31 December 2023, loans due to a related party
represented loans, which were subject to an interest
rate at 5% per annum, were unsecured and have a
maturity term of one year.

(b) EFRE=ZHFER
RZZTE-_WME+=-_A=+—8 " fE
NE=ZFEREBEZFMNENF
35%E7% (T =4 35%%
7% )t B E R - AEEKT - EE
EERPKE—FRNEE -

(c) FEFTRAEE A ER
RZE_=F+-A=+—8H " [E
AR 5 BRI BIRF R E5% 5T B
WER AEEBLE —FHR-

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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B 75 R 3% BT 5%
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIEBEEE  TAUNAREITIIR)
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BERHMEMNRKIE
2024 2023
—E_-MMEF —E_=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AR T
Current B H#A
Trade payables (Note (a) below) B S ENFIA
(FXHiat(a)) 55,392 77,581
Bills payable JE 1 18 7,208 45,846
Other payables (Note (b) below) H b JE 5K IE
(FX K at®)) 35,286 46,322
97,886 169,749
Non-current FEBDEA
@ Trade payables B 5 EMNHIE 577 2,093
98,463 171,842

(@) Trade payables

() BHEMRIE

BERSHR BRALHERHREHR
ERIIFEIHA DN ERERA
HHEZRENRERKDITAT

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging
analysis of trade payables other than non- current
portion which is the warranty from certain suppliers,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E_=4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFxT AREFIT

Within 3 months =@ARN 22,635 48,946
3 to 6 months =B A 3,384 26,138
6 to 12 months NEA+ @A 3,906 1,691
Over 12 months +-{EAMNU L 25,467 806
55,392 77,581

FTE B 5 REMNRAENBEED BT
BE-—FREEHEEREE -

All of the current portion of trade payables are
expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

21 ESRHEMEBIRIE(E)
(b) HtbFEMRIE

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
(b) Other payables

At 31 December 2024, the lease liabilities were repayable

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFx AREFIT
Interest payable J& 15 A1) 2 31,007 28,459
Payables for staff related costs e B THRBEKA 1,681 4,853

Advances from disposal of joint REAERNAIRER
ventures = 5,133
Others H th 2,598 7,877
35,286 46,322
22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEAE

R-ZZE-_HWNE+-_A=+—RH HEA

as follows: BARNATREERSR
2024 2023
- =Bl 1 B 3 —EB-=F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARETR ARET T
Within 1 year —F R 3,150 4,310
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 3,547 3,520
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBEBRFNA 3,477 7,094
7,024 10,614
10,174 14,924

TEARERREERERAA

—E-FFR
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(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 ZEMBRARZFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HGEMBRARZEBBERRE
of financial position represents:
2024 2023
—E-ME —_F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETTT

At the beginning of the year R EH 463 (107)
Provision for the year: FRRHE:
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — FEREMEN 741 1,406
— (Over)/under-provision in respect of — BFFE 2 (%
prior years B, BETR (36) 330
Tax paid: EATHIE
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — B EME (871) (1,166)
@ At the end of the year R E R 297 463
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERDPEEHESEERERE
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities FARGZE M BRI RERIIET
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MBEERBEBEMAKI S REE10
position and the movements during the year are as T <
follows:
Provision
ECL for Right-of- Lease Cumulative
allowance inventories  use assets liabilities  tax losses Total
B LHEE
BEEGE HEEE GREEE HEER i L H

RVMB'O0O  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETL ARETR AREBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2023 R-—ZE-=%—-H—H 208 — — _ _ 208
Recognised in profit or loss R BZHER 447 — (3.342) 3371 439 915

At 31 December 2023 and R -E-=F

1 January 2024 TZA=+—-Hk
ZZ-m5—-A—H 655 — (3.342) 3,371 439 1123
Recognised in profit or loss R BHER 10 142 972 (942) 3,175 3,357
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-ME
+=ZA=+-H 665 142 (2.370) 2,429 3,614 4,480
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23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(p), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets of RMB15,745,000 (2023: RMB9,450,000),
in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB62,980,000 (2023: RMB37,800,000)
31 December 2024, as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised  will in the
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses incurred by the
subsidiaries in the PRC will expire within 5 years
from the year when such losses were incurred under
current tax legislation.

as at

be available relevant tax

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2024, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
amounted to RMB146,390,000 (2023:
RMB159,146,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB14,639,000 (2023: RMB15,915,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.
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(BRI BETE - BRIAARETTIIR)

HEMBRRRZAEH (&)

(c)

(d)

TEARERREERERAA

RERBREHRIEEE

BIR M 20T & < 5T - K
SRR _ZT_NWFE+_-_A=+—8H
TERZFAMREEBEB AR
62,980,000C(ZZT==F : AR¥
37,800,0007T) RELEFHIBE E A
R#15,745,000L (ZEZ=F . A
K #9,450,0007T) © A & 18 B8 & 1%
EERLERBEIRA ARMIEESRE
B SR 2R FE 2R B % A #Y AT BE MR K o
A B B A B E A R B RS B 1R S R
BERTHEEELEZEEEN
FERFSFARNER -

AEREEBIEE &

RZZTEZWF+=—_A=+—H
BRRZ ARSI &N E R EERE
A A R #146,390,000t (— T = =
. A R #159,146,0007T) © A A
REEFZEMNB AR Z KR EK
K -BEBEZSHEMNRAESE
R BARD IR - & ARED IR
ZEREBRFMEN 2 RIBRERE
EFRIE A B ARE14,639,0007T (=
T_-_=%: AR®15915,0007T) °

R NFF IR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

Movements in components of equity

(a)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

24 §$ 13%1%&52&.\
(a) AL HYEE)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBGEEESEAKT ST
balances of each component of the Group's HEREBRE RSN GRS
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated 7= o A Al i Bl #E 5 A BKEB 9 B
statement of changes in equity. Details of the TEFRNEBE /R%W LRI
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
Reserves
-1
Share Share Other  Exchange  Retained
The Company capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
¥ S kx  RiYEE HitwEE BERRE KREEH @zt
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
Hi# ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at R-BZ=%
1 January 2023 —R—BH % 2,168 95,992 28,520 1,685 (15425) 112,940
Changes in equity —E-=f
for 2023: ExRE
Total comprehensive FRE2ANRAE
income for the year - — - 2,461 (2,684) (223)
Balance at R-ZF=Z=%
31 December +=RA=+-H
2023 and E-E-_ME
1 January 2024 —A—BW&e 2,168 95,992 28,520 4,146 (18,109) 112,717
Changes in equity for ~ —ZT P4
2024: BREY:
Total comprehensive FREERZAE
income for the year — — — 130 (2,764) (2,634)
Balance at R-ZB-WmE
31 December +=-B=+-8
2024 okt 3 28 2,168 95,992 28,520 4,276 (20,873) 110,083
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(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX-RERERE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (b) K2
No dividend was paid or declared by the Company HE-_T_MNMERER-T-_=F+=
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. A=+—HBLFE ARAAHER

HHEIRE -

(c) Share capital (o) B&=&
2024 2023
“E-_lE —E_=F
No. of shares RMB’000  No. of shares RMB'000

k& E AR TR Betn 2 ARETTT

Ordinary shares, issued EBRTRAEN

and fully paid: TiEk:
At 1 January and BR—A—B&

31 December +-A=+—H 250,000,000 2,168 250,000,000 2,168
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERBEAERESTREIRA
dividends as declared from time to time and are RE WEREARAGGHRLREE
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the BihOig—R -MAELEKRERR
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with FABEFNZBREHA -

regards to the Company’s residual assets.

(d) Nature and purposes of reserves (d) #HiEHERAR
(i) Share premium (i) RBRHHE
The share premium represents the difference BHaEERELHERNE K
between consideration received for ordinary REHNREMRBEEZEELD
shares subscription net of any transaction costs RGRA KRR L BREE
directly attributable to the subscription and the H)ZEHE -

par value of the ordinary shares subscribed.

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BRIEZBIEE -

BRIA AR TIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purposes of reserves (Continued)
(iij) Other reserve

Other reserve primarily represents: (i) the
paid-up capital of Beijing Nature prior to
30 June 2018 attributable to the ultimate
shareholder of the Group; (ii) the difference
between the carrying value of the net assets
attributable to the non-controlling shareholders
of Beijing Nature and Datang Gucang and the
consideration paid for the acquisition of
non-controlling interests; (iii) the deemed
dividends of Beijing Nature to controlling
shareholder; and (iv) the amount of loans of
China Transport waived by controlling
shareholder on 31 December 2019.

(iii) Statutory surplus reserve

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

According to laws applicable to the foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC and the
Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC, the PRC entities are
required to appropriate part of their net profits
as determined in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles of the People's
Republic of China (“PRC GAAP”) to various
reserves. These include general reserve and
statutory surplus reserve.

For general reserve, appropriation to general
reserve is at the discretion of the directors of
the relevant PRC entities. The reserve can only
be used for specific purposes and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

24 BEX - fRERKRE (&)

(d) fREEHEERAZZE)

(i) RbrE
HtEEEZER ) =T — N\
FRNAZTHZAASEERR
BREEILERAR ZHER
A ()t RRRRAERRIE
AT AR SR F A E R E A B
WEIE R TREZE
B (iEMERRRENILR
AR ERR B R(iv)iE IR IR
RRZZE—-—NF+ZA=1+—
HRENPRZBERSHE -

(iii) EEBEFHE
RIEEANREINE D ERE
BRAQRAETHEWBA A
MBS ERME  FEEEE
BEBRETFRARETRE
(FERARERA]) BT
B FaFBASERE - %
ERERE—REEREATR
BRfEfE o

P REHEEME - —REEN
BREBHEATEEENESH
BRE - %R RERBIERE
Rz TAERRERERD
I °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIERHEE  THUARETHIR)
24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX  -RERRR (&)
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purposes of reserves (Continued)
(iii) Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

(d) RECERREE)
(iii) %IE B EF M ()

For statutory surplus reserve, 10% of the net
profit, as determined in accordance with the
PRC GAAP, of the relevant PRC entities is
transferred to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the relevant PRC
companies. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to
shareholders can be made. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by the issue of
new shares to shareholders in proportion to

reserve balance

their existing shareholders or by increasing the
par value of the shares currently held by the
shareholders, provided that the balance after
such less than 25% of the
registered capital. Any amount of funds outside
of the 50% reserve balance can be distributed
as by the relevant PRC entities, as advances or
cash dividends, subject however, to complying
with applicable requirements. Such dividends or

issue is not

loans could take a considerable amount of time
to implement and to be processed by certain
governmental agencies.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations with functional currency other than
RMB. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in Note
2(t).

MEERGBHEENS  HEFR
HEEREREAREERA
HETE K FOR A 8910% 15 88 A K
TRHBHE HEEREEHRE
FEEFRAREMEAD
50% ° M AR 75 KX S AT+ 4%
BEEBREZGEE AT AR
& BIERm AT FERNE
B(nAg) WA ERKRRIZE
BEFREFIZITHRG @ X
FEE MR R R FEENRMDE
B BErHEHBFEEELRAR
N HBITRDENEHRTE
DM EARBI25% © %50%
{7 18 45 BR DA SN B A fr] 2 5B AT B
HETEREEE D RAERBBR
HIBERE  BEETERR
FoABEREIERNATR
ATERA#BENEERT T8
ERER-

(iv) EXf#E
[E R A ERNEERILIEA
REZEEVHBRRMEME
AR EEINEZER o RN
A2 B RT BR BRI

TEAREBEREERARAR T _VFEFR
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(BRIEZBIEE -

BRIA AR TIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other by pricing
level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

stakeholders, services

commensurately with the

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is calculated as the
aggregate amount of bank loans and other
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash

equivalent.

24 BEX - fRERKRE (&)

(e)
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(e) Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group's adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at
31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BIESAHEE - BURARETLIIT)
24 BEX - fHERKRE (&)
EXEmER(E)

R_EBE_WFER-_ZT-_=F+—_A
=+t—H AEBHEAEFER

(e)

BEARERMT :
2024 2023
i = 1 - 3 —E-=F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
oA ARE T T AREET T
Bank loans and other RITERMEMERK
borrowings 20 67,053 68,561
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 10,174 14,924
Total debt BET 77,227 83,485
Less: Cash and cash W Re MRS
equivalents ZEW 19(a) (51,005) (55,824)
Adjusted net debt KR FREE 26,222 27,661
Total equity B 222,204 261,554
Adjusted net debt-to-capital EFEFEKEE A
ratio Lt & 11.8% 10.6%

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject
imposed capital

to internally or
requirements.

externally

TEARERREERERAA

AR REMBRARETEZHNRA
BB INER B DN E AR E e
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(BRIEZBIEE -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables and
contract assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties are
reputable financial
standing, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

institutions with high credit

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 17% (2023: 40%) and 79% (2023: 74%) of
the total trade receivables and contract assets were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

individual characteristics of each

25 SHEMEERSMTAMNAFE

=

ARBEMBRREBBREELEE 7
BHES  FIERIMEAR - AREEL K
EARNEERAREAEERSAR
T 58 8 ) & LI I TR R 18 L
m -

(a)
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’'s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 180
days from the date of billing, except for the tariff
premium. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers, respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix.

As at the end of the reporting period, the analysis of
trade receivables and contract assets, net of loss
allowance, by nature is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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25 SHEMEEREMTAMAFE
B (%&)

(a)

EEEME(Z)
ESENRERSHEE (&)
FEEBEAETERNMBEFRAA
ETEMNEEFG ZFFEEE
BEPBEN B BFIR ARS8 A K
BRTH e Xt REBEP
ARHBEMERLERENER
B 5 EWRIARNKE B B#E302
180K A 2 HA (E B M M BR 5N) © —
rmE AEBEILARE P WIUE
e

AEEREFERRERS WEE
HERENZBENEEBRCE
RS R ELOE R B R
CH

RBREHR - BUEEEINEFE
WHRIBREHNEE(FNREERE)
pain U

2024 2023
—T_MME —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR ARBT T
Tariff premium receivables J& U E (B BT N 69,547 58,993
Other trade receivables HEmE 5 EIRIA 43,591 103,697
Contract assets BHEE 65,057 50,705
178,195 213,395

TEMBREREMEERERAR —T_NFEFR
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(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £rEMEERSHMITAHNAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS fH (&)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EE&RME)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the tariff
premium receivables are fully recoverable considering
that there are no loss experiences with the grid
company in the past and the tariff premium is
funded by the PRC government. The tariff premium
receivables accounted for 39% (2023: 27%) of the
Group's total trade receivables and contract assets as
at 31 December 2024.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets other than tariff

EBESEKSBEREYEE (&)

RZB-_WNER_T_=%F+_A
=+—H ARREERAEKE
B MA2EEKE - TEED B
THEFAARBESSEEREE
i pner R R BAT B & - E UL E BT
E=—E-—WE+=—A=+—HBRK
CEEFEWRFERANEERR
B39% (ZE =4 27%) °

TREREBASEEENEER
SUNRBSRBFKEARGHNEE
(EEM RN MR EEEBEN

premium: B
2024
—EF-@mE
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR EE RE4E BSiEsE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREBFTR
Current (not past due) BOHE (SR %60 HA) 1.23% 107,118 1,322
Less than 6 months w0 5 > A6 1E A
past due 1.25% 2,888 36
6 to 12 months #HI6E 1218 A
past due 100.00% 306 306
Over 12 months w8 HA B @1 21E A
past due 100.00% 1,150 1,150
111,462 2,814

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £RIEGEERSMTAEMNAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

(a) fEEREME(E)
ESBEKRZERSHEE (&)

2023
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHRES 1B X FREBE B 1B
% RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREET T
Current (not past due)  BIHR (k#EHi) 0.99% 153,496 1,516
Less than 6 months w1 Hf D 06 fE A
past due 2.61% 2,487 65
6 to 12 months # HA6 = 1218 A
past due 100.00% 1,253 1,253
157,236 2,834

The Group had no historical loss experience in
respect of the trade receivables and contract assets
during the past and no significant change in
forward-looking information including the
macroeconomics environment and industry
development in the PRC, in which the Group’s
principal business operates. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current market conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the market.

BE - AEEBYELEE SR
HEAHMEENBEBRER B
AIEMEER (BETE(REEE2
EGEEMEM) N EBRBERER
RTEBER)WEBEAES - 25
KA THRBEARRRZEBEZEN
AE MR - mHER R ANEE
HmE AR RALER DB
ZHEER -

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BRIEZBIEE

C BRAIA AR TR

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets during the year is as
follows:

25 SREABEERSBTAEMNATE
2 (&)

EEEME(E)
ESENRERSHEE (&)
FREZREREARGNEENE
BREEHWT

2024 2023

—E-mE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

Balance at the beginning of the year R & ¥l 4 64 2,834 1,407
Impairment losses (reversed)/provided  J&l (B &5 18 (% [E)

i (20) 1,427

Balance at the end of the year R F R B9 4 B 2,814 2,834

Credit risk arising from loans to third parties
The loans to third parties mainly represented loans
due from the Group’s former joint venture Datong
Fengyuan, which was initially lent by the Group in
2021 to meet the capital needs of its wind farm
construction. The original maturity date of the loans
due from Datong Fengyuan was set to coincide with
the expected completion date of the disposal of the
Group’s equity interest in Datong Fengyuan and
Linggiu Fengyuan (Note 15). The maturity date of
loans due from Datong Fengyuan was currently
extended to 31 December 2024 pursuant to the
supplemental loan agreement dated 30 November
2023.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BE=ZFERELNEERRE
ME=ZFRENERESEERAN
SERAEERRANRETHNER
ZEFRYVBAEER=_T=—F
BH URTERESEINES
EoK o BUKRE T E R R 2 HB
HEHEAEERAREIRERL
EOTRI R TEBISE A B H — B
(H}B)EFEWE_Y__E
+—A=t+HNERERBZ
WRKREETE S Mﬂ%EEmLE
EFE-_MFE+=-ZA=+—H-
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(BRI BETE - BRIAARETTIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £rEMEERSHMITAHMNAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (=)

(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERKE)
Credit risk arising from loans to third parties BE=SERELNISERE (&)
(Continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of RRERBREBEFNESEER
the loans at the end of the reporting period and the B R B R E B G R M E181K
key terms of the loans are disclosed in Note 18. The B - AEENRZEERLERES
Group had no historical loss experience in respect of BB - EEERBRBELM K
the loans. The Group measures loss allowances for SEZESENI2EAEREEESRE
loans to third parties at an amount equal to FEHENEEEBENEEAET
12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs if there has been a E=FEFNEBEBHE - 12HAR
significant increase in credit risk. 12-month and PHEAMERENBR2H 2
lifetime probabilities of default and the loss given ZRBITEBERTOFHEELD
default parameters are calculated with reference to RERLEHE  WHEHAEUR
the average historic non-performing loan ratio of M SEFRAEBRR  ARIKE
commercial banks in the similar industry and JE s B4k B A0 A8 B AR M~ 3R BE AR
adjusted to reflect the counterparties’ specific MEAEEHEBERANTEZHE
conditions and differences between economic HERE-

conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions.

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk arising from loans to third parties

(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of loans

25 SHEMEEREMTAMAFE
-NE=P,

EEEME(E)
BE=FEXELNEERE (&)

FRRE=T/—B@HTERD

to third parties/a related party during the year is as BEREBEEHOT
follows:
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-
12-month ECL impaired Total
2HEHES
1218 B & & K58 —
EEKE FIEERE gt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T AR®EF T
As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%F
Impairment losses m— B s
recognised for loans 8RR E
to a related party & B 191 — 191
As at 31 December RZZTEZ=%F
2023 and 1 January +—=A
2024 =+—BkK
—ETF
Ao g 191 — 191
Transfer to lifetime ECL ¥ % 2 Hi 78 Hf
— not credit- EEEBE
impaired — FEERE (51) 51 -
Impairment losses Mm% =FBEFR
recognised/(reversed) BEBEER
for loans to third (8 ME)
parties (131) 3,539 3,408
As at 31 December R-T Mm%
2024 +=HA
=1T—H 9 3,590 3,599

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £rEMEERSHMITAHMNAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS \-RG=P)

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RENE &AM
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEBEARENELCEREERSEH
responsible for their own cash management, FMRSERE EEAcAHKNE
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses HREKEEERURMEERR
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash w=XR - BERBRE THEEXREK
demands, subject to approval by the parent FoRIESIEARESSHE -
company’s board when the borrowings exceed AEEREREHERERDES
certain predetermined levels of authority. The BR UBRELFREHR S
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity H O RETZESREBRERMHTHRA
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient HEE UmERHARKRENRY
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of BedmKo

funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETAEEVBAGRERSE
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the HARNFHKEOEHD  UEHR
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on MRBEenE(BEERAGAERY
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (B F e F R)BIBR RS B B
interest payments computed using contractual rates ERNEAENFENR RAE
or, if floating, based on rates current at the Blr e B MR FE AR AEM

reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

2024

=L
More than More than Carrying
1 year but 2 years but amount at
Within 1 year less than less than 31 December
or on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2024
R-ZF-OmE
1ERE 151 k{8 2%\ k{8 +-A=+-H
BEK 2E R 5% @t 9 R T (B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBTRT AR®TRT ARNTR ARETT

Bank loans and RITETR

other borrowings Hih g 68,877 = = 68,877 67,053
Trade and other EHREM

payables AN 97,886 577 = 98,463 98,463
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,870 3,927 3,441 11,238 10,174

170,633 4,504 3,441 178,578 175,690

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £RIEGEERESMITAEMNAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -8
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEEREME(Z)
2023
g2
More than More than Carrying
1 year but 2 years but amount at
Within 1 year less than less than 31 December
or on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2023
R-FB_=F
(B3 [E:3 N 2500 L +ZA=+—H
BEX 2ER SER st MEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETR ARBTT AR¥T:R ARETT

Bank loans and ROTERR
other borrowings HibfEm 71,040 — — 71,040 68,561

Trade and other EHREM
@ payables AN 169,749 2,093 — 171,842 171,842
Lease liabilities HEEE 5,048 3,866 7,368 16,282 14,924

245,837 5,959 7,368 259,164 255,327

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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(BRFEZAHEE  BARARKEITIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £rEMEERSHMITAHMNAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS fH (&)
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FZE @

MEREESRIANATFERK
KR & E K E ™5 R & H K
Rk AEBENNKER TR
KERREMER - LFEH =R
K B FE M R EITHE D BIE AR &
EHEERSREN KRR KLQFE
NMEER - BEEEMERNAKH
R BESFR T () -

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from short-term and
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates

expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and

long-term borrowings.

fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is
set out in (i) below:

7% Jm b #E R
BAKEEEEMRERE TR
FHINEBEREHRAE BB

(i) Interest rate risk profile (i)
The following table, as reported to the
management of the Group, details the interest

rate risk profile of the Group’s borrowings at B M =R, -
the end of the reporting period:
2024 2023
—E-ME —EC-=F
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRAE &8 ERA= k)
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARETR AREF L
Fixed rate TEEE®:
borrowings:
Loans due to third ENE=ZRER
parties 3.5%-7% 23,015 3.5%7% 28,861
Loans due to a related R —RE# 5
party B = = 5% 20,000
Lease liabilities HEERE 3.45%-4.75% 10,174  3.45%-4.75% 14,924
33,189 63,785
Variable rate FEE®:
borrowings:
Bank loans BITER 2.75%-4.05% 44,038 3%-4.05% 19,700
Net exposure &l B 5 28 44,038 19,700
PEAREBERBEERERAT —“ST-NFFR
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(BRIEZBIEE -

BRIA AR TIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a
general increase or decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant,
decreased the Group's loss after tax and
decreased or increased retained profits by
approximately RMB374,000 (2023:
RMB167,000).

would have increased or

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's loss after
tax (and retained profits) that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of each reporting period
and had been applied to floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group,
which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The impact on the Group's loss after
tax (and retained profits) is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of such
a change in interest rates. Fixed rate financial
the above
analysis. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2023.

instruments are excluded for

25 SHEMEEREMTAMAFE
B (%)

() FlZ=REEE)

(i) ®WEESH
RZZFE-_WmF+_A=+—
B s FREE EAXTH
100ME &% MATEEMEH
BEDE  AEENKRTIEE
B Mmook L - R &G
D I8 N A A KR #374,000
T(Z T = AR ¥
167,0007T) °

LRGRESNBERARED
BRIIR BB (R RE s ) 7T
EEMRSZE) 2R REF
REHEREREHIREL
¥ ERREAKEERRESR
MERBEANEE TG ZE
MEIFPTETA - REBERH
‘EE(REBEN) AIXTE
TR B RN R ZEE FZF
EXHHEEEMGT - Lilly
AR ESERIA - —F
“ZENOMBRBRELEE

7 -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

(e)

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in
the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in RMB, which is not freely convertible
into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving Renminbi must take place
through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

The directors considered the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk is not significant during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
each reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
into which a fair value measurement is
classified
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

level

is determined with reference to the

= Level 1 Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement

date;

valuations:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI BETE - BRIAARETTIIR)

25 SHEMEEREMTAMAFE
B (%&)

(d)

(e)

TEARERREERERAA

& %5 L b
HRASENEBEEE NP EE
T AEENXHTERARKG
B - MAREAATBEHERALI
B BRARENEZEINER 51T
AEBTPRARBITHEMEERIN
PE R IR ABETT - INER Z R
MEXDHRBARBITARERH
HEETHER -

EERA REBEE-_ZE_NNFEK_
T_=F+-A=1t—BIEEER
EBAZHINERRIT NEK -

AFEEE

X FEFR

TREINAKSEREFEEERS
BEHMRFEZERTAZAYF
18 - I %R BB B 75 i 5 R 581357
N EFERRE=BERFERH
DR RFEAEFRHZRMEE
BB ARBZAIBREERE

BUHEEMT -

— E—#®
(CRERE

EERE—REA
HEFEZRT
B BIREtER
HHEREEXA
BERXBERLZ
M5 R REHE
ZHmIE

R NFF IR




Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 R MY 5
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIFESEEE  TANKARETIITR)
25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £RiEMEERSMTIAEMATF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E (&)
(Continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (Continued) (e) AFEFE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) LNFEZER(E)
—  Level 2 Fair value measured using Level — Bk FRAE-_HKWAH
valuations: 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs (ERERE BitE2F
which fail to meet Level 1, B PIrFES
and not using significant — Rl z AT B
unobservable inputs. B ASE - BXK
Unobservable inputs are inputs BEFEREARTH
for which market data are not B AR -
available; TR R A
BEEERSET
HEER B A
o
@ —  Level 3 Fair value measured using — F=H FAERTIHE
valuations: significant unobservable HiE : WMABBTEZ
inputs. N o
Analysis on fair value measurement of financial EMIAEZAFEFEDHNAOT :
instruments are as follows:
Fair value at Fair value measurement
31 December at 31 December 2024
2024 categorised into
AFE{E AFE{EHEE
N-ZE-NF MR-F-ME
+=-A=+—H +-RA=+—HH%ESL

RMB’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AREBFTR E—R B4 E=4

21 =

Recurring fair value &EHEMAFEHITE
measurement

Trade and other ESRHEMBEK
receivables: B :
Bills receivable e E 5 9,361 — 9,361 —

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2024



25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued) (e)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(BRI BETE - BRIAARETTIIR)

25 SHEMEEREMTAMAFE
B (%&)

AFEENEE)
S FEFR(E)

Fair value at Fair value measurement
31 December at 31 December 2023
2023 categorised into
AFE AT EE
RZEBE-_=F RNZE-=%F
+=ZA=+—H TZA=+—BSER
RMB’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AR T T £ E_M! FE=ZMR
Recurring fair value EEMHATHETE
measurement
Trade and other BESRHMEK
receivables: RIE :
Bills receivable JE U = 1% 10,181 — 10,181 —

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Certain bills receivable held by the Group are
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, which are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The
fair values of these bills receivable have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to expected return rate. Bills receivable
carried at FVOCI are not materially different from
their values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Except for bills receivable carried at FVOCI, all
financial instruments carried at cost or amortized
cost are at amounts not materially different from
their values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

TEARERREERERAA

HE-ZT_NEFR-T-_=F+=
A=+—HLFE F—HKEFE=
WA LBEBRIRBERE=HEA
FEL AEBZBEENHEH
AERAFEEAHNEPSERcE

¥% o

ETAEERFREKERBAKERE
HESRERTESREEEE -
BRAFEFAEMEZERSE -
ZERREBENAFENEBIR
BHAKRRERETE - R FER
EHEHARNREREER - ZAFE
TAEM KSR EKRZER
HER-ZT_MEFR-T_=F+
“A=Zt+—HMATFERLELMES
KD B o

BRIRAFEFAEMEEBER

B U R IR S - BT B TR A AN S 5
RAFIENERMTANSREERER

=R _AER=F=_=F1+=H=
+-ENEEELEREATR -

R NFF IR
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(BRESAIEE  BARXNARKEITIIR)

26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no significant capital commitments outstanding

26 EAXKIE
RZEBE-_MFER—_TE_=Z=F+-_A=+

at the respective year end not provided for at —A HMEARBETEITRESEFER
31 December 2024 and 2023. EHBEZ BERERAE-
27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXHBIRS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEBEAESHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFEEBAEBNHFM(BEE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s SR BERMARAIEEZNH
directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the CHEAWEMEERNSE THEa 5
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as MEE MRS AT :
follows:
2024 2023
- ey 1! - 3 —E =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AR T T
Short-term employee benefits EE B R A 5,674 5,750
Contributions to defined contribution & & {ft % 51 & 4 &«
plans 219 229
5,893 5,979

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see

REMENIE TR K

Note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
(b) Guarantees issued by related parties (b) PFAEEHIFHER
2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Guarantees to banks for granting REERITEER
banking facilities RITR AR 32,538 17,900

Certain bank facilities granted to the Group in Note
20(a) were guaranteed by Mr. Cheng Lifu Cliff, the
executive director of the Company at 31 December
2024.

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BIsE20(@)F I T AE B E FRT
EETHARRRPITESEERE
ER-_FE-_WFE+-_A=+—Hfk
HAER -
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(BRI BETE - BRIAARETTIIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXFBH 5 (&)

(Continued)

(c) Leasing arrangements () HERH
In November 2020, the Group entered into a RZZEZZEF+— R AKEKRE
five-year lease in respect of certain properties from THERAEBRKEIERRERET
Hong Kong Shengshi Taihe Culture and Arts Centre B B N BB B Bkt KA L & Afg
Limited, the affiliate company under the ultimate DBRARGI AR AFNMEL
controlling shareholder of the Group, for office use. ER A R AEEREBEEEREN
The amount of rent payable by the Group under the # A 7 520,0007% 7T - R & F 1A
lease is HK$20,000 per month. At the BE AEEBER - EBEAEEE
commencement date of the lease, the Group K E & E ARK®901,0007T °

recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
of RMB901,000.

(d) Other significant related party transactions (d HtEXFEBRERXS
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and BHE_T-_MFR-_T=-_=F+=
2023, the Group had the following transactions with A=+—HBLFE AEEELE
Shanghai Yingzhen Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai RERFEEREEAR(LER
Yingzhen”), the affiliate company under the ultimate Bl AEBEGREERBREEESE
controlling shareholder of the Group, Mr. Cheng FHBBARDBENTRS

Liquan Richard:

2024 2023
—E-lE —E=F
Shanghai Yingzhen LBEE RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Non-trading transactions: EFHXS:

New loans received B EE & — 20,000
Repayment of loans BEEX 20,000 —
Interest expense on loans EHA B X 883 417

TEARGERMEERAERLARD —T_NFER
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BRIA AR TIIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Material related party balances

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
had following balances with Datong Fengyuan, the
former joint venture of the Group, Hongyuan
Limited, the immediate parent of the Company, and
Shanghai Yingzhen:

27

EXFABAXS (&

(e) E XSS

RBEBHAR AREEEKRFE T
(X&EBEATA % 2 Al - Hongyuan
Limited (RABIERBRA) R L8
REAUT&

2024 2023
—TomE e =
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARETR AR T T
Non-trading balances: FE 5
Loans to a related party RETHEHBTNER
Datong Fengyuan NG 7 = 24,300
Loans due to a related party FEATRERE 5 B
Shanghai Yingzhen FBEE — (20,000)
Other payables H b & 5018
Shanghai Yingzhen FBHEZE (1,300) (417)

The outstanding balances with related parties are
included in loans to third parties in Note 18, bank
loans and other borrowings in Note 20, and other
payables in Note 21(b).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
guarantees issued, leasing arrangements, repayment
of loans mentioned in Notes 27(b), (c) and (d) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided under
the section “Connected Transactions” in the Report
of Directors. However those transactions in respect
of guarantees issued and repayment of loans are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as they are financial
assistance under Rule 14A.90 or below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

(f)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

HEE T REESHRE T ARG
18 RRETE =B ER - ME20
HY SR 1T B R B E A £8 SR S M E21(b)
B H Al 8 5 5RR o

ERER SHEMAZ LR A8 E
A

XXM EE27(b) ~ (c) K(d) BT it 5 8 B
PHER HERHE BEEEXY
AR SEK ETRAEI4AE
FIAEHBEEXSIABFEBER
5o FMRAFEI4AZ TR T A #
BANRERESSERE(HER S
—HiRRE - AM AR BEBAEN
MERREZEEFNZSERIBER
TR BIE14A 90188 T B9 B BUIR
B s AR P LT 48 B S5 14A.76(1) 15648
EHREREKFE At ERE
BT EMARAFEUVAZENEERT -
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28 ASIEEHNMBIRAE

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ok AREF T AREETIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Interest in subsidiaries S ENGIEOR = E 111,148 109,886
Property, plant and equipment I 165 356
111,313 110,242
Current assets REHEE
Other receivables H fib & W 5K IE 1,151 421
Cash and cash equivalents BE& MRS EEY 2,891 11,065
4,042 11,486
Current liabilities k=K
Other payables H b &~ 5/ IB 5,091 8,630
Lease liabilities HERE 181 177
5,272 8,807
Net current (liabilities)/assets REN(EE) EE
FE (1,230) 2,679
Total assets less current BEERRSHER
liabilities 110,083 112,921
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Lease liabilities HEaE — 204
— 204
NET ASSETS BEFHE 110,083 112,717
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXARMEE 24(a)
Share capital [N 2,168 2,168
Reserves wE 107,915 110,549
TOTAL EQUITY AL 110,083 112,717
TEMBREREMEERERAR —T_NFEFR
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CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2024, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate parent of the Group to be
Hongyuan Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands, and the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Group to be Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard. Hongyuan
Limited does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Up to date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2024 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

29

30

ERARBREER AT

RZZBE_WAE+_A=+—H KX27A
¥ = Hongyuan Limited BANE B E X
BaR HA—HRAHASESTEMAT
WAF RASENREKERRER A
2 B 2 %4 ° Hongyuan Limited 3 £ 47 52
AHARERNTB®RE

EEGEMRKREEZT_NEF
+ZA=+—BHIEFEERBHE
A HENRRENTREE

BEZSHWBERRTIZAH  BEe:
HAEBESEBMH LB HCBITE
Al(REz—FT-_NF+=-_A=+—HL
FERMAER BRMAEZSYHRE
REMA)  BEATAIRERNEEFHAD

BT -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEHHZ2E
Mg ET AR

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

— Lack of exchangeability

B St ERE21R ZIERI AN JMNEE R BB 1) 57 & —
Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments and IFRS 7, Financial

= Al 2

1 January 2025

—_ET-_RA¥—H—H
1 January 2026

instruments. disclosures — Amendments to the classification and

measurement of financial instruments

BEREMEREENER BTN 2H# TARBRYBREENETR 2

ERIAR 2@ TA: RE — M T A DBERTEEE

Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11

ERFBRESENSTEAFRESRE — F1110

IFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in financial statements

BBR BA 5 5 RIS 185% - I H K Z 20 KK EE

IFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosures
BRI E R FENSR - LKL FEE N E L 5] 89 7 55

1 January 2026
—E-_RXF—-HA—H
1 January 2027
—ET-_t+¥—-—HA—H
1 January 2027
—E_t+¥—H—H
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 30 EEHGEREANREBE—_T_NE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS +T-—A=+—BHILEEERHE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE AR WMEARRBEMTRZE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (%)

(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AEBEENEZEFEIRNEGRERN
what the impact of these developments is expected to be MEHEEANTE 25 R HEER
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded MZ BB TRAIREHEE Y HRERE
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant REATE -

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HEAREERMBEERARAT —ToNFEFR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEHE

SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OF LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEeESEREMBMEAWREREBE
RMB'000 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ARBEFIT —E-FE —T-—% —T--F —T-=F —F-MNEF
Revenue U & 338,895 312,864 219,949 284,075 148,280
Gross profit/(loss) E7/(£8) 73,570 45,873 27,555 26,945 (8,968)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AR (BE) 47,356 23,473 7,237 (11,661) (42,080)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/(EB) 40,384 21,345 5,374 (12,482) (39,428)
Profit/(loss) for the year AREEERREEFA
attributable to equity sim A,/ (B18)
shareholders of the Company 40,173 21,069 5,374 (10,144) (34,733)
SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEUBRARME
RMB'000 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ARMT T —E-TE —T-—F —FT-——F —FT-=—F —E-_NE
Non-current assets ERBEE 102,496 100,756 100,866 141,226 133,747
Current assets MEEE 444,930 403,655 340,860 377,113 264,592
Current liabilities mEBE 301,728 237,590 168,906 244,078 168,534
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 4,597 7,260 4,817 12,707 7,601
Total equity el 241,101 259,561 268,003 261,554 222,204
SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FERERERBE
RMB'000 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ARET T “E-TE —T-—# —T-—&F —T--F ZF-AF
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHRELAESEY
beginning of year 35,632 121,416 40,572 43,911 55,824
Net cash generated from/(used in) & &8 F713,/(FT )
operating activities Re 3 12,132 7,313 24,236 9,655 (12,449)
Net cash (used in)/generated from & & &8 (FT )/ 5
investing activities ReFs (1,586) (38,077) (6,145) (26,193) 15,321
Net cash generated from/(used in) B & EZENFTE/(FT )
financing ReFd 78,322 (48,460) (15,859) 28,237 (8,025)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeEm/ Chd) 38 88,868 (79,224) 2,232 11,699 (5,153)
Effect of foreign exchange rate ONEDE R E) B
changes (3,084) (1,620) 1,107 214 334
Cash and cash equivalents at the ~ FREAERRESZED
end of year 121,416 40,572 43,911 55,824 51,005

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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